
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Communities 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
19 October 2018 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 10.00 am on THURSDAY, 25 OCTOBER 2018 in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 
COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 

 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 14) 

 To receive the minutes of the Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 6 
September 2018 (copy attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 

5 PROPOSED NEW WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE DESIGN  (Pages 
15 - 110) 

 To consider a joint report by the Head of Highways & Environment and Waste 
and Recycling Manager (copy attached) on the proposed new Waste and 
Recycling Service together with feedback and engagement activity 
undertaken to inform the proposal. 

10.10 a.m. – 11.00 a.m. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ BREAK ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
6 TOURISM PROGRESS REPORT  (Pages 111 - 178) 

 To consider a report by the Team Leader: Tourism, Marketing and Events 
(copy attached) detailing progress achieved to date with various tourism 
initiatives and their contribution towards delivering the Council’s overall 
ambition in relation to economic development and seeking members’ views 
thereon. 

11.15 a.m. – 12 noon 
 

7 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 179 - 198) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy enclosed) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 

12 noon – 12.15 p.m. 
 

8 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups 

12.15 p.m. 
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 No Items. 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Huw Williams (Chair) 
 

Graham Timms (Vice-Chair) 

Brian Blakeley 
Meirick Davies 
Rachel Flynn 
Tina Jones 
Merfyn Parry 
 

Anton Sampson 
Glenn Swingler 
Andrew Thomas 
Cheryl Williams 
 

 
 



 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for 
planning permission made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which 
has made an application for financial assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber, 
County Hall, Ruthin LL15 1YN on Thursday, 6 September 2018 at 9.30 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillors Brian Blakeley, Meirick Davies, Rachel Flynn, Tina Jones, Anton Sampson, 
Glenn Swingler, Andrew Thomas, Graham Timms (Vice-Chair), Cheryl Williams and 
Huw Williams (Chair) 
 
Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Lead Member for Education, Children and Young 
People was in attendance for Agenda Item 5 at the Committee’s request. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Corporate Director: Economic and Public Realm (GB), Head of Education & Children 
Services (KIE), Principal Manager, Intervention, Prevention, Health & Wellbeing (JW), 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE), and Committee Administrator (SLW). 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Merfyn Parry 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Tina Jones declared a personal and prejudicial interest in item 5 – 
Implementation of the Welsh Government’s Free Childcare Offer in Denbighshire. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There were no urgent matters. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 12 July 
2018 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018, be received and 
approved as a correct record. 
 

5 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE WELSH GOVERNMENT'S FREE CHILDCARE 
OFFER IN DENBIGHSHIRE  
 
At this juncture, Councillor Tina Jones declared a personal and prejudicial interest 
in the Implementation of the Welsh Government’s Free Childcare Offer in 
Denbighshire as the owner of a day nursery in Prestatyn.  She is also the Wales 
Trustee of National Day Nursery Association.   As such Councillor Jones left the 
Council Chamber and took no part in the discussion. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
The Lead Member for Education, Children and Young People introduced the 
Principal Manager:  Intervention, Prevention, Health and Well-being’s report 
(previously circulated).  During his introduction the Lead Member emphasised that 
the free childcare offer was a Welsh Government (WG) scheme which stemmed 
from a 2016 Assembly election manifesto promise to offer 30 hours a week of 
government-funded early education and childcare to eligible working parents of 
three and four year olds for 48 weeks of the year by 2020.  Whilst it was a WG 
scheme it would be delivered by local authorities.  Seven local authority areas had 
been chosen to pilot the scheme, three of these areas were in North Wales and in 
those areas the scheme had been rolled out to the entire county areas.  One of 
these pilot areas, or Early Implementer Local Authorities (EILAs), was Flintshire 
County Council.  Flintshire, as an EILA, had already developed the systems to 
administer the free childcare offer and were now experienced in the administration 
of the Scheme.  Denbighshire had agreed to work in partnership with Flintshire for it 
to deliver the Scheme on its behalf when it was rolled-out in Denbighshire in April 
2019.  Denbighshire’s role would be one of an ‘engagement authority’ with 
responsibility for promoting the offer to parents, guardians, childcare providers, and 
training staff to deal with enquiries regarding the free childcare offer. Denbighshire 
would provide Flintshire with the relevant information to process the applications 
and administer the offer.  Denbighshire, following discussions with the WG, had 
opted to roll-out the free childcare scheme to the entire county from April 2019 
rather than undertake a phased roll-out to specific Council wards.  The Lead 
Member and officers were of the view that this approach would be much fairer one 
to all eligible children and families across the county.  Whilst both councils had 
agreed the arrangements for the partnership to deliver the Scheme Denbighshire 
was awaiting written confirmation from WG that it was in agreement for the Scheme 
to be rolled-out to the entire county from April 2019 rather than April 2020.  
Nevertheless, verbal assurances had been given by WG that it was in agreement 
for it to be rolled-out across the county in April 2019.    
 
The Head of Education and Children’s Services advised that the free childcare 
scheme was a complex scheme as it included 10 hours of early education along 
with 20 hours of childcare for 48 weeks of the year.  She emphasised that 
Denbighshire had always favoured implementing the offer across the county at the 
same time rather than on a phased introduction approach on a ward by ward basis, 
hence the reason for not applying to be an EILA. 
 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member, Head of Education and 
Children’s Services, and the Principal Manager:  Intervention, Prevention, Health 
and Well-being advised that: 

 the Council did have some reservations regarding the provision of the 
scheme in the county as it was aware that not all registered childcare 
providers could deliver the early education element.  The Council had raised 
its concerns regarding this with the WG during its discussions on the 
proposed roll-out.  The actual extent of any appropriate availability problems 
would not become clear until the scheme was rolled out as would associated 
travelling and administration issues; 

 from the evaluations undertaken to date in the seven EILA pilot areas the 
overall outcomes were positive.  Problems only seemed to have occurred in 

Page 8



areas where there were shortages of childcare providers.  Denbighshire 
presently had a surplus of childcare places; 

 childcare providers were required to register and comply with Care 
Inspectorate Wales (CIW) standards in order to operate as childcare 
providers,  but not all childcare providers were early years education 
providers.  With a view to assisting those childcare providers who wished to 
expand their provision, in order to deliver the entire free childcare offer 
package, the Council was looking at accessing WG capital grant funding 
available to support the free childcare offer initiative.  This was for the 
purpose of providing training on early years education to childcare providers; 

 as Denbighshire had a low number of three and four year old children at 
present, officers did not expect a high volume of applications for the free 
childcare offer upon roll-out in April 2019;  

 the WG had provided a specific revenue grant for the purpose of funding the 
implementation and delivery of the free childcare offer in Denbighshire.  It 
had also undertaken to fund the revenue costs incurred by the Council in 
relation to administration duties associated with its implementation.  On the 
basis that the grant and revenue funding had been awarded to the county for 
delivering a Welsh Government manifesto pledge, the Lead Member and 
officers were confident that it would be highly unlikely for the funding to be 
withdrawn; 

 both letters received from the WG regarding the free Childcare Offer (copies 
of which were appended to the report) had been received in English only.  
The Lead Member undertook to contact WG to register his disappointment 
that no Welsh language versions had been sent and to request Welsh copies 
of them;  

 the grant monies awarded had been awarded in accordance with European 
Union (EU) financial regulations, which were in force at the award date and 
would therefore still apply until alternative regulations came into force 
following the UK’s departure from the EU; 

 the number of children accessing the free childcare offer would continually 
fluctuate due to the eligibility criteria – the fact that the offer was only 
available for children of eligible working parents  from the school term 
following their third birthday until the point they were offered a full time 
education place (usually the September following their fourth birthday).  It 
was anticipated that the number of additional children who would qualify for 
the offer would fluctuate between 400 to 500 throughout the year and that 
take-up of the offer would vary from area to area throughout the county; 

 the WG free childcare offer represented and investment by the Government 
in the childcare sector which could boost the market and equalise the 
provision and charges for such services across the county.  It could 
potentially provide an opportunity for childcare organisations to work in 
partnership with schools in rural areas to help boost childcare provision in 
areas where fewer providers were available.  Education and Children’s 
Services officers were working with childcare providers across the county 
with a view to supporting them to offer the appropriate types of services to 
meet the Free Childcare Offer criteria; 

 whilst take-up of the Offer would be dependent on parental choice the 
Council was publicising the Offer via a number of communication channels, 
including schools, website and social media.  When the final details of the 

Page 9



scheme were available a further communications strategy would be initiated 
to draw the scheme to residents’ attention; 

 one of the benefits of not being an EILA was having sufficient time to 
effectively plan for the scheme’s implementation; 

 the 30 hours of free childcare offer was available to all children of qualifying 
age of eligible working parents regardless of whether they had any additional 
or special learning needs.  Within the free childcare offer there was a specific 
ring-fenced fund for the provision of special needs childcare.  Officers were 
also exploring whether WG capital funding could be accessed for the 
purpose of developing two strands of support for special needs childcare.  
One strand of support to fund administrative work with parents of special 
needs children to raise awareness of childcare provision and the second 
strand of support to provide one to one support for the child with additional 
needs in the childcare setting; 

 the WG had committed to fund the Free Childcare Offer and the 
administration of the scheme for a period of three years;  

 the take-up of the Offer in the EILA areas had been gradual; 

 all non-maintained education sector providers were being supported and 
encouraged by the Council to seize the opportunity to benefit from the new 
Scheme.  The majority of providers who engaged with the childcare 
information forums were interested in participating in the new Scheme.  
Whilst some of the county’s schools did provide after school provision the 
Authority’s duty was to provide statutory education to pupils of statutory 
school age.  However after school clubs could benefit from the free childcare 
offer and would receive relevant information about it via the relevant forums 
encouraging them to engage with the scheme; 

 a similar free childcare offer scheme in England had recently encountered 
problems with some providers charging parents for ‘extras’ not covered in 
the scheme.  In Wales the guidelines for the scheme specified that parents 
should not be charged additional fees in excess of £7.50 a day.  As the 
delivery authority for Denbighshire, Flintshire would be expected to monitor 
providers compliance with Government guidance with respect of the 
Scheme; 

 the free childcare offer was available to parents for up to 48 weeks of the 
year.  It would be up to parents to choose which weeks they required the 
childcare to be provided and be mindful of when the childcare provider was 
able to provide childcare when they entered into an agreement with them; 

 Flintshire’s administration system for the free childcare offer was an hours-
based system; 

 flexibility aspects within the scheme for shift, zero-hours contract, and 
seasonal workers were continually being tested in EILA areas with a view to 
finding satisfactory solutions to ensure that working parents subject to such 
contracts were not disadvantaged.  Her Majesty’s Revenues and Customs 
(HMRC) were expected to assume administration of the Free Childcare Offer 
scheme from 2020.  If these arrangements proceeded it would facilitate 
speedier verification processes for parents who were subject to the above 
types of employment contracts and those who were self-employed who 
wished to access the Free Childcare Offer.  Whilst WG were still working on 
the details relating to this there was currently an 8 week ‘grace period’ for 
parents on non-standard contracts wishing to access the Offer; 

Page 10



 training would be provided to parents wishing to access the Free Childcare 
Offer.  Some childcare providers were already helping parents to prepare for 
the Scheme’s introduction, whilst the Council’s Family Information Service 
(FIS) and other teams within Education and Children’s Services were 
providing support and training to parents and childcare providers in 
readiness for the Offer’s introduction; 

 the basis for the EILAs selection was likely to be for the purpose of testing 
take-up levels and the effectiveness of implementation procedures in 
different types of areas i.e. rural and urban, geographic location, 
demographic profile etc.; 

 whilst it was expected that a number of childcare providers would cater for a 
mixture of private and Free Childcare Offer children, all children would be 
receiving the care and educational opportunities in the same setting, they 
would not be segregated based on who funded their place at the childcare 
premises.  CIW inspection procedures would ensure that two-tier 
provision/segregation would not be permitted; 

 the Free Childcare Offer was time limited as it was only available for children 
of eligible working parents from the school term following their third birthday 
up until the time they were offered a full-time school place.  Once they 
entered full-time education any after school/holiday care would need to be 
financed by the parents; and 

 the EILAs had not encountered any major problems in relation to parents 
being able to access suitable summer holiday childcare provision 

 
The Committee thanked the Lead Member and officers for attending the meeting 
and answering their questions in relation to the Free Childcare Offer.  Members 
requested officers to explore whether any funding streams may be available which 
could be used to support work with families who did not qualify for the Free 
Childcare Offer to make sure that their children did not become socially excluded or 
isolated.  At the conclusion of the discussion members: 
 
RESOLVED: - subject to the above observations – 
 

(i) to endorse the plans in place for full roll-out of the Childcare Offer in 
Denbighshire on the basis of the current agreement with the Welsh 
Government; 

(ii) to endorse the proposed cross-county delivery plan with Flintshire County 
Council;  

(iii) to agree to further scrutinise a contingency plan for a priority wards roll-out if, 
for any reason, funding for a full authority roll-out was not confirmed by 
Welsh Government; and 

(iv) if full roll-out was confirmed by Welsh Government, that a report be 
presented to the Committee post April 2020 to assess the take-up and 
impact of the free childcare offer in the county since its introduction in 
April 2019 and to evaluate whether the introduction of the offer had 
supported the delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities relating to 
young people and resilient communities, supported the local economy 
and was on course to deliver better outcomes for children and families 

 
 

Page 11



6 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
A copy of a report by the Scrutiny Co-ordinator, which requested the Committee to 
review and agree its Forward Work Programme and which provided an update on 
relevant issues, had been circulated with the papers for the meeting. 
 
A copy of the Members Proposal Form had been included in Appendix 2.  The 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme had been included as Appendix 3, and a table 
summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising on progress with their 
implementation, had been attached at Appendix 4. 
 
The new Waste & Recycling Model would be included in the 25 October 2018 
meeting as further work was required prior to it being presented to Scrutiny 
Committee.  Due to the anticipated public interest in this item, it was agreed that the 
Planning Enforcement report which was included for the 25 October, 2018 meeting 
would be moved to 13 December, 2018 meeting.  In addition, the items on Ysgol 
Rhewl and Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd would also be moved from 25 October, 
2018 meeting, with the former being presented at the 24 January, 2019 meeting 
and the latter’s presentation being subject to the publication of the Cabinet 
Secretary’s decision in relation to its future. 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above to approve the Committee’s Forward Work 
Programme. 
 

7 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
None. 
 

The Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm informed members of the Committee 
that the next Service Challenge to take place will be the Business Improvement and 
Modernisation Service.  The Lines of Enquiry to take place at 3.00 p.m. on 18 September, 
2018 and the Service Challenge meeting taking place on 2 October 2018.   
 
Councillor Andrew Thomas was the representative from Communities Scrutiny Committee 
to attend the Service Challenge. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Huw Williams expressed the importance to attend the Service 
Challenge meetings and if a Councillor was unable to attend then to arrange another 
Councillor to attend on their behalf.  It was also important, for continuity and scrutiny 
purposes that the same member attended both the Lines of Enquiry and Service 
Challenge meeting. 
 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 10.55 a.m. 
 

 

Page 12



Report To:    Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting:   25th October 2018 

Lead Member / Officer: Lead Member for Highways, Planning & Sustainable Travel 

Head of Highways & Environment 

Report Authors: Head of Highways & Environment/Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Title: Proposed New Waste and Recycling Service Design 

 

 
1. What is the report about? 

1.1. Denbighshire County Council need to deliver waste and recycling services 
differently to meet future statutory recycling targets and to reduce the burden of 
increasing waste treatment costs. This report details a proposed new Waste and 
Recycling Service, and highlights the environmental and financial benefits arising 
from the proposed changes. The report also provides feedback from the “Recycle 
More, Waste Less” survey and other engagement activity that the service has 
undertaken to inform the proposal to move to a new operating system that collects 
separated recyclable waste streams weekly and the remaining residual waste 
stream 4-weekly. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1.  Following a Council Briefing session on 11th June 2018, Members requested further 
modelling to be carried out in pursuance of a new waste and recycling collection 
service design that would be fit for the future; maximise environmental benefits; and 
help tackle the c.£900K budget pressure in the service.  It was agreed that the 
service design proposals would be presented to Scrutiny for consideration after the 
“Recycle More, Waste Less” survey and detailed modelling had been concluded. 

2.2. This report is designed to enable Members to scrutinise the proposed new service 
design and the supporting draft waste collection policies (Appendix I). The 
preferred option will see the majority of residents in the county move to a weekly 
kerbside sort recycling service and a four-weekly service for the remaining non-
recyclable waste. Should the service design be endorsed by the Scrutiny 
Committee, officers can finalise the capital and revenue implications, in order to 
present the proposals to Cabinet for consideration. Through Welsh Government’s 
Collaborative Change Programme (CCP), the preferred service change has been 
modelled alongside a range of options, using our own baseline data, and WRAP’s 
established Kerbside Analytical Tool (KAT), used extensively by other authorities to 
undertake changes of this scale. The model takes learning from other local authority 
service changes to provide projections on resource requirements, costs and 
performance.  

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1 That the Committee confirms that it has read, understood and taken account of the 
Well-being Impact Assessment (WIA) (Appendix II) as part of its consideration. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



3.2 That the Committee note that the current projected revenue savings of £807,000 
(Section 6 refers), achievable from implementation of the proposed Waste and 
Recycling service design, are higher than any other option modelled. 
 

3.3 That the Committee note that the social benefits (Appendix III [2] refers) and 
financial implications (Section 6.3 refers) of utilising the third sector for the 
collection of textiles and WEEE (Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment), and 
recommend the continuation and expansion of an arrangement with a Denbighshire 
based Social Enterprise for the collection, re-use and recycling of these materials. 

3.4 That the Committee endorse the proposed new Waste and Recycling service 
design as outlined in Appendix I [A] to implement the preferred Welsh Government 
Blueprint for Waste Collections and to align recycling collection infrastructure with 
the other five North Wales Authorities.  

3.5 That the Committee note that the draft Household Waste Collection Policy 
(Appendix I [B]) designed to support the implementation and regulation of the 
proposed service in order that revenue savings and environmental targets are met. 

3.6 That the Committee note that Welsh Government have confirmed capital funding 
support of £4M in 2019/20 and a further £3M on 2020/21 for the implementation of a 
kerbside sort operation, and request the Head of Highways and Environment 
continues to work with Welsh Government and WRAP to secure all additional 
capital funds necessary to implement the new Waste and Recycling Service. 

3.7 That the Head of Highways and Environment takes a report to Cabinet at the 
earliest opportunity (subject to recommendation 3.6 being achieved) to recommend 
the implementation of the new Waste and Recycling Service outlined in Appendix I. 

4.  Report details 

4.1 As reported at Council Briefing on 11th June 2018, the waste service has a pressure 
of £700k in 2018/19, which will rise to at least £900k from 2019/20.  The combined 
potential savings available from changing to a Kerbside Sort model for recycling and 
changing to 4-weekly residual collection is currently reported to be circa £807,000 
per annum1.  This is predominantly achieved through collecting higher quality 
recycling which generates income that partially offsets collection costs. 
 

4.2 ‘Towards Zero Waste’ is the overarching waste strategy document for Wales that   
sets out the Welsh Government’s high level policies and targets. The recycling 
targets for Local Authorities within the document are rendered statutory by the 
Waste Measure (Wales) 2010.  Fines of up to £200 per tonne can be levied on 
Authorities failing to meet landfill allowance targets and the statutory recycling 
targets.  The targets for the percentage of waste reused, recycled and composted 
are 64% in 2019/20 and 70% in 2024/25.  The County met the 2019/20 target three 
years early, but recycling rates have since plateaued.  A review of Welsh 
Government’s waste collections Blueprint carried out by Eunomia in March 20162 

recognises that for higher performing authorities (such as Denbighshire), the most 

                                            
1 The financial savings are estimates, based on the latest KAT Modelling, but subject to change due 
to the uncertainty of depot costs. 
2 Review of the Welsh Government Collections Blueprint, Eunomia (March 2016) 

Page 16



effective way of further increasing recycling performance is by implementing 
restrictions on residual waste, such as reducing the size of bins or reducing the 
frequency they are collected.  Their reports concludes that it is “sensible” to 
investigate the inclusion of three or even four-weekly refuse collections into the 
standard” and argues that high quality material arising from a kerbside sort 
operation is also likely to support retention of material within the Welsh and UK 
economies – resulting in social and economic benefits in line with the objectives of 
the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

4.3 Recent statistics from neighbouring Conwy (who have trialled both 3 and 4 weekly 
residual waste collection) indicate that 4 weekly collections led to the highest 
recycling rates (14% increase on 4-weekly collection vs. a 5% increase on 3 weekly 
collection)3.  As reported at the Council Briefing session on 11th June 2018, the 
average increase in recycling performance from Welsh local authorities who have 
restricted residual waste collection is more than 8%.   

4.4 The National Assembly for Wales (Environment and Sustainability Committee - a 
Cross Party Committee) published its Enquiry into Recycling in Wales in December 
2014. In relation to increasing recycling and promoting waste reduction, the report 
stated a preference to restrictions on residual waste over enforcement and fines: 

“Softer measures to encourage higher rates of recycling, such as reducing the 
frequency and volume of residual waste collections, can have a positive effect 
if managed properly. If a broad range of materials is collected for recycling and 
composting, then residual waste at a household level should be reducing. 
Scaling back residual waste collections should not impact on those households 
that are participating fully with the waste management approach in their area.” 

4.5 At a Council Briefing session in June 2018, information was provided on five service 
design options.  The modelling identified the combined Kerbside Sort recycling and 
4-weekly residual collection option to yield the highest revenue savings (£780K), 
predominantly due to the injection of £7milliion Capital from Welsh Government to 
support the changes which significantly reduced the annualised capital investment 
required over a 7 year period. A 3.1% increase in recycling performance was also 
projected, although this is considered to be a conservative estimate.  This option 
was recognised as the one most likely to bridge the revenue funding gap within the 
service.  At the Council Briefing session on 11th June, 2018, officers committed to 
refining the costs and carry out further work on the service design to account for the 
challenges a 4-weekly residual service may pose to households that may struggle 
to adopt the “standard” collection model.  The main changes have resulted in a 
small improvement to the revenue figure of £4K, or £27k if the decision is made not 
to continue the partnership with a local Social Enterprise for textile collection 
(Section 6.3 refers).  They are detailed in Appendix III and summarised as follows:  

 Change to delivery point for recycling in the north of the county (Positive 
financial impact); 

 Increased resources for “non-standard” collections (e.g. HMO’s and sack 
customers) (negative financial impact); 

                                            
3 Higher impacts in Conwy will be realised, compared to Denbighshire, due differences in service   
design baselines and historical performance. 

Page 17



 Confirmed service design, resource levels and policy for an AHP collection 
service (nappies and incontinence products) (Neutral financial impact on 
original draft modelling); 

 Consideration of a pet waste service (Negative financial impact if implemented). 

4.6 The service model deemed to be the most economically and environmentally 
advantageous to the Council is detailed in Appendix I [A].  The standard service 
offered to the majority of households is summarised in Table 1. This will also 
include a free opt-in weekly human hygiene waste (AHP) collection service. 

4.7 Variants to the standard service will be offered to qualifying households in 
accordance with the draft Household Waste Collection Policy (Appendix I [B]).   

4.8 Households will be given 57 litres more capacity every week for managing waste.  
This is the combined impact of having 67 additional litres per week for recycling, 
and 10 litres less per week for residual waste.  Dry recycling will be increased to a 
weekly collection.  In order to fund the increase in recycling collections, and to 
encourage households to separate their rubbish, non-recyclable waste will be 
collected every 4 weeks.  Most households will qualify for a larger 240 litre bin, 
meaning non-recyclable waste capacity only reduces by 10 litres per week.  Further 
information on the container size and qualifying households is detailed in the draft 
household waste collections policy, Appendix I [A].  

Table 1: Proposed new STANDARD service provision: 

Household Waste 
Type 

Container 
Provision 

Frequency of 
collection 

(New Service) 

Weekly 
Capacity 
(Existing 
service) 

Weekly 
Capacity 

(New 
service) 

Food Waste Silver kitchen 
caddy / Orange 

kerbside Caddy / 
Compostable liners 

Weekly 

(Kerbside Sort 
Vehicle) 

23L 23L 

Dry recyclables: 
Paper, Cardboard, 
Glass bottles and jars, 
cans/tins, plastic 
bottles and containers 

Trolliboc stackable 
box system 

Weekly 

(Kerbside Sort 
Vehicle) 

120L 155L 

Textiles/shoes 

 

Red disposable 
sacks 

Fortnightly 

(Collected by 
Social Enterprise 
on main recycling 

collection day) 

35L 

Not yet county 
wide or widely 

promoted 

35L 

Small WEEE Red disposal sacks Fortnightly 
(Collected by 

Social Enterprise 
on main recycling 

collection day) 

- 30L 

Batteries Present in own 
plastic bag 

Weekly (Kerbside 
Sort Vehicle) 

- 2L 

Residual Waste Black wheeled bin Every 4 weeks 70L 60L 

Garden Waste (Opt-In 
chargeable service) 

Green Wheeled bin Every 2 weeks 140L 140L 

TOTAL   388L 445L 

Page 18



5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

5.1 Environment: Attractive and Protected, supporting well-being & economic 
prosperity: 

 The proposed service model will increase the quantity and quality of recycling 
collected from households, reducing the Council’s carbon footprint and working 
collectively with other Welsh Authorities and the Welsh Government to improve 
closed loop recycling manufacturing opportunities in the country.  The draft 
Household Waste Collections Policy will enhance the monitoring and regulation of 
the service, in order to tackle households and locations that have historically shown 
non-compliance.  This, together with the inclusion of “gull-proof” sacks will seek to 
improve Local Environmental Quality, particularly in town centre areas. 

Partnering with a Denbighshire based social enterprise will secure and long term 
employment of at least 9 people and support for at least 18 people with learning 
difficulties within Denbighshire through the collection, cleaning and re-sale of textiles. 
An average of the Social Return on Investment estimates that every £1 spent via a 
social enterprise generates £3 within the local economy using the social, 
environmental and economic factors. This means the £23,000 value from the textiles 
creates at least £69,000 within the local economy. 

5.2 Highways & Environment Service Objective - “Efficient and Well Managed”: 

The proposed service design is the lowest cost option for the Council over a seven 
year period (minimum), due to available revenue savings and the capital funding 
support offered by Welsh Government.  It will still be significantly cheaper than the 
current model beyond that initial (minimum) seven year period, although the savings 
will not be as great due to the cost of replacing the new fleet in 7-10 years’ time.  It 
will also result in the highest quality of material being captured, protecting income 
streams in the future.  It should also be considered that Welsh Government may 
introduce greater producer responsibility obligations on manufacturers in future.  
Funding arising from a refreshed Producer Responsibility Scheme could contribute 
millions of pounds to support local authority collection schemes where local 
authorities are producing recycling of high enough quality by having a kerb-side sort 
recycling collection model. 

  
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1 Welsh Government have confirmed capital funding support of £4million in 2019/20 
and a further £3million in 2020/21 for the service change project,  This funding is 
entirely dependent on Denbighshire implementing a kerbside sort operation for dry 
recycling.  Final costs relating to the depot developments necessary to support the 
proposed model are yet to be finalised, but are expected to increase the overall 
capital costs beyond the existing £7million funding envelope.  It should be noted 
that Recommendation 3.6 requires the Head of Highways and Environment to 
continue to work with Welsh Government and WRAP to secure all additional capital 
funds necessary to implement the model before asking Cabinet to approve the 
service change.  Interdependencies with other services or Partnerships are outlined 
in Appendix IV.  There are a number of interdependencies that impact, or have the 
potential to impact, on the financial modelling.   

Page 19



6.2 The net result of the latest modelling (Table 2 refers) has resulted in an increase in 
revenue savings (£27K) from the initial modelling reported at Council Briefing in 
June 2018, as the efficiencies generated from sharing depot facilities with Conwy 
for the north of the County fully offset the costs to improving the service design.  It is 
important to note that current projected saving of £807K is subject to further 
refinement once depot costs (and confirmed locations) have been finalised, and any 
additional funding requirements have been identified. It is also important to note that 
these savings are based on a baseline of service costs relevant to the modelling 
work but pre 2018/19, in order to produce comparisons of a range of service 
delivery options.  Further accounting is required once the modelling is finalised to 
calculate the actual savings in relation to the current cost of Denbighshire’s entire 
waste collection service.  

 
6.3 In all options, the current KAT modelling assumes textiles are collected by our own 

fleet and we retain the value from the sale of the material (£23,000 income).  In 
Appendix III, officers outline the socio-economic benefits of working with a local 
Social Enterprise.  This would mean the £23,000 income continues to be retained 
by the organisation that collects it.  Members are requested to recommend the 
continuation of this Partnership under the new service design, recognising the 
overall impact would be a net reduction of revenue savings across all options 
(Recommendation 3.3).   For the proposed option this would mean the current 
projected revenue saving falls to £784K. 

Table 2: Current draft modelling: Projected revenue implications of all options based on 
current modelling assumptions 

 

6.4 In the first year of rolling out the new service (2020/21) there will be one-off costs to 
mobilise the proposed service model not included in the KAT modelling.  This will 
include wheeled bin recovery and roll-out, ICT time to design and amend online 
forms, additional call centre / waste technical team staffing resource and 
communications campaign budget.  It is assumed these costs will be met from 
existing waste reserves.   

Page 20



6.5 A £3.1million waste reserve will support the Waste and Recycling budget from 
2018/19 to 2020/21, in order to address the current budget pressure that exists 
within the service and to facilitate the implementation of a new lower cost service.  
The full year effect of any savings arising from these changes will not be realised 
until at least 2021/22.  It is important to note that the waste reserves are not 
anticipated to be enough to support the service beyond 2020/21.  Further delays to 
the decision to implement a new waste model could mean that there will be a 
shortfall of reserves.  Therefore the identification of additional capital monies, and 
the finalisation of depot locations are critical to the affordability of this project. 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  

An assessment was under taken by representatives of the Waste Project Board in 
July 2018 and reviewed by internal “Critical Friends” panel in September 2018.  The 
Assessment was amended in October as a result of further consultation with 
organisations representing people with disabilities and vulnerable adults, and also 
with a social enterprise currently responsible for collecting textiles on behalf of the 
Council across the higher density areas. Overall, the proposed service changes 
have a net positive impact. Detail of the WBIA can be found in Appendix II. 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

The following consultation has been carried out to inform the proposed service 
design: 
 

8.1 Recycle More, Waste Less Survey and drop-in sessions 

 This survey was promoted to Denbighshire residents in order to understand current 
capacity levels of existing waste containers and potential demand for larger bins and 
alternative services for hygiene waste and pet waste.  We received 2300 on line 
survey responses and a further 150 hard copies, that had been made available in 
One Stop Shops and libraries. The survey was further promoted through a series of 
publicised roadshows held in libraries across the County. The detailed survey 
responses are shown in Appendix V.  The key findings are: 

 Residents report that current recycling bins get fuller than residual bins – based 
on current fortnightly collections,  responses show 60% reported their Blue Bin 
was full and a further 25% reported it was overflowing; 46% reported their Black 
Bin was full with 18% reporting it was overflowing; 

 Residents would like further details / clarity on what can be recycled – responses 
show 60% would like more information about what can be recycled; 

 Residents would like additional recycling capacity – responses show 49% would 
like extra space in their recycling containers; 

 Residents would like to be able to recycle a wider range of items – responses 
show 67% would like collection of more items that can be recycled; 

 We were contacted by a number of residents currently on sack collections who 
were concerned that the new service would not meet their needs. Assurances 
were given to those respondents that households on sacks would be provided 
with an appropriate system to be able to separate their waste, and store their non-
recyclable rubbish. 

 

Page 21



8.2 Well-being Impact Assessment Panel 

 Feedback from an internal Well Being Impact Assessment Critical Friends panel has 
informed the service design.  In addition, targeted consultation with organisations 
representing disabled service users has been undertaken which identified the need 
to offer a range of recycling container types to suit individuals with different needs.  
Strong links have been now been established to ensure that barriers to using the 
standard “Trolliboc” or alternative containers are minimised and mechanisms have 
been identified to provide service users with support whilst getting used to the new 
service. 

 
8.3 Elected Member Involvement  

The Lead Member for Highways, Planning & Sustainable Travel is a member of the 
Waste Project Board overseeing the development of the business case.  Three 
separate reports/presentations have been taken to Cabinet Briefing in February, April 
and May 2018.  A presentation was also given to all Members at a Council Briefing 
session on 11th June 2018.  Drop-in sessions were widely communicated/promoted, 
and a number of Elected Members came to the sessions.  This report to Scrutiny also 
forms part of the engagement process with Elected Members.   

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement  

9.1  The proposal demonstrates how recycling rates can be improved with a change in 
collection routines. The proposal should also address the existing budget pressure 
within the existing collection system. The pressure is being funded from reserves in 
the current and next financial year. Grant support from Welsh Government is vital in 
being able to deliver the capital changes required.  
 

9.2 10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

10.1 A risk register is being maintained and monitored by the Waste Project Board, and 
the current version (as of 11th October 2018) is attached at Appendix VI.   
 

10.2 The greatest risk, which is most likely to prevent the project from being 
implemented, or cause significant delay is the risk relating to a capital funding 
shortfall due to the cost of depot infrastructure required to receive, sort and bail dry 
kerbside recyclables.  The revenue savings outlined in this report have been based 
on delivering recycling to an existing bulking station in Abergele, Conwy to service 
the North of our County, which requires substantial modification and expansion.  A 
new waste transfer and bulking facility is also being considered at Lôn Parcwr, 
Ruthin to receive all waste and recycling from the South, as the existing facility is 
not suitable. 

10.3 Further work is being undertaken to firm up costs of the two facilities, as this 
currently includes heavily weighted contingency costs, as we await the outcome of 
site investigation works to understand the ground conditions and arising 
implications.  In addition, Officers are pursuing other depot options to determine if 
there are any other lower cost options, and to determine which options could qualify 
for funding from the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership 
(NWRWTP) and/or further funding from Welsh Government.  Appendix VII outlines 
the range of depot options under consideration at the time of writing. 

Page 22



11. Power to make the Decision  

 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. 
Section 7.4.2 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that Scrutiny can “make 
recommendations to the Cabinet and/or appropriate Committee and/or Council 
arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process”  

 
12.      List of Appendices 
 
APPENDIX I [A]   Proposed Waste and Recycling Service Design 
APPENDIX I [B]   Draft Household Waste Collections Policy 
APPENDIX II  Well Being Impact Assessment Summary 
APPENDIX III KAT Modelling Report (Depots: Gofer, Conwy and Lôn Parcwr, Ruthin) 
APPENDIX IV Project Interdependences 
APPENDIX V Outcome of the Recycle More, Waste Less Survey 
APPENDIX VI Project Risk Register 
APPENDIX VII Depot Options summary 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  

Waste and Recycling Manager 

Tel:  01824 712103 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX I [A]: Proposed Service Design 

 

Table 1: STANDARD SERVICE PROVISION 

Household 
Waste Type 

Container Provision Frequency of 
collection 

(New Service) 

Collection method 

(New Service) 

Weekly 
Capacity 

(New service) 

Regulation 

Food Waste Silver kitchen caddy, orange 
kerbside caddy and supply of 

compostable liners 

 

 

Weekly 

 

Kerbside Sort 

(DCC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

23L Mandatory requirement 
that will be strictly 

enforced 

All food waste presented 
is only accepted in the 
Orange Collection bin 

Participation will be 
monitored. 

Dry recyclables: 
Paper, 
Cardboard, Glass 
bottles and jars, 
cans/tins, plastic 
bottles and 
containers 

Trolliboc stackable box system 

 

 

Weekly 

 

155L All recyclable items 
presented are not allowed 
in the black residual bin. 

Incorrect items will be left 
in the Trolliboc so 

households can dispose 
of correctly. 

Brown card to be 
presented in a re-useable 

sack, attached to the 
Trolliboc. 

Household 
Batteries 

Present in small reusable 
pouch. 

 
 

Weekly  2L Residents may take 
batteries to a range of 

outlets or present 
kerbside.  Batteries are 
not allowed in the black 

residual bin. 

P
age 25



Textiles/shoes 

 

Red disposable sack 
(replacement left at time of 

collection) 

 

 
 

Fortnightly 

 

Social Enterprise (same day as 
Kerbside Sort) 

 

 
 

 

35L Optional service as 
residents may send 
textiles to range of 

charities 

Textiles are not allowed in 
the black bin.   

Textiles must be kept dry 

Small electrical 
devices (WEEE 
e.g. toasters, 
kettles, shavers) 

Fortnightly  30L Electrical items must be 
small enough to fit in the 

sack provided, due to 
limited space on 

collection vehicle.  Larger 
items will be rejected and 
residents advised to take 

to nearest Household 
Recycling Centre. 

Residual Waste 

(Non-recyclable 
waste) 

Black wheeled bin (Up to 240l)  
 

 

Every 4 weeks Refuse Collection Vehicle 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60L All residual waste must be 
fully contained within the 

allocated receptacles.  
Side waste is not 

permitted and will not be 
taken.  Households failing 

to separate recyclables 
from the residual stream 

will be subject to a 4 
stage 

advisory/enforcement 
procedure.  

Garden Waste  Green Wheeled bin (140l) 

 

Every 2 weeks Unlimited 
capacity may 
be purchased 

Opt-In chargeable service 

Garden waste is not 
allowed in the black 

residual bin.  

 

 

P
age 26



Table 2:  Service design: Communal bin store areas 

Household 
Waste Type 

Container Provision Frequency of 
collection 

(New Service) 

Collection method 

(New Service) 

Regulation 

Food Waste Individual silver kitchen caddy 
and liners/ Orange kerbside 

collection bin(s) – lined weekly 

 

 

 

 

Weekly 

 

Multi-stream Collections (DCC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mandatory requirement 
that will be strictly 

enforced 

All food waste presented 
is only accepted in the 
Orange Collection bin 

Participation will be 
monitored. 

Dry recyclables: 
Paper, 
Cardboard, Glass 
bottles and jars, 
cans/tins, plastic 
bottles and 
containers 

Separate communal 
receptacles- 2 or 4 wheeled 

bins. At least one bin for each 
material stream of appropriate 

size. 

 

               

Bespoke 
frequency per 

location 
dependant on 
bin store size. 

 

Containers will have 
specially modified lids 

(restricted apertures) to 
discourage contamination 

Contaminated bins will not 
be emptied on collection 

day. 

All households sharing 
the bin store will be 

issued with guidance and 
legal notice setting out the 

Council’s requirements. 

Council will liaise with 
property management 

companies over 
compliance issues, 
including charging 

structures for 
contaminated recycling 

removal. 

Household 
Batteries 

Not accepted 

 

 

NA N/A Residents may take 
batteries to a range of 

outlets countywide. 

P
age 27



 

Textiles/shoes 

 

Red disposable sack 
(replacement left at time of 

collection) 

 

 
 

 

Fortnightly 

 

Social Enterprise (same day as 
Kerbside Sort) 

 

 
 

 

Optional service as 
residents may send 
textiles to range of 

charities. 

Textiles are not allowed in 
the black bin.   

Textiles must be kept dry. 

Small electrical 
devices (WEEE 
e.g. Toasters, 
kettles, shavers) 

Fortnightly  Electrical items must be 
small enough to fit in the 

sack provided, due to 
limited space on collection 
vehicle.  Larger items will 
be rejected and residents 
advised to take to nearest 

Household Recycling 
Centre. 

Residual Waste 

(Non-recyclable 
waste) 

Communal receptacles- 2 or 4 
wheeled bins   

 
 

Bespoke 
frequency per 

location 
dependant on 
bin store size 

(Minimum 
frequency 
fortnightly, 
maximum 

frequency 4 
weekly) 

 

Refuse Collection Vehicle 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All residual waste must be 
fully contained within the 

allocated receptacles.  
Side waste is not 

permitted and will not be 
taken.  Council will liaise 

with property 
management companies 
over compliance issues, 

including charging 
structures for excess 
waste removal due to 

non-compliance. 

Garden Waste  Green Wheeled bin (140l) 

 

Every 2 weeks Opt-In chargeable service 

Garden waste is not 
allowed in the black 

residual bin.  

 

P
age 28



Table 3: Households on sack collections due to storage/access issues 

Household 
Waste Type 

Container Provision Frequency of 
collection 

(New Service) 

Collection method 

(New Service) 

Weekly 
Capacity 

(New service) 

Regulation 

Food Waste Silver kitchen caddy, orange 
kerbside caddy and supply of 

compostable liners 

 

 

Weekly 

 

Kerbside Sort 

(DCC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

23L Mandatory requirement 
that will be strictly 

enforced 

All food waste presented 
is only accepted in the 
Orange Collection bin 

Participation will be 
monitored. 

Dry recyclables: 
Paper, 
Cardboard, Glass 
bottles and jars, 
cans/tins, plastic 
bottles and 
containers 

Box and/or bag system 
(choice) 

 

Weekly 

 

Bespoke Separate bags and boxes 
for each material stream 

All recyclable items 
collected kerbside are not 

allowed in the black 
residual bin.  Non-
recyclable items 

presented will be return to 
resident. 

Boxes presented with lids, 
bags presented sealed. 

 

Household 
Batteries 

Present in small reusable 
pouch. 

 
 

 

Weekly  2L Residents may take 
batteries to a range of 

outlets or present 
kerbside.  Batteries are 
not allowed in the black 

residual bin. 

P
age 29



Textiles/shoes 

 

Red disposable sack 
(replacement left at time of 

collection if property address 
displayed on bag) 

 

 
 

Fortnightly 

 

Social Enterprise (same day as 
Kerbside Sort) 

 

 
 

 

35L Optional service as 
residents may send 
textiles to range of 

charities 

Textiles are not allowed in 
the black bin.   

Textiles must be kept dry 

Replacement sacks can 
be requested on demand, 
as well as replenished at 

the point of collection. 

Small electrical 
devices (WEEE 
e.g. toasters, 
kettles, shavers) 

Fortnightly  30L Electrical items must be 
small enough to fit in the 

sack provided, due to 
limited space on collection 
vehicle.  Larger items will 
be rejected and residents 
advised to take to nearest 

Household Recycling 
Centre. 

Residual Waste 

(Non-recyclable 
waste) 

 Pink see through disposable 
sack.   

 

 
 

Gull proof re-usable sack in 
which to present pink 

sack(subject to outcome of 
trials) 

 

Every 1 or 2 
weeks 

depending on 
property 

restrictions 

Refuse Collection Vehicle 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35L All residual waste must be 
fully contained within the 
sealed disposable sack 

Side waste is not 
permitted and will not be 

taken.  Households failing 
to separate recyclables 
from the residual stream 

will be subject to a 4 
stage 

advisory/enforcement 
procedure. 

P
age 30



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Garden Waste  Green dumpy sack 

 

Every 2 weeks Unlimited 
capacity may 
be purchased 

Opt-In chargeable service 

Garden waste is not 
allowed in the black 

residual bin. 

  

 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX I [B]  Household Waste Collection Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  STANDARD COLLECTION SERVICE 

 Waste Type Container Service Frequency Comments 

NEW Residual or non-
recyclable waste 

BLACK wheeled 
bin (max. 240 
litres) 

Every 4 weeks. Consultation showed that many residents did not want a larger black bin. Many that will need a 
larger bin have one already. Therefore, residents that need to swap a smaller bin for a 240 litre black 
bin will need to apply to the Council. 

NEW Dry recyclable 
materials 

COLOUR(S) TBC 
155 litre 
trolley-box 

Weekly. Blue recycling wheeled bins will be replaced with trolley-boxes at the launch of the scheme. One 
trolley-box will be issued per household. The same range of dry recyclable materials will be 
collected. Residents will be asked to separate recyclable material by type across the three 
compartments. 

 Food waste ORANGE 23 
litre caddy etc. 

Weekly. No change to the existing service. The standard containers are 1 x 23 litre orange caddy, 1 x 5 litre 
silver kitchen caddy & continuous supply of liners. 

NEW Textiles RED single-use 
plastic sack 

Every 2 weeks. Residents can set out full sacks of clean textiles with the trolley-box on the designated collection day 
and a replacement sack will be left. Until now this service has been provided to around 20,000 
households in Denbighshire through a partnership with the social enterprise, Co-options. 

NEW Small WEEE 
(waste electrical 
& electronic 
equipment) 

COLOUR TBC 
single-use 
plastic bag 

Every 2 weeks. Residents can set out bags of small WEEE (e.g. mobile phones, kettles, hair-dryers etc.) with the 
trolley-box on the designated collection day and a replacement sack will be left. Any electrical 
equipment will be collected provided it fits in the supplied bag. All cables and leads will also be 
recycled. 

NEW Batteries Reusable pouch Weekly. Residents can place all domestic batteries, standard or re-chargeable, in a reusable pouch and 
attach to the trolley-box on any collection day.  

P
age 33



2.  NON-STANDARD COLLECTION SERVICE (properties unsuitable for wheeled containers) 

 Waste Type Container Service Frequency Comments 

NEW Residual or non-
recyclable waste 

PINK TINT 
single-use 
plastic sack 

No less than every 
2 weeks. 

Households with the non-standard service MUST use DCC issued pink sacks for collection. No other 
sacks will be collected with non-compliance being an enforcement issue. Each household will be 
provided with one roll of 52 sacks each year and a protective “seagull-proof” receptacle in which to 
place sacks for collection. 

NEW Dry recyclable 
materials 

Re-usable 
lidded boxes or 
bags (max. 75 
litres) 

Weekly. Residents will be issued with lidded boxes or bags according to which suits their storage restrictions 
better. A trolley-box will be issued if that is possible. The same range of dry recyclable materials will 
be collected as with the standard service.  

NEW Food waste ORANGE 23 
litre caddy etc. 

Weekly. This will be a new service to most households with the non-standard service. The standard 
containers are 1 x 23 litre orange caddy, 1 x 5 litre silver kitchen caddy & continuous supply of liners. 
Where space is very restricted, a 10 litre orange caddy that can be used indoors can be issued. 

NEW Textiles RED single-use 
plastic sack 

Every 2 weeks. Residents can set out full sacks of clean textiles with their recycling on the designated collection day 
and a replacement sack will be left. 

NEW Small WEEE 
(waste electrical 
& electronic 
equipment) 

COLOUR TBC 
single-use 
plastic bag 

Every 2 weeks. Residents can set out bags of small WEEE (e.g. mobile phones, kettles, hair-dryers etc.) with their 
recycling on the designated collection day and a replacement sack will be left. Any electrical 
equipment will be collected provided it fits in the supplied bag. All cables and leads will also be 
recycled. 

NEW Batteries Reusable pouch Weekly 
(Househo0lds 
serviced by 
kerbside sort 
vehicles only) 

Residents can place all domestic batteries, standard or re-chargeable, in a reusable pouch and 
attach to the trolley-box on any collection day. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 34



3.  COLLECTIONS: WHERE & WHEN 

 Term Definition Further information 

 Standard 
Collection 
Point 

The standard collection point for all collection services is the point 
at which a resident's property, or shared property meets the public 
highway. This applies to collections from all households unless a 
Non-Standard Collection Point has been agreed. 

Residents can present containers on their own property provided they can 
be removed and replaced by the Council operative without stepping onto 
private land. Containers set out behind closed gates will not be collected. 

 Non-
Standard 
Collection 
Point 

Where deemed appropriate by a Council waste manager, waste 
will be collected from a location other than the Standard Collection 
Point. This point may be on private property or on the public 
highway. 

Reasons the Council may agree to a Non-Standard Collection Point include 
the safety of its staff or operational efficiency. 

 Collection 
Day 

The Council sets a collection day for every aspect of the Standard 
Service, Non-Standard Service and any Optional Services in place. 
The Council does not guarantee that all collections will take place 
on the same day of the week. 

Every year, residents will be provided with a printed calendar showing the 
days of collection for the services provided by the Council. Collection 
information and calendars are also available on the Council’s website. 
The Council is giving consideration to the development of a smartphone 
app and offering a text service to remind residents of collection days. 

 Collection 
Time 

The Council does not set times for collections. Collections may take 
place any time between 07:00 and 15:00 hours, Monday to Friday. 
Householders must set out waste by 7:00am in order to ensure 
they are collected. 

Whilst most collections are made later than 07:00 hours, no particular time 
cannot be guaranteed. Roadworks, accidents or weather conditions can 
make it necessary to change collection routes at short notice thereby 
affecting collection times for residents. 
Waste can be set out after 17:00 hours the evening before collection 
provided this does not cause a nuisance. 

 

 

 

4.  ASSISTED COLLECTION 

 Term Definition Further information 

 Assisted 
collection 

Where there is no person resident at the property 
capable of taking waste to the standard collection point 
the Council will offer an Assisted Collection. 
Council operatives will collect and return all containers 
to an agreed location. 

The resident, or their representative, must apply for an Assisted Collection through 
the C360 CRM system. During the application process the resident will be asked to set 
a review date so the Council can periodically check whether assistance is still needed. 
The Council normally considers people aged from 12 years old capable of moving bins 
to the collection point. 

 

 

 

P
age 35



5.  ADDITIONAL WASTE 

 Waste Type Policy Further information 

 Residual 
Waste 

Residual waste bins (regardless of size) must be presented on 
collection day with lids closed and with no additional sacks 
either on top or to the side of the bin. Additional residual waste 
will not be removed. 

The standard 240 litre bin provided by the Council is deemed appropriate for 
all households given the range of collection services available. Residents with 
the Non-Standard Collection Model may only set out refuse in the pink tinted 
sacks provided by the Council. 
If a household has additional residual waste for disposal for any reason, it can 
be held over for the next collection, taken to a Recycling Park or an additional 
collection can be arranged at a cost by calling the Customer Service Centre or 
at a One Stop Shop. 

 Dry Recycling Additional recyclable material will be collected as a one-off 
provided it is presented, appropriately sorted, in a cardboard 
box next to the trolley box on collection day. 

In the case of a household regularly creating more recycling than the trolley 
box will contain will be offered additional re-usable containers. 

 Food Waste Additional food waste will be collected if the silver caddy, or 
other receptacle containing bagged food waste, is set out with 
the orange caddy. 
Food waste must not be placed in the residual waste (black 
bin). 

Households regularly creating more food waste than the orange caddy will 
contain will be offered additional capacity. Customers can use an online form 
or contact the CSC to order an additional orange caddy. 

 Textiles Every time textiles are collected a replacement sack will be left 
with the resident. This sack can be re-filled and set out for the 
next collection. 
The Council will not collect more than one sack of textiles per 
household per collection. 

The Council needs to manage capacity for textile waste on the collection 
vehicles and therefore encourages residents to set out smaller quantities, 
more frequently as it cannot cope with mass clear-outs. 
Residents with lots of clean textiles for recycling are encouraged to use the 
many bring sites, Recycling Parks or charity shops that offer this service. 

 WEEE Every time WEEE is collected a replacement sack will be left 
with the resident. This sack can be re-filled and set out for the 
next collection. 
The Council will not collect more than one sack of WEEE per 
household per collection. 

The Council needs to manage capacity for WEEE on the collection vehicles and 
therefore encourages residents to set out smaller quantities, more frequently 
as it cannot cope with mass clear-outs. 
Residents with more WEEE or larger items of WEEE for recycling are 
encouraged to use one of the staffed Recycling Parks. 

 Batteries Residents can set out as many household batteries as they wish, 
provided they are contained in pots or tubs as set out in this 
policy. 

In the unlikely event that a household regularly sets out unreasonable 
quantities of batteries, the Council will make contact in order to ensure the 
situation is being dealt with correctly. 

 Garden 
Waste 

Garden waste bins must be presented on collection day with 
lids closed and with no additional sacks either on top or to the 
side of the bin. Additional garden waste will not be removed. 
Garden waste must not be placed in the residual waste (black 
bin). 

This is a chargeable service. Customers are advised to hold excess waste until 
the next collection or consider upgrading from 1 bin to the 2 bin service if a 
regular occurrence, compost extra garden waste at home or take it to a 
staffed Recycling Park. 

 

P
age 36



 

 

6.  OPTIONAL SERVICES 

 Waste Type Policy Further information 

 Garden waste The Council offers a fortnightly garden 
waste collection service to all households 
in receipt of the Standard Collection 
Service. As a chargeable service, 
householders can opt for service using 
either one or two 140 litre green wheelie 
bins. 

Householders are required to take out a subscription annually. Payment can be made 
online, by telephone, at One Stop Shops and by an annual Direct Debit. 
Customers that do not choose the Direct Debit option need to renew their subscription each 
year. 

NEW Absorbent hygiene 
products (AHP), 
e.g. nappies, 
incontinence 
products 

The Council provides a weekly collection of 
AHP waste to households with permanent 
residents creating this type of waste. 

Households are required to register for this service using an online form or via the Customer 
Service Centre. During the application process the resident will be asked to set a review date 
so the Council can periodically check whether the service is still needed. Households making 
use of this service will have single-use plastic sacks provided for this purpose. 
Households receiving visitors that create AHP waste can dispose of this material in their 
residual waste, at a staffed Recycling Park or by asking the visitors to take the waste home 
with them. 
This service is not available to users of animal AHP products. 

 

 

 

7.  OTHER WASTES 

 Waste Type Policy Further information 

 Pet Waste Pet waste of all kinds should be placed in the 
residual waste for disposal. 

The Council advises that most pet wastes are bagged before placing in the residual 
waste and that It is disposed of as it arises and not stored up. 

 Stoma-care and 
other health-related 
wastes 

Stoma-care waste and other health-related wastes 
should be placed in the residual waste for disposal. 

In normal circumstances these wastes are not considered clinical wastes. Where a 
medical practitioner believes a separate clinical waste collection service is needed 
they will arrange it. 

 Sharps (e.g. needles 
& needle-sticks) 

Under no circumstances are sharps to be placed in 
any of the waste containers provided by the 
Council.  

The prescribing medical practitioner will accept full sharps containers and dispose 
of them safely for householders. 

 

 

P
age 37



 

8.  NEW OCCUPIERS OF PROPERTIES 

 Situation Policy Further Information 

NEW Requesting containers for 
newly built or newly 
refurbished properties 

Occupants of newly-built or refurbished houses 
where no containers have been issued in the past 
will have to pay for the delivery of black residual 
waste bins. 
Other containers will be provided without a 
charge. 

Householders can request containers through the C360 customer portal, by 
telephone to the Customer Service Centre. 
The cost of a black residual waste bin for the Standard Collection Service is 
£18.00 plus £8.00 delivery/admin charge. 

NEW Requesting containers for 
new occupants of 
previously occupied 
properties, i.e. new tenants 
or new owners 

Occupants of properties are expected to leave all 
the bins at a property when they leave. 
Charges will be made where a new black residual 
waste bin is needed. 

Householders can request containers through the C360 customer portal, by 
telephone to the Customer Service Centre. 
The cost of a black residual waste bin for the Standard Collection Service is 
£18.00 plus £8.00 delivery/admin charge. 
The Council will encourage all householders not to remove bins when vacating 
a property. 

 New occupant of a 
property has acquired bins 
that are full or contain the 
wrong materials 

The Council offers a collection service to new 
occupiers of properties to empty waste 
containers. 

Householders can request this service through the C360 customer portal, by 
telephone to the Customer Service Centre. 
The cost of this service will be £8.00 per visit plus £8.00 delivery/admin 
charge. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38



 

 

9.  REPLACEMENT CONTAINERS & ASSOCIATED CHARGES 

 Waste Type Policy Further Information 

NEW Black residual waste 
wheelie bins 

The Council will charge householders to replace a 
black residual waste bin in all circumstances 
except in cases where loss or damage is due to 
the Council. 
Where appropriate, new lids, wheels or axles will 
be fitted free of charge. 

Householders can request replacement containers through the C360 
customer portal, by telephone to the Customer Service Centre.  Where 
appropriate, the householder will be told to make the old bin available for 
collection (or repair). 
The charge for a replacement black bin will be £18.00 plus £8.00 
delivery/admin charge. 

NEW Replacement trolley boxes The Council will replace trolley boxes free of 
charge in all circumstances.  
Where appropriate, new boxes, flaps, lids, wheels 
or axles will be fitted free of charge. 

Householders can request replacement containers through the C360 
customer portal, by telephone to the Customer Service Centre. The 
householder will be told to make the old bin available for collection (or 
repair). 
 

 Replacement food waste 
containers 

Generally, the Council will replace all food waste 
containers and provide liners free of charge 
because they are relatively low cost items. The 
Council reserves the right to charge a 
householder if it sees a pattern of requests that 
cause concern. 

Householders can request replacement containers through the C360 
customer portal, by telephone to the Customer Service Centre. 

NEW Replacement textile sacks Sacks will be provided free of charge. Householder will be left a replacement sack whenever a sack is set out for 
collection. A single sack will be issued to residents on request. 

NEW Replacement WEEE sacks Sacks will be provided free of charge. Householder will be left a replacement sack whenever a sack is set out for 
collection. A single sack will be issued to residents on request. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



10.  MISSED COLLECTIONS 

 Term Definition Further information 

 Missed 
Collection 
Report 

Residents can report a Missed Collection 
either online or to the CSC. Missed 
Collections should be reported by close of 
business of the working day following the 
scheduled collection. Failing this, it may 
not be practicable to make a collection and 
the problem will be resolved by other 
means. 

All Missed Collection reports are compared with reports made by the relevant collection team. Any 
dispute may be settled using footage from the collection vehicle's cameras (where available). 
The Council will either accept or reject a report of a missed collection. The outcome is reported to 
the householders using the C360 system.  
Note: Waste that is not collected because the bins were not at the Standard Collection Point when 
the relevant collection vehicle passed or recycling that is not collected because it is contaminated 
are not missed collections. 

 Accepted 
Missed 
Collection 

This is where the Council accepts that a 
collection was missed. 

Where a Missed Collection Report is accepted, and the report made by close of business of the 
working day following the scheduled collection, a collection team will return to collect by the end 
of the working day following the day of acceptance. 
If a Missed Collection Report is accepted but the report itself was not made by close of business of 
the working day following the scheduled collection the Council will seed to remedy the situation 
but it may not be the case that a collection vehicle returns to collect the waste. 

 Rejected 
Missed 
Collection 

This is where the Council does not accept 
that a collection was missed. 

Amongst other reasons, the Council will reject Missed Collection Reports in cases where the bins 
were not at the Standard Collection Point when the relevant collection vehicle passed or where 
recycling presented for collection that is not collected because it is contaminated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 40



11. THE LAW AROUND WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES 

Area  Legal or Policy Position Further Information 

The law governing the duties 
of Local Authorities and the 
collection of household waste. 

Section 45(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 places a duty on councils like Denbighshire 
County Council to collect household waste from 
domestic properties in their administrative area. 

Councils have an exception from collecting where "in the opinion of the 
authority" costs may be "unreasonably high".  
It also allows for charges to be made for the collection of certain household 
wastes, e.g. bulky items, but that those costs must be "reasonable". 

The powers that Local 
Authorities have over how 
waste is collected. 

Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act 
gives Councils powers over every aspect of how 
household waste is collected. 

The law allows Denbighshire to specify: - 
1.) size and type of collection receptacles 
2.) where receptacles must be placed for collection 
3.) the materials which may, or may not, be put in each receptacle 
4.) charges for the provision of receptacles 

The charges Local Authorities 
can make for the collection of 
certain types of household 
waste 

The Controlled Waste (England & Wales) 
Regulations 2012 set out the types of waste for 
which Local Authorities can make charges to collect 
from households within their administration. 

Section 4 of the Regulations set out that charges can be made for the collection 
of various types of waste, including bulky household items and household garden 
waste. 

How does the Council use its 
powers to enforce these laws 

The Council wants all residents to participate fully 
in recycling and the minimisation of unnecessary 
waste. It seeks to engage with residents 
experiencing problems long before enforcement 
action is considered. However the Council will take 
enforcement action where it believes it has 
exhausted all other means of encouraging 
residents to use the waste service correctly. 

Where necessary, the Council will take enforcement action in a number of areas, 
including: - 
1.) repeated contamination of any recycling 
2.) repeated presentation of side waste 
3.) repeatedly putting recyclable materials, including garden waste, in residual 
waste containers 
4.) repeatedly setting waste out early and/or not bringing emptied containers 
back in promptly 
5.) fly-tipping and littering 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OPTION 5 (Preferred) -
Weekly Kerbside Sort
(including food waste), 4-
weekly residual, AHP service
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 407

Brief description:

This assessment is required as the Council needs to fundamentally
change the way we collect household waste to further improve recycling
in the County as part of strategy to meet Welsh Government 70%
recycling target by 2024/25 and to address on-going budget pressure
expected to rise to £900,000 by 2019/20 due to the current cost of
sending our mixed blue bin recycling for further separation at a Materials
recovery Facility. In Option 5 (preferred) the comingled blue recycling
240l bin would be replaced with a TrolliBocs System, where residents
present sorted waste into separate stackable containers. The Trollibocs
and the existing food waste caddy would be collected weekly on the
same vehicle, resulting in resource revenue savings from the provision
of higher quality, pre-sorted recycling. . Residual waste would be
collected every 4 weeks in a 240l black bin (as opposed to fortnightly in
a 140/180l bin) which is projected to reduce the amount of waste that
could have been recycled going in the black bin (currently 51% of items
in the black bin could have been recycled on our other kerbside
services). An optional human hygiene waste service would be offered to
remove "smelly waste" from the residual bin where required. New
recycling waste streams would be targeted, including batteries, small
electrical, electronic equipment (WEEE) and textiles and collected on the
same day as the recycling, but every fortnight. Currently residents put
paper, card, wax cartons, plastic containers/bottles, can and glass
bottles/jars altogether in a 240litre blue bin which is collected
fortnightly.

Date Completed: 19/10/2018 08:29:46 Version: 4Page 43



Completed by: Tara Dumas

Responsible Service: Highways & Environmental Services

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

All Residents / Households in Denbighshire; Operational Waste Team as
new model rolled out

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 44



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 27 / 30.

Implications of the score

Implementing the preferred option will align DCC to the Welsh Government waste collection
blueprint, meaning that we are operating to a consistent approach to other Welsh LA's in order to
maximise the quantity and quality of recyclable household waste we collect. The preferred option
seeks to restrict residual capacity further than the blueprint by The Welsh Government have carried
out relevant sustainability and economic appraisals on their blue print (Independently reviewed in
March 2016 by Eunomia) to determine it to be the most economically and environmentally practical
approach to managing household waste.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

Overall the proposed project to Remodel the Waste Service Collection should have positive impacts
in terms of a prosperous and resilient and a globally responsible Denbighshire as the new service will
increase recycling performance by at least 3%. The higher quality recyclable stream will support the
adoption of EU Circular Economy measures and the Welsh Economic Action Plan. The model is also
the most cost efficient of all options considered, bringing in a new income stream that protects other
council services from further resource reductions. There is a neutral impact on equality due to the
introduction of a new service to deal with hygiene waste sometimes produced by young families and
the elderly. We have reviewed (currently in draft) our waste policies to ensure exemptions can be
awarded to households that struggle to participate fully in the recycling service for genuine physical
or metal health reasons. There are no health implications for the new service. Residual waste will be
collected less frequently but smelly waste such as nappies and food waste will be collected weekly.
There is a neutral impact on vibrant culture and welsh language as all communications will be
available in Welsh and English. There will be a significant focus on community engagement
throughout and post implementation, encouraging intergenerational learning (young people as
ambassadors) and motivational communications material. There is a neutral impact on cohesivePage 45



communities as the new waste model supports and strengthens a social enterprise operating model
for the collection and re-use of textiles, and the service changes are supported through a new (draft)
household waste collection policy, to support the regulation of the new operating model.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 46



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The new waste service will secure the long term future of the service and
associated jobs and importantly contribute to increasing recycling rates in
the County which will minimise residual waste generated by the County's
residents. There is an overall reduction in the Council's carbon footprint
through enhanced capture of recycling, especially food waste. Materials
recycled are of higher quality which will help stimulate growth in the
manufacturing industry within the UK.

Further actions
required

Maximising the positive impacts from higher recycling rates will be
dependant on undertaking a comprehensive communication campaign and
ongoing education strategy that provides both instructional and
motivational information to encourage people to take the extra effort to
recycle more and separate their household waste items into various
containers. A YouGov Survey stated that 70% of people want to know
what happens to their rubbish and 32% would be more likely to separate
their materials if they knew what happened to them. the Viridor Recycling
Index 2017 (consumer survey) showed that only a quarter of people
believed their waste was properly recycled and showed a clear need for
better education, with seven in ten (69%) people feeling frustrated about
not having enough education materials on recycling. There is an
opportunity to re-engage with Denbighshire citizens to provide the
information that will inform and influence pro-environmental behaviours.
Consideration to reducing manual handling concerns will be given when
specifying the new kerbside recycling vehicles, including consultation with
Unions and the workforce. W and R team to investigate introduction of a
"ready for work" programme to train up new operatives (workforce
succession planning) and career pathways opportunities for existing
employees to upskill.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Application of the waste hierarchy, enhanced opportunity for closed loop
recycling, greater quantities of waste recycled, less vehicle passes to each
households over a 4 week period, vehicle haulage movements as
recycling is bailed locally - so overall greater environmental benefits.
Increased in recycling performance of 3.1% projected. There is a wide
evidence base to show that Kerbside Sort yields a lower carbon footprint
than co-mingled collections. The carbon impacts of different methods of
collection and post collection sorting were shown by the ADAS report for
London Borough of Camden which stated that: “The carbon footprint of the
whole process for the co-mingled collection, transfer and MRF is 77%
greater than for the kerbside sorted recyclate collection system.” 
High quality materials are more likely to be used in closed loop recycling
where glass bottles and jars are recycled into similar products, paper into
paper and so on. The carbon benefits of the closed loop recycling of glass
were demonstrated in a 2006 paper "The impact of the carbon agenda on
the waste management business", Grant Thornton, Oakdene Hollins.
The reduced carbon impact of kerbside sort vehicles compared to large
Refuse Collection Vehicles currently used to collect recycling in DCC are
considerably lower, as supported by the following paper "Kerbside
Recycling in Wales: Environmental Costs, Waste and Resources action
Programme (WRAP), March 2009.Page 47



Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

All new waste collection rounds will undertake route optimisation analysis
to reduce unnecessary mileage and optimise efficiency, as well as round
risk assessments to avoid traffic congestion where practical. The changes
will be supported by a communications plan, to include face to face public
engagement, a schools education package, and revised instructional
material. Option 5 will result in significant capital investment in local
authority depots (North Wales) and new waste containers. There may be
an opportunity to combine the provision of salt barns with the depot
bulking facilities at one of the sites, improving the way we manage winter
maintenance resources.

Economic
development

Collected recycling will be of adequate quality to be reprocessed in the UK
(as opposed to being shipped oversees), encouraging home grown
manufacturing industries to develop/expand. Collecting high quality
recycling through source segregation is a priority for Welsh Government
as they recognise the opportunities the EU "Circular Economy" package
brings to helping Wales grow its own economy, and in a more sustainable
way (www.gov.wales news article "Wales leading the way towards
becoming a circular economy" 28th June 2018. Positive impacts of the
circular economy on economic growth are also recognised in the Welsh
Government's Economic Action Plan.
The paper by the Resources Association "Putting quality recycling at the
heart of a circular economy" August 2015 concludes that mandatory
source separation of recyclables, including biowaste, would reduce
recycling contamination and create new economic opportunity. By
example, an article by Simon Weston (LetsRecycle.com 17th July 2017)
director of raw materials (Confederation of Paper Industries) states
"Recent work conducted by the Confederation of Paper Industries (CPI)
estimates that an increase of one percentage point in contamination would
increase costs by about £8 million per annum across the entire UK mill
system. For a large paper reprocessor this could equate to as much as
£1.25 million per percentage point increase for each 100,000 tonnes of
raw material procured. These sorts of additional costs undermine the
viability of domestic re-processors when compared with foreign
competitors using other material streams, and could lead to plant closures
and job losses."
Kerbside Sort systems yield very low contamination rates (1% Friends of
the Earth, compared to Commingled recycling schemes that rarely
achieve contamination rates below 5% and often in excess of 10%. 
Hygiene waste will be collected separately in the Option. It is possible that
this waste stream can be recycled and future discussions with Welsh
Government are anticipated over the opportunity for this waste to be re-
processed in Denbighshire. This would created further jobs through the
construction and operation of a new facility.

Quality skills for the
long term

Waste operatives will require enhanced manual handling training. In
addition, the service will be modernised to closely monitor recycling habits
of individuals through enhanced data capture of weight based information.
Team members will be trained to use route optimisation software. DCC's
waste technical team will be trained to collate and report on a wider range
of performance data. The team will be required to deliver behaviour
change messages to a wide range of audiences, including to school groups
and private/social landlords. Increased procurement skills and experience
will also be required. The service change would be supported through the
adoption of an environmental enforcement policy which the team will be
required to adopt. Whilst the existing enforcement team have all existing
knowledge and skills, wider adoption by the rest of the team will be
required.

Page 48



Quality jobs for the
long term

All waste operatives will be required to become "recycling ambassadors"
as their acceptance/rejection of presented material will be fundamental to
providing weekly feedback to the residents about what can and can not be
collected on the kerbside sort scheme. Expected that Waste team jobs will
be secured, may be need for additional Waste Team members depending
on future operational model - to be confirmed as part of further
development of Business Case. The baseline is unaffordable and jobs
across other council service are at risk should we not change the way we
deliver our services.
This option will secure at least 9 full time jobs in a local Social Enterprise,
and support at least 18 people with learning disabilities, through the
collection, sorting , cleaning and resale of textiles.

Childcare There are no known increased benefits arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5. Working hours are not modelled to change.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

approx. 35,000 Blue recycling bins and 30,000 grey residual bins will
become redundant but recovered bins will be collected and sent for
recycling. Recovered plastic is often recycled into new waste containers.
procurement of new containers will specify some recycled content (whilst
maintaining strength / life expectancy of the container).

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles. This is yet to be
decided.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles.

Economic
development

None - the current receiver of comingled recycling would prefer source
segregated material, due to higher quality of paper.

Quality skills for the
long term

It is envisaged that the increased manual handling requirements on the
kerbside sort option will lead to a number of operatives seeking
redeployment or retirement. This will produce a knowledge gap in the
service for which we must prepare over the next 2 years.

Quality jobs for the
long term

The manual handling implications of the kerbside sort system may present
as a barrier to older operatives or operatives with pre-existing conditions
that limit repetitive lifting operations. A key HR work stream has been set
up to identify redeployment opportunities for staff who may not be able to
carry out the new duties and jobs will be re-evaluated to reflect the
change in operations. The Service has already identified the Council's
Career Pathways programme as a strategy to deliver succession planning
and develop skills of existing employees. They are also proactively
engaged in promoting career opportunities externally, such as attending
job fairs.

Childcare There are no known increased implications arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Page 49



Justification for
impact

Overall, despite potential for negative consequences due to potential
increase in collection vehicle mileage and possible negative behaviour
reactions by disgruntled residents who may take against recycling agenda
as a consequence overall it is felt the overall message will raise
awareness of the importance of recycling and the new model will support
the capacity to further increase domestic recycling rates

Further actions
required

Negative behaviour issues will be tackled through targeted
communications on the benefits of the change to collection model to try to
get all residents on board. As far as is possible new collection vehicles will
be the most fuel efficient models affordable to reduce fuel consumption
and emissions as far as practical to mitigate this issue.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

This option enables the reprocessing industry to operate closed loop
recycling solutions, saving the need to use virgin materials extracted fro
the natural environment across the world. More recycling will be
recovered than the baseline option. Evidence suggest that people adopting
pro-recycling behaviours on a kerbside sort system become more
supportive of wider environmental issues.

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Currently around 10,000 households are receiving a sack collection for
residual/recyclable waste. Sacks are ripped open by scavenging animals
(seagulls, rats and foxes) providing an unnatural source of food, leading to
unhealthy increases in populations of some species that may displace
other species. This option will seek to reduce the number of households on
a sack collection and provide a more regulated system that will prohibit
residents placing food waste into sacks. The Trollibocs system does help
contain litter as it must be presented lidded but will require enforcement
to ensure boxes are not presented off the trolley and without lids.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Option will improve and increase domestic recycling performance and
produce cleaner material more suitable for closed loop recycling.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

Food waste is co-collected on the same recycling vehicle as dry material
and the number of residual collection passes per month are reduced.
Overall this results is less vehicle movements.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

New collection model will further raise awareness of need to and issues
around recycling. A communications Strategy has been developed and
includes and Education Campaign to promote pro-recycling behaviours in
young people, and encourage them to take home important messages.

Flood risk
management

Any changes in use to the Lon Parcwr depot to receive waste will require
enhanced flood mitigation due to proximity of river. This option is still
being considered and will be revisited if this depot will be used.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Any development at the Lon Parcwr Depot could have an adverse effect
on the local environment (Salmon River adjacent) and therefore
consultation with NRW and Planning will inform depot options appraisal.
As a result of the service change around 35,000 blue wheeled bins and up
to 30,000 black wheeled bins will become redundant. These will be
collected for recycling into new bins. To partially offset the environmental
impact, new containers will contain the optimum recycled content whilst
maintaining durability. Residents will asked to request a larger black bin
only if they need it, in order to reduce wastage and cost.

Page 50



Biodiversity in the
built environment

Development of a waste transfer facility could impact, depending on
location, yet to be determined.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling efforts. Many
local authorities have restricted residual waste capacity and reduced
collections to 3 weekly. there is no evidence to suggest an increase in fly
tipping in these authorities. However, it is necessary to support these
service changes with fair but firm household waste collection policy and
resource enforcement activities adequately to ensure that dumping of
rubbish and deliberately cross contaminating waste streams is
appropriately regulated.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

New collection model may generate additional distance travelled that may
increase fuel consumption - to be confirmed once new collection model
analysed in detail and location of tipping facilities are confirmed. Initially,
households may take extra journeys to the household recycling parcs to
dispose of excess waste. Overall, capacity for their waste will be increased
by 57litres each week. Therefore as long as waste is segregated it should
be able to be managed kerbside. The household waste collection policy
will specify that households will qualify for additional capacity as long as
they can demonstrate they recycle all they can, and capacity is a regular
issue. Residents taking "black bag" type waste to the Recycling Parcs will
be asked to segregate recyclables or the bags will be rejected. Therefore
encouraging the correct behaviours at home, negating the need for
additional journeys.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Neutral overall as few relevant impacts, where potential impacts do exist
they are likely to me minimal

Further actions
required

Positives on engaging people in a positive way will be stressed and
highlighted as part of communications during/post implementation

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

This option requires the householder to do more to manage their waste
responsibly. More support will be offered to residents to comply and a
sustained and focussed environmental campaign will offer opportunities
for social norming and intergenerational learning, where schools and their
pupils encourage their communities to recycle more.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Engaging people further in the need and activity of increasing recycling
will engage them in a positive activity that can improve their sense of
participation and doing good. There is evidence that people using a
kerbside sort system are more "bought into" recycling as they believe
more strongly the material is going to be made into new products. There
is also evidence to suggest engaged recyclers are more likely to engage
or be supportive of wider environmental initiatives.Page 51



Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

There is a risk that those residents who do not currently engage with
DCC's waste collection system will find the new system more challenging.
therefore incidents of alleyway dumping may increase if not managed.
DCC will introduce a new enforcement policy and increased
communications programme to mitigate these risks.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Possible issues with the change upsetting residents and affecting their well
being due to change and the need to adapt to new arrangements which
they may feel antagonism towards, or be fearful they will not be able to
cope with the new system.

Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Most protected groups should be unaffected by the new waste model as
households already present and segregate their rubbish. There may be a
negative impact on residents with disability or who are elderly/infirm but
variants to the main system will be put in place to recognise and manage
this.

Further actions
required

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas. More targeted communications, such as roadshows,
School visits and door to door support will be required to ensure residents
in these areas fully understand the new system and take care to store
their waste and recycling containers on their own properties so they are
not abused or stolen.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 52



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

The new Service will include a free separate collection of
nappy/incontinence waste upon request, helping households with young
children, or residents with medical needs cope better with the Waste
Collection Service. This is an improvement to the existing service. Where
possible discreet but accessible collection points from inside the household
property boundary may be requested for those requiring the services due
to medical conditions.

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

NONE

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

All trollibocs and new waste containers will be provided free of charge
during the service change, even though the Council has a right to charge
for them. 

W and R department will liaise with the Council's troubled families team
and other appropriate outreach workers to ensure that waste
requirements are understood and passed on to households, should waste
issues or questions arise.

A schools Education programme will be launched to support the new waste
model, and priority focus will be given to schools in derived areas.
The new waste model will increase the opportunities for employment and
"ready to work" schemes.

People in poverty
People in poverty often produce more waste - especially food waste and
packaging waste. The new model provides greater capacity overall, on a 4
weekly basis to manage and contain waste.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 53



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People with some disabilities may find the new way of presenting waste
more challenging, due to the need to separate waste into more
containers, and due to the fact that they may need a larger residual bin,
which could be heavier to manoeuvre. Consultation with disability user
group representatives has also identified that the new Trollibocs system
requires more "bending" that could prevent or put off some infirm
residents from using the service. For this reason a range of container
options will be offered to infirm or disabled residents and the Trolliboc
design will take account of feedback received through consultations. DCC
operate an assisted collection service so if a household find their residual
bin too heavy due to size can either be given a smaller bin (subject to
having capacity) two smaller bins, or may apply to be on the assist list
where we collect the bin from the curtilage of their property.
The new DCC waste enforcement policy will allow for households to be
listed as exempt from recycling some or all materials if a disability and/or
lack of support genuinely prevents them from doing so (e.g. sheltered
accommodation with occupants with dementia). 
Trollibocs can be provided with braille stickers where needed and all
associated instructional material will be provided in appropriate mediums
for sight impaired occupants.

Opportunities for upskilling and redeployment will be provided to
employees who are unable to manage the new manual handling
requirements of the collection service

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

If a household has suffered discrimination from sections of their
community in the past, they are more likely to be reported to us if they
struggle to comply with the new system. 
The DCC enforcement policy will always include an initial educational step
before enforcement action is taken to help residents to adjust to the new
requirements.

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas.

People in poverty

The Council has the right to issue a fixed penalty to residential occupants
for failing to recycle, or dumping black bag waste. In order fo rthe new
scheme to work longer term, it will be necessary to monitor activities of
non-compling households more rigorously, that could lead to FPN's being
issued. However, the revised Council enforcement procedure will ensure
that every household will be given the opportunity to correct behaviours
In addition, an early payment option with a reduced fine level can also be
included.

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 54



Justification for
impact

Overall positive impact as new collection model offers opportunities to
raise awareness of need to and increase ability to recycle for residents
and benefit this may bring to engagement and reducing littering but is
small risk it may also lead to feeling that change being done to residents
and an associated problem of littering and fly tipping may result however
this is thought to be low risk. The new system will be better regulated to
identify non-compliance quickly and target behaviour change processes
efficiently. There will be less (no) abandoned contaminated bins on the
streets in the future preffered model.
The Recycle More Waste Less Survey showed that households are
currently more likely to have space in their residual black bin on collection
day than their recycling bins, evidencing that the new model, to increase
recycling capacity by 57litres per week and reducing residual capacity by
10litres per week is manageable. This, combined with the fact that on
average 51% of the waste in the black bins could be recycled on our
existing services supports a move to shift the focus and resources to
collecting more recyclable waste.

Further actions
required

There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests. The new model will offer a weekly opt-in service for human
hygiene waste and the weekly food waste service will continue and be
expanded to all houses, meaning waste most likely to attract pests and
vermin should not be in the residual bin. Households remaining on a sack
collection will be provided with gull-proof sacks to contain their disposal
pink sacks. This will keep waste and odours contained and enable the
Council to regulate the capacity given to sack customers so that recycling
behaviours are still incentivised.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

All wheeled bins and Trollibocs will be assigned to individual properties,
encouraging ownership so they are not left out on the highway where they
pose a fire risk. Currently there are excessive numbers of abandoned blue
recycling bins on the public highway due to them becoming contaminated.
This will not be an issue in the new model.

Community
participation and
resilience

All residents have had the opportunity to be surveyed about the changes
and will have the opportunity to raise concerns they may have already
that can be addressed via the proposed changes or concerns they may
have in relation to the new change that can influence its design e.g.
frequency of nappy collections. 
A sustained schools education programme will result in a significant
number of young people becoming recycling ambassadors, and offering
learning /recycling opportunities within their communities.

The attractiveness of
the area

With improved recycling it may be that this leads to a reduction in litter /
waste as more recyclable material is captured via the new collection
arrangements. Sack collections and on street solutions (currently abused)
will be phased out wherever possible. Enhanced consultation with HMOs
and private landlors will seek to ensure adequate and appropriate
provision is made for tenanted properties.

Connected
communities

Intention to use social norming as a way to promote pro-recycling
behaviours and identify recycling champions.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 55



Safe communities
and individuals

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.

Community
participation and
resilience

Many residents will not have actively engaged during the proposal phase
and provide resistance as the service is rolled out.

The attractiveness of
the area

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.
There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests.

Connected
communities

Initially some recyclers may disengage with the new service if they
disagree with the proposals. Mitigate with regular and targeted coms
using the Waste Recycling Action Programme's (WRAP's) segmentation
research. New scheme must be flexible to address individual needs where
appropriate.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There will be a lot of communications material produced to provide
instructional and motivational information to target audiences and the
public in general. Every opportunity to promote the Welsh Language and
cultures will be taken during the development of our campaigns.

Further actions
required There are no identified negatives.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

The proposed waste collection system is more aligned to those in the
other Welsh authorities. This consistency will assist in general
understanding in any language as families and friends communicate
beyond County boundaries. All communications, including the survey,
media releases and instructional information will be produced in Welsh as
well as English.

Promoting the Welsh
language

There is an opportunity to display bi-lingual advertisements with simple
messages/ catch phrases

Culture and heritage

In the longer term, once kerbside capture of materials is maximised,
there is an opportunity to promote re-use of kerbside materials and carry
out campaigns to extend the life of items through repair. This will
encourage people to learn traditional skills, such as sewing. There is also
an oppotrtunity to appeal to target audiences through tying together
traditional activities and recycling/re-use behaviours (e.g. A rugby player
recycling his old shirt, a sheep farmer recycling his working dogs' food
packaging etc...) Page 56



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh NONE

Promoting the Welsh
language NONE

Culture and heritage NONE

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

Positive overall as aligns with other North Wales LA's - developing
common resident experience and producing higher quality resources that
can stimulate local and national manufacturing opportunities.

Further actions
required

As part of design and communications around collections model change
Denbighshire will learn from experience at Conwy CBC and from all
previous service changes in Wales and wider afield, through data held by
WRAP (Waste Resources Action Programme)

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

The baseline waste model produces low quality recycling which has limited
markets, often oversees. This option produces source segregated material
which can be used by local and national manufacturing companies.

Human rights NONE

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

By making the proposed changes the waste collection model in
Denbighshire will more closely align with others across North Wales,
including specifically Conwy CBC therefore making any option for Service
of Council mergers in future a simpler task

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Initially there will be a drop in the volume of some non-target plastic that
is currently being marketed but the benefits of producing cleaner material
far outweigh this.

Human rights

To support the introduction of the new scheme, the Council will be
reviewing its waste enforcement policies to ensure the scheme is
regulated. The Council will, in all cases act in accordance with the
Regulators Code (2014).

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

NONE

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPENDIX III:  Modelling Update SUMMARY 

1. Modelling update due to depot location changes 

The original modelling assumed that all kerbside recycling from the north would be 

delivered to a new waste transfer and sorting facility at Kinmel Depot, Bodelwyddan.  

However, it has since been determined that the costs of accommodating new 

infrastructure at Kinmel Depot were far in excess of the affordability envelope.  The 

modelling has been updated to reflect an alternative delivery point at Conwy’s Gofer 

facility in Abergele.  The change in location resulted in an increase in revenue 

savings and is expected to reduce the amount of Capital investment required.   

2. Modelling update due to amendments to textile collections service design 

The new model assumes additional income of £23,000pa from the sale of newly 

collected textiles to be collected weekly on the same kerbside vehicle as other 

household recyclables.  However, if the Council ceased its arrangement with a 

Denbighshire based social enterprise currently collecting textiles fortnightly on many 

existing rounds, the impact on the community would be considerable. Unless 

textiles can be sourced at low cost (by collecting them themselves or receiving them 

well below market rate), the social enterprise textile project would become unviable, 

resulting in 9 out of 10 employees being made redundant and 18 less people with 

learning disabilities being supported.  It would also mean that supply of free clothing 

to the homeless and low cost clothing through their charity shop would cease.  

Officers believe the third sector are best placed to collect textiles.  Residents are 

more likely to go to the effort of separating them from their general waste if they 

recognise their efforts have positive social benefits.  Maximum value and “life” is 

also gained from the material because of the work involved in cleaning and 

preparing clothing and shoes for re-sale.  We therefore should not attempt to 

compete for this material, but enhance our joint working arrangement with this 

social enterprise to increase material capture rates and community benefit through 

the re-investment of the textile income into the promotion and operation of textile 

collections and re-use projects.   

The Well-being Impact Assessment assumes an arrangement with the social 

enterprise will continue and will enhance current socio-economic benefits due to the 

potential to increase the amount of goods collected and made available at low cost 

for re-use by the wider community. The diverted tonnages are counted towards 

Denbighshire Council’s recycling rate and officers believe that in partnership we can 

yield the similar tonnages to the model, even though the social enterprise would 

collect every two weeks through an aligned service, as opposed to weekly.  The 

collections would take place on the same day of the week as the household’s main 

recycling service.  The social enterprise would increase their coverage to service all 

towns and villages, with the Council collecting from the more remote areas on the 

new collection rounds. This will free up vital space on the Council’s kerbside 

collection vehicles for collecting other materials and provide space for welfare 

Page 59



facilities and items that need to be given out to residents such as food caddy liners 

and instructional leaflets. 

Officers recommend that the Council continue to partner with the social enterprise 

to facilitate the kerbside collection of textiles and small WEEE (Waste Electrical and 

Electronic Equipment).  This will reduce the revenue saving by £23,000 as the 

Social Enterprise continue to retain the value from the materials they collect on our 

behalf. 

3. Modelling update to accommodate households requiring “non-standard” 

waste containers. 

It is recognised that not every household will be able to use the same containers, or 

manage on the same residual waste collection frequency.  The proposed 

exceptions are highlighted below: 

Communal Bin Stores 

Additional resource has been modelled to ensure that communal collection points 

(often apartment complexes and sheltered accommodation) can continue to be 

serviced through a 2 or 4 wheeled bin system. Separate bins for glass, paper, card 

and mixed cans/plastic streams will be provided, along with brown wheeled bins for 

food waste (freshly lined with a large bio-degradable bag by the waste collection 

crews every week).  Bins will have restricted apertures to discourage black bag 

contamination and to prevent items being deposited in plastic bags. At least one dry 

recycling stream will be collected weekly from communal bin stores each week - 

alternating over a 4-weekly cycle appropriate to each location. Food waste will be 

collected weekly.  The frequency of the residual waste collection will be bespoke to 

each location and predicated by the storage space available. Where practical, 4 

weekly collections will be implemented.  Residual collections will take place at least 

once every four weeks. The draft waste collection policy (Appendix I [B]) details 

how collections from private bin stores will be regulated to encourage households to 

use the correct containers for their rubbish.  

Properties with no/limited access to outside storage, or with challenging access 

Around 3200 households will need to be retained on a sack collection system due to 

limited storage on their properties, or because we cannot service the property on a 

Refuse Collection Vehicle with a bin lift.  In all cases, households will be required to 

separate their food waste into the sealable orange caddies and these will be 

collected weekly.  Where practical, glass, paper, card and mixed cans and plastic 

containers will be presented in separate re-useable sacks (option of boxes also 

available) instead of mixing them all together in one single box or bag.  Dry 

recycling will be collected weekly, and residual waste will be collected fortnightly or 

weekly (determined by availability of outside storage). Disposable sacks will 

continue to be provided for residual waste but additional measures will be put in 

place to restrict the number of sacks permitted, in accordance with the draft 

Page 60



Household Waste Collections Policy (Appendix 1 [B]).  Subject to the outcome of a 

current trial of “gull-proof” sacks, households may also be provided with fold down 

re-usable sacks to contain their disposable sacks.  It is intended that these sacks, 

and reusable recycling sacks, will be bar coded to enable us to monitor the 

frequency and quality of recycling put out from each household.  This is to 

overcome historical issues with contamination and poor recycling rates attributed to 

this service that may be compounded by a further reduction in residual waste 

frequency. The re-useable sacks will clearly display the household address to 

ensure sacks are returned to the correct property after collection.  The current trial 

will include feedback from residents, landlords and waste collection crews to inform 

the bags final design specification. This work is likely to be concluded in spring 

2019. 

4. Consideration of human hygiene waste (known as AHP) 

A weekly free service for the collection of nappies and incontinence waste has been 

modelled.  This Opt-In service is available free of charge to any qualifying 

household, defined in the draft Household Waste Collections Policy (Appendix 

1[B]).  Participants will be provided with a kerbside collection caddy for presentation 

of this waste, and will be required to renew the service on a regular basis. 

5. Consideration of Pet Waste 

The model does not include provision of a separate pet waste collection service for 

the following reasons: 

 The additional residual capacity provided through this model accounts for pet 

waste being produced and the draft Household Waste Collection Policy enables 

further capacity to be requested as long as the household can prove it is 

adequately recycling.   

 The operation of collecting dog and cat faeces is specialised and poses potential 

health / manual handling risk to the collection crews which is likely to cause 

objections from the workforce and Unions. There is currently no service 

operating in the UK like this to better understand these impacts. 

 Unpleasant odours can be adequately contained by thoroughly sealing smelly 

waste in strong plastic bags. Advising dog owners to use plastic poo bags 

instead of biodegradable ones will significantly reduce any issues a household 

may experience.  We accept dog waste in all litter bins in the County for “on-the-

go” waste.  We will carry out promotion of this as an integral part of our on-going 

campaign requirements. 

 It is estimated that one in three homes in Wales own a cat or dog1.  Demand for 

a separate collection service is very difficult to determine but is likely to require 

                                            
1 Pet manufacturer’s survey cited 35% of Welsh homes owned a dog. BBC Wales Online (27th May, 
2014) 

Page 61



no less than two full time collection rounds at a minimum cost of cost of £146K 

per annum.  Therefore this service has not been included in the latest KAT 

modelling. 

 Pet waste cannot be co-collected with AHP (nappy and incontinence waste) as 

AHP waste is recyclable.  The Welsh Government are exploring the benefits and 

demand of AHP recycling infrastructure and DCC officers have requested further 

discussion about this with the aim of sending this waste stream for recycling in 

the future. 

 

 

Page 62



Appendix IV : Project Interdependences 

No Agent/ Partner Internal/
External 

Project/Services Description Cost/Benefit 

1. Conwy County 
Council (Planning, 
design and 
Construction, 
Waste 
departments) 

External Bulking and Sorting of recycling - Expansion of the of the Conwy site 
at Gofer to receive DCC recyclables from the north of the county 

Anticipated saving compared to DCC 
Kinmel Depot development option 

2. Private sector 
partner for the 
transfer of Residual 
Waste 

External Procurement of interim services for the reception and bulking of 
household residual waste.  The proposed service design and 
preferred depot option does not provide a Denbighshire Council 
waste transfer facility to service the North of the County.  This 
means an alternative facility needs to be secured.  Interim services 
are due to be procured in Q4 2018/19.  This will enable DCC to fulfil 
its obligations to the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment 
Partnership (NWRWTP) and supply all residual household waste to 
the new energy recovery facility as early as April 2019.   

Use of private sector licenced facilities 
avoids the need for capital investment 
in new standalone waste transfer 
facilities at Kinmel Depot.  The “pay 
back” from such investment is 
estimated to be in excess of 35 years.  
Therefore it is more economically 
advantageous not to develop a stand 
also WTS for residual waste.  

3. NWRWTP – IAA2 
agreement 

External Financial dependences exist between the Inter Authority Agreement 
(2) agreed by the 5 North Wales Counties and the new waste model 
project.  £500K of DCC reserves are currently obligated to the 
Partnership for the development of waste transfer facility 
infrastructure in Conwy and Denbighshire.  All 5 counties have 
pooled monies to provide a £2.5M fund which was intended to be 
allocated to DCC and CCC.   The original modelling assumed a 
significant contribution from this pot and would support the 
provision of a combined residual/recycling transfer and sorting 
facility.  The current depot option modelled by WRAP assumes no 
transfer facility will be provided to service the North of the County 
and so this funding is now at risk. DCC are working with CCC and 
Flintshire (as the lead authority) to produce a business case to Welsh 
Government requesting the cost of WTS facilities within the 

The cost or benefit to DCC will depend 
on the final long term depot / facility 
locations.  At worse the IAA2 
agreement could cost DCC £500K, but 
we could also benefit from additional 
investment of up to £1.25 should the 
WG agree to support waste transfer 
development in Conwy and Lon 
Parcwr.  Currently captured in the Risk 
register. 

P
age 63



Partnership are met by them.  This would allow the return of DCC’s 
£500K.  It is also possible that the WG may consider supporting WTS 
costs in the South of Denbighshire (Lon Parcwr). 

4 DCC Environmental 
Services - Highways 

Internal Relocation of salt storage at Lon Parcwr highway site to the existing 
waste transfer station at Lon Parcwr (approximately 250 meters 
away). 
The existing waste transfer site is too small to extend to allow for 
the recycling and bulking function.  The preferred site to service the 
South is the site at Lon Parcwr used for storing salt and some 
highway equipment.  The relocation of salt is therefore required. 
The timing of the depot development will be dependent on ensuring 
we maintain salt capacities through the winter maintenance period. 
There are limitations to the capacity of salt that can be stored which 
poses as a risk for the authority that needs to be managed. 

There is a one of cost to develop the 
existing waste transfer station as a salt 
store.  However, the new site provides 
under cover storage for the salt at a 
lesser cost than building a salt store 
from scratch.   

5 DCC Environmental 
Services - 
Streetscene 

Internal The development of the preferred site at Lon Parcwr will also 
include provision to receive and treat Streetscene/Highway waste 
arising in the south of the County.  Rationalisation of the entire Lon 
Parcwr facility is require to ensure the wider site can accommodate 
vehicle parking, bays and additional equipment.  

Development of a single site for 
managing all DCC waste in the South 
will be more cost effective, due to 
requiring only one operating licence 
and shared plant/overheads. 

6 Customer Services Internal Increased resources to handle additional telephone queries will be 
required during the mobilisation period (Throughput 2010/21).  This 
can be partially mitigated through channel shifting towards online 
help. 
It is anticipated that mobilisation costs will be covered from the 
Waste Reserves. 

Cost tbc – likely to be the equivalent of 
1-2 FTE call centre advisors for 12 
months. 

7 ICT Internal Staffing resources will be required to develop Civica 360 (new forms 
and amend existing forms) to reflect the service design changes.  
Most amendments should be carried out by trained internal staff, as 
opposed to submitting change requests externally to Civica. 

Cost tbc  

8. Public Relations Internal A communications strategy has been developed by DCC.  To 
maximise impact and support the waste service changes, the 
delivery of the Communications strategy will require dedicated 
additional staffing resources pre and during mobilisation.  The 

Cost tbc – likely to be a seconded 
officer from the Waste Technical Team 

P
age 64



communications strategy includes a number of work streams due to 
be implemented in 2018/19 and 2019/20 that help prepare 
residents for the changes, including a local/national food waste 
campaign and a project to improve and regulate the waste collection 
system for properties unsuitable for wheeled bins. 

9. Social Enterprise 
for Textile 
Collections 

External The draft service design proposes that textiles are collected 
predominantly by a local Social Enterprise.  The overall success of 
the kerbside scheme and ability to divert textiles from the black bin 
is partially predicated on the success of this third sector project and 
their ability to expand existing coverage to collect textiles from the 
South of the County as well as the north.   

£23,000 of textile income could be 
generated from this scheme to support 
the social enterprise. 

10. West Rhyl 
Neighbourhood 
Management 
Project 

Internal This project is ongoing to address non-compliance issues with 
domestic and trade waste collection requirements and to make 
improvements to the service design to eradicate disposable sacks 
from being deposited (leading to seagull population increases).  It 
includes working closely with private and social landlords to provide 
better access to storage facilities for waste containers, and to 
encourage better waste management behaviours in tenanted 
properties. Any changes to the waste collection system has to be fit 
for purpose for the new proposed service design.  It is envisage that 
learning from this project will have a positive impact on the success 
of the new service design. 

DCC officers intend to seek external 
funding to rollout gull proof re-useable 
sacks in the West Rhyl area.  The 
proposed scheme will encourage 
households to separate out food waste 
and other recyclables from their 
residual waste through tighter 
regulation of residual waste capacity 
and contamination checks at each 
participating household. 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Household Engagement: 

Recycle More, Waste Less Survey 2018 Results 

& supporting Drop-in Sessions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



RECYCLE MORE, WASTE LESS SURVEY 2018 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Between June 18th 2018 and July 27th 2018, Denbighshire County Council undertook 

a ‘Recycle More, Waste Less Survey’ to ask Residents to provide information on how 

they use the current waste collection service, what their thoughts were on the 

proposed changes to the collection model under consideration and what would help 

them recycle more. 

 

SURVEY METHODOLOGY 

The Survey was available online with further hard copies provided to all Libraries and 

One Stop Shop locations across the County. The availability of the Survey both online 

and in hard copy was publicised via a number of accompanying Press Briefings, Press 

Releases, webpage on the Denbighshire website and Social Media posts. 

 

RESULTS 

A total of 2,313 Surveys were completed online with a further 150 hard copies of the 

Survey completed. This represents a total 5.5% of all Households in Denbighshire 

(based on a total Household number of 44,756). Results show a good geographical, 

household size and age range spread across the completed Surveys. 

The full results of the online Survey are presented in this document in the order the 

questions were presented within the Survey and are represented in tabular and chart 

format. 

 

CONCLUSIONS 

The key main conclusions drawn from the Survey returns are summarised as follows: 

• Residents report that current recycling bins get fuller than residual bins – based 

on current fortnightly collections,  responses show 60% reported their Blue Bin 

was full and a further 25% reported it was overflowing; 46% reported their Black 

Bin was full with 18% reporting it was overflowing; 

• Residents would like further details / clarity on what can be recycled – 

responses show 60% would like more information about what can be recycled; 

• Residents would like additional recycling capacity – responses show 49% 

would extra space in their recycling containers; 

• Residents would like to be able to recycle a wider range of items – responses 

show 67% would like collection of more items that can be recycled. 

 

Page 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



 

Page 72



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



 

 

 

 

Page 74



 

Page 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76



 

Page 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



DROP-IN SESSIONS 

In addition to the Survey, a number of more informal Drop-In Sessions were set up 

across the County in order to give Residents the opportunity to put any questions or 

queries they may have about the proposed changes to the waste collection model. 

Many of these sessions were set-up alongside existing Talking Point sessions in order 

to try to maximise the attendance and improve the level of feedback given with further 

sessions scheduled for evening in Leisure Centres, again to try to maximise audience. 

 

DROP-IN SESSION SCHEDULE 

 

 

Page 81



DROP-IN SESSION FINDINGS 

The key issues raised via the Drop-In Sessions were: 

• Could Residents opt to keep their existing 140l Residual Bin rather than move 

up to a 240l Residual Bin as part of the move from fortnightly to 4 weekly 

collection of residual waste 

• Residents want clearer information on what can be recycled 

• A number of Residents mentioned how easy they found the current comingled 

recycling collection system and that they hoped any change to the method of 

collecting recycling under a new model would be simple to follow 

• It was clear that many Residents were aware of the importance of recycling, 

especially issues around plastic waste and as a result were keen on any system 

that enabled them to recycle more 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Risks 
 

Risks 
 

00005 Change in Political Climate delays or stops service change 
 

 

Description Political priorities change and support for change withdrawn 

Date Last Reviewed 09/08/2018 

Mitigating Action Strong political engagement throughout at all level on case for change 

Risk Political 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Brian Jones, Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00006 Vehicle Procurement Delays 
 

 

Description Delays in detailing / specifying new vehicles delays procurement in time for planned go live date 

P
age 83



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action vehciles can not be procured until a decsion has been made. Ideally a decsion should be made by no later 
than January 2019 to ensure the new service can be rolled out by March  2021.  Workstream has been 
initiated ahead of decision to begin specifying requirements.  Delivery of new fleet will be a rolling 
programme to enable earlier start and enable Fleet Services to work to a schedule of preparing the new fleet 
to  reduce risk of operational delays.  On current schedule, full year savings will be acheived from 2021/22 
onwards, with a much reduced part year effect in 2020/21. 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tara Dumas & Chris Brown 

00007 Failure to gain overall community support of the new service model 
 

 

Description Non-compliance or apathy towards the  new collection model affects operation of new service causing issues 
including reduction in recycling rates 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

P
age 84



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Mitigating Action Ongoing consultation / communication with Residents on proposed change to educate & explain & assist - 
comprehensive Comms Plan / Strategy, Adoption of DCC household waste collections policy to support the 
regulatory action where required.  Nationwide communications campaign due to be launched in lead up 
period to enciourage compliance nationally with LA collection systems. 

Risk Organisational/Management/Human Factors 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Brian Jones, Tony Ward, Tara Dumas & Sian Owen 

00008 Operational roll-out issues 
 

 

Description Problems with roll-out - issues with delivery & distribution of new containers 

Date Last Reviewed 09/08/2018 

Mitigating Action Careful planning on implementation including operative training and co-ordination with those responsible for 
distributing new containers.  Additional staffing resources planned to manage roll-out 
schedules.  Consideration of commissioning external services to assist with roll out is an option under 
consideration. 

P
age 85



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Risk Organisational/Management/Human Factors 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D4 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tara Dumas, Danielle Richards & Alan L Roberts 

00009 Delay in obtaining Permits / Permissions for Depot Works 
 

 

Description Issues causing delays in obtaining necessary Environmental and Planning Permits / Permissions for required 
Depot developments 

Date Last Reviewed 15/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Careful planning on implementation including application for any Permits in good time and commencing 
Design / Planning work/consultations in good time and allowing float to cope with any time overruns in 
process 

Risk Legal & Regulatory 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

P
age 86



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tara Dumas & Danielle Richards 

00010 Cost of remodelling Depots higher than anticipated 
 

 

Description When confirming requirements for redevelopment of Depot sites and commencing Design / Survey work as 
part of design development issues arise / issues clarified that mean associated costs escalate 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Develop well defined Requirements Document for Depot Redevelopments and work within constraints of 
existing sites as far as practical and undertake ncessary GI, other surveys early to identify any site issues 
 
Meeting scheduled with Welsh Governmet 14th Nov to discuss shortfall in capital funding 
 
WRAP modelling other depot options as a contingencey 
 
NWRWTP compiling business case to request additional fuunding from Welsh Government to support Waste 
Transfer development, which may free up Partnership monies to support this project. 

Risk Economic/Financial/Market 

Active Yes 

P
age 87



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Worse 

Likelihood & Impact A2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00011 Focus drifts from delivering current service 
 

 

Description Due to focus of key team members on implementation of new service model, focus on ensuring existing 
collection model remains well run drifts negatively impacting on quality of current service 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Ensure continued resource allocation in place for existing service model including Project manager. 
 
Put in place additional temporary resource to support the waste Technical Team (Currently in place until Jan 
2019 and will be extendedif the project goes live). 
 
Performance Indicators to be  monitored as part of the HES team meetings (Missed bins, for example). 
Operational technical support in place (Permenant) 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

P
age 88



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D4 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tara Dumas & Danielle Richards 

00012 WRAP modelling under estimates resource level requirements 
 

 

Description The WRAP modelling has been based on a baseline and is useful in indicating costs and making 
comparrisons between a range of options that have been modelled.  There is a risk that the revenue savings 
identified are less or more than the figure that will be realised once teh service is up and running. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action WRAP modelling uses intelligence from other modelled services to hone costs as accuartely as possible. 
The level of resources indicated in the initial model has been  challenged by DCC officers and adjustments 
have been made.  Waste Reserves have been earmark to support additional costs not modelled to mobilise 
the service. 
 
Further work/ auditing of the modelling assumptions will be carried out  to finalise costs before presenting to 
Cabinet for a final decsion. 
 
Contingenceis will be built into depot costings due to early development stages. 

Risk Economic/Financial/Market 

P
age 89



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Worse 

Likelihood & Impact B3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00013 Significant increase in calls and enquiries to Contact Centre and via CRM360 
 

 

Description Residents concerns / confusion around the new collection model generates a lot of contact 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Ongoing Comms to inform prior to and during roll out supported by suitable resourcing and clear & consistent 
advice / response scripts 
 
WRAP support to develop comms material using lessons learned from other LA servoce changes. 
 
Amendments to CIVICA 360 forms to encourgae channel shift t online support 
 
Temporary additional call centre staff to be trained and enrolled during mobilisation period. 

Risk Organisational/Management/Human Factors 

P
age 90



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact C5 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00016 Impact of future Welsh Government Strategy (Potential for a Deposit Return Scheme) 
 

 

Description The Welsh Government are currently considering whether to implement a Deposit Return Scheme for all 
drinks containers, or all on-the-go drinks containers.  They are due to carry out consultation in the next few 
months, to help inform their decsion. Should such a scheme be implemented , a significant fall in the amount 
of kerbside collected cans, glass and plastic drinks containers we collect would occur, impacting on the 
levels of income generated. This is likely to reduce the revenue savings currently projected. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

P
age 91



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Mitigating Action Through CSS, DCC officers have requested that detailed modelling of the impact of the DRS on Local 
Authorities be carried out in order to quantifiy  benefits or disbenefits of the proposal.  A smiliar piece of 
work was carried out in England in 2017 by Eunomia, with a sample of high performing local authorities.  The 
outcome report indicates that there are a number of benefitis and savings that would be realised across each 
LA Environmental Services that partially, and in some cases wholly mitigate negative financial impacts.   The 
report identified that local authorities financing and/or operating Material Recovery Facilities (MRF's) would 
be the most adversley affected, especially if they had high recycling rates, as assets would not be utilised to 
their fullest, and additional diversion of recycling from their residual stream (to save on residual treatment 
costs) would be less. 
 
In conclusion, DCC would be impacted regardless of which system (co-mingled vs kerbside sort) we 
operate.  Due to  high recycling levels, we are at greater risk of being adversley affected by the DRS, despite 
savings that could be identified in street cleansing and through reducing collection resources.  Due to the 
flexibility of the kerbside sort collection vehciles, the changes could open up opportunities to segregate  other 
waste streams for recycling, or grow our commercial waste recycling services.   Savings could be realised by 
reducing the number of loaders on the standard vehciles from 2 to 1.  However, the number of vehciles we 
could reduce by after  DRS introduction would minimal due to the rural geography of the county. There may 
be opportunities for local authorities to use any new capacity in fleet and sorting facilities to collect from DRS 
outlets and manage/operate counting facilities, which would generate new income. 
 
The Welsh Government have recognised the benefits to Wales of a DRS scheme may not be as great to 
other countries with poorer recycling infrstructure and performance.  the Project Team will be kept fully 
informed of the developments and continue to mitigate risks accordingly, and take every opportunity to 
engage with the Welsh Government over this matter. 

Risk   

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

P
age 92



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Mitigation Strategy Share 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date 01/12/2019 

Owners Tara Dumas 

00018 Planning Objections / Refusals 
 

 

Description Planning receive significant objections to proposals for new depot in Ruthin and / or refuse application 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Early engagement with Planning on initial outline proposals for the site, try to minimise the size / massing of 
any new structure on Ruthin site, soften with inclusion of suitable screening / landscaping to minimise visual 
impact 
 
WRAP are modelling contingency option in case the development of the site is not possible where DCC 
would share a facility in Wrexham for a proprtion of the recycling and deliver the remaining recycling to 
Gofer. 

Risk Legal & Regulatory 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

P
age 93



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00019 NRW Permit Refused 
 

 

Description New Depot in Ruthin will need relevant Permits from NRW; given proximity of River Clwyd and nature of site 
possible NRW may Refuse to grant permits for proposed use  / operation in part or in full 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Early and close liaison with NRW on developing outline proposals to ensure they are fully aware at earliest 
stage on proposed use of site - waste streams, tonnages, operations etc. 

Risk Legal & Regulatory 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

P
age 94



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00020 Construction Procurement Delays 
 

 

Description Delays in detailing and undertaking procurement exercise to enagage a Contractor to develop proposed new 
Ruthin Depot Site 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action  Officers require a decsion at the eariest possible opportunity on the availability of additional capital funding 
for the project.  A decsion no later than January 2019 is required to ensure a full roll-out is achievable in 
2020/21.  Clear early decisions on requirements for new Ruthin Depot and early engagement with 
Procurement on process required to tender and let contract. 
Close liaison with Design collegues to allocate expertise to ovesee design specification. 
Ongoing supportfrom WRAP to advise on  final design requirements.  
Ruthin costs are being externally developed and ground surveys are being undertaken to firm up outline 
costs. 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

P
age 95



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00021 Extension of Gofer Rcycling Facility, Abergele, Conwy 
 

 

Description For North of County Recycling materials as part of proposed model will be shipped out to a redeveloped 
Gofer, Conwy for bulking. Extension of this facility will therefore be outside the direct control of Denbighshire 
and we will be relying on Conwy committing to and ensuring delivery against agreed programme in order to 
have new capacity ready to accept Denbighshire North recycling in time. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Close co-ordination and co-operation with Conwy and Senior Level to ensure they have developed detailed 
costs & programme for works to Gofer and to ensure there will be delivered on time / programme and that 
this agreement / arrangement is formally captured. Over arching co-ordination support Via WRAP. 

Risk Strategic/Commercial 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact D2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

P
age 96



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

00022 Risk of delay: Interdependency between the timing of new Ruthin Depot Development and preparation of new salt storage facility 
 

 

Description In order to free up proposed site in Ruthin on which to develop the proposed new Waste Depot, the current 
salt store on this site needs relocating. This relocation to what will become the redundant Transfer Station 
(TS) needs to occur in tandem and be programmed in sequence. This challenge is further compounded by 
fact that stored salt will be required over winter gritting season which in practice limits development of new 
Waste Depot and re-purposing of old TS to Apr-Oct months. In addition a separate Business Case / Funding 
will need to be in place to support the works to re-purpose the old TS to accommodate the salt storage. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Early agreement & decision on relocation of salt store to what will become the redundant Transfer Station 
(TS). Commitment to fund any works to old TS to enable use as salt store and funding to achieve. Careful 
planning and coordination between programmes / works for developing new Waste Depot and relocation of 
salt to a re-purposed TS shed. If there is an issue will either have to delay developments or look at option of 
calling off salt rather than storing but this would have a revenue implication and may put at risk the winter 
gritting operations.  Alternative temporary storage to be explored.  Alternative temporary tipping facilities 
(CAD Denbighshire) to be explored.  Costs forthe reception of residual waste have been sought from CAD 
but their ability to accomodate will depend on timing and can not exceed 6 months. 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact C2 

P
age 97



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00023 Stacking of Programme to meet timescales 
 

 

Description In order to meet proposed timescales of rolling out new service model in FY20/21 the programme has had to 
be squeezed and stacked so multiple parallel activities will need to occur - specifically in relation to 
development of new Depot in Ruthin work at risk will need to occur e.g. work up developed design in parallel 
to pre consultation and work up technical design and preparations for tender exercise in parallel to planning 
process. Further pressure on Ruthin Depot timescales leading to compressed, stacked programme given 
need to coordinate with move of salt to new Salt Store in old Residual TS which will also be seasonally 
dependent - can only occur Apr-Oct ideally. The risk of this compressed, stacking programme means 
working at risk on assumption of continued progress and the associated risk of abortive costs should a 
problem arise 

Date Last Reviewed 17/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Needs careful & adequate programming and support to this and activities involved with suitable resourcing. 
Approaches are being made to WG for additional funds that may free up waste reserves so that the cost of 
unavoidable delays can be covered.  As a result of a regional campaign to WG, they have confirmed no 
reduction in the waste grant for 2019/20 which removes a £200K pressure on teh waste reserves. 

Risk Economic/Financial/Market 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

P
age 98



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact C2 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00024 Failure to recruit/ secure staffing resources required to deliver project 
 

 

Description Given scale of project, compressed and stacked programme given timescales working towards then will need 
to ensure suitable resource is readily available 

Date Last Reviewed 17/10/2018 

Mitigating Action In discussion with other departments to programme technical support required. 
HR workstream programme to upskill workforce /introduce career pathways and recruit additonal operational 
staff/supervisors. 
One extra technical ream officer temporarily in post to support the waste strategy team and service changes/ 
improvements that can be programmed ahead of the roll-out. 
 
Efforst to increase waste reserves (throught seeking alternative funding sources and otherbudget savings) 
underway so that additional posts can be funded. 

Risk Organisational/Management/Human Factors 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

P
age 99



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact C3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00027 Failure to relocate Salt Store at Lon Parcwr prevents WTS development in the South of DCC 
 

 

Description In order to redevelop the proposed site in Ruthin the current Transfer Station (TS) needs to be confirmed as 
being both technically and financially suitable for conversion to an operational Salt Store - if this is not 
confirmed then the redevelopment of the Ruthin site for a new Waste Station is not possible unless the salt 
goes to a third site as yet not identified. Until this is confirmed then the plans for the new Waste Depot in 
Ruthin are compromised. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Site surveys and outline design work commissioned. 
Contingencey site for waste infrastructure development being sought. 
WRAP modelling a "No DCC recycling facility" depot option - making use of neighboring LA's as a 
contingencey. 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

P
age 100



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D1 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward, Tara Dumas & Andy Clark 

00028 Risk of exceeding OJEU thresholds for depot infrastructure works 
 

 

Description Total works contract to deliver both Depot developments likely to exceed  OJEU thresholds - currently 
£4,551,413. 

Date Last Reviewed 19/09/2018 

Mitigating Action Works required on each site can be tendered seperately to stay within OJEU limits (One site will be delivered 
by CCC and one by DCC ).   Develop early Procurement Plan and consult with Procurement and Audit on 
this given pressure on timescales to move forward and need to access resource to enable this in good time. 

Risk Legal & Regulatory 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact E2 

Risk Closure Date   

P
age 101



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Owners Tony Ward & Tara Dumas 

00029 Shortfall of funding for temporary solution to handle Waste during redevelopment of the depot at Ruthin creates budget pressure in 2020/21 
 

 

Description Currently programmed to commence build of new Waste Depot in Ruthin May - October 2019. Any residual 
salt left on site will be stored to one side - it will be low season for stocks at this point. In order to have a Salt 
Store to receive new order delivery in September 2019 the new Salt Store solution will need to be in place by 
this time which implies the Transfer Station (TS) Ruthin will need vacating in order to allow its redevelopment 
by September so from end April 2019 - this means a temporary arrangement will needed for the Residual & 
Comingled Waste from April - November 2019 when new Depot will be ready - as yet do not have a solution 
to this issue - any temporary siting for Residual/Comingled bulking would need consultation and temporary 
permitting by / from NRW which can not be guaranteed at this point. Alternative could be to run these waste 
streams into with Thorncliffe, Ruthin or CAD Denbigh on a temporary arrangement whilst the new Waste 
Depot and Salt Barn are developed - Apr-Nov 2019 currently programmed. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Need to identify a temporary solution to issue of trying to redevelop two operational locations 
simultaneously. Option to run into Thorncliffe or CAD.  Waste handling costs at CAD have been provided. 
 Additional resources to alleviate extra travelling time (likely to result in overtime / agencey costs) to be 
estimated and earmarked from reserves.  However, current projection on reserves indicates a shortfall. 
Work underway to tseek to secure additional funding for the project through WG in order to alleviate pressure 
on reserves. 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

P
age 102



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact C3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward, Tara Dumas & Andy Clark 

00030 Limited facilities to service Fleet in the south creates operational pressure (to transport vehciles to Bodelwyddan) 
 

 

Description At present all but under 3.5t Fleet Vehicles including those servicing Waste have to go to Bodelwyddan for 
routine maintenance and annual servicing / MOT testing, brake testing. This arrangement incurs a cost - time 
/ fuel / vehicle down time. The current facility at Ruthin is unsuitable fo rthe majority of the services needs.  It 
could be improved with investment to raise roof height, extend bay sizes and install brake testing facility - this 
would elimiate need to take South vehicles to Bodelwyddan however would incur costs to bring up to suitable 
standard to enable. A business plan, cost benefit analysis of option to improve maintenance site in Ruthin in 
comparision to the status quo needs to occur to fully assess options when considering the entire DCC fleet 
requirements.  At present it is assumed that the status quo will continue in service of new waste fleet 
proposed under new collection model. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action The revenue implications for running waste fleet to the North have neen estimated and are not significant 
enough to warrant the Capital investment required to provide a full servicing requirement in the South.  The 
proposed waste model provides additional supervision (2 FTE), which provides additional support to 
transport vehiciles.  

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? No 

P
age 103



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

Trend Better 

Likelihood & Impact C5 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward, Tara Dumas & Chris Brown 

00033 Failure to free up enough space at new site Lon Parcwr Ruthin to develop site 
 

 

Description In order for the work to proceed on the current salt store site at Lon Parcwr, Ruthin it will need to be cleared 
of a number of Highways waste streams / items, as part of this they will need to be disposed off, moved to 
Lon Parcwr North side or Kinmel - if this is not achieved then the development is compromised 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Included in programme consultation with Service to agree approach to and plan for this rationalisation 

Risk Technical/Operational/Infrastructure 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Reduction 

Trend Same 

P
age 104



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Likelihood & Impact D4 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward, Tara Dumas, Andy Clark & Chris Brown 

00034 DCC relaiance on third parties and other LA's for access to waste transfer and bulking facilities could increase future costs 
 

 

Description As part of proposed solution under the project WG funding will be used to extend the current bulkig and 
sorting station in Gofer, Abergele to take recycling material from North of County which means County will 
not have its own Recycling Bulking Station in the North so will be reliant negotiating costs and income levels 
with Conwy CC. 
 
Similarily, this option means there will be no DCC owned waste transfer station in the north of the County for 
residual waste and we will be reliant on sourcing third party licenced facilities which are limited.  There is a 
financial risk as waste handling costs could escalate in the longer term given the lack of competition in teh 
market place. 

Date Last Reviewed 16/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Ensure agreement with Conwy to invest in and use Gofer is underpinned by sound long term agreement on 
cost/benefit share. 
Interim contract to be let by DCC and Conwy for residual waste reception and bulking to allow potential for 
joint LA facility to be explored. 
 
Offer from other neighboring LA's (Flintshire and Wrexham) to explore interim /long term use of their facilities. 
 
DCC exploring a more central depot option as part of the options apprasal that serves all county. 

Risk Economic/Financial/Market 

Active Yes 

P
age 105



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Acceptance 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D3 

Risk Closure Date   

Owners Tony Ward, Tara Dumas & Danielle Richards 

00035 Union/Workforce resistance to changes puts quality of new service at risk 
 

 

Description The workforce will require ongoing consultation about the service changes.  Their job will be different to what 
it is now, with many roles changing completely.  If not carefully managed, this may cause workforce unrest or 
anxiety amongst individuals. 

Date Last Reviewed 17/10/2018 

Mitigating Action Regular updates are provided to the workforce by the team, elected member and head of service. 
 
Career Patyways programme to be developed to provide opportunities for upskilling 
 
Working parties created to assist with specifying new recycling vehicles 
 
Head of Service leads regular Union meetings. 
 
Webaspex re-routing software programme will be used to help design new rounds - additional person 
recruited to team to support workforce liaison for this. 

P
age 106



APPENDIX VI 
 

Project Risk Register 
 

17/10/2018 16:03:05 
 

Risk Organisational/Management/Human Factors 

Active Yes 

Key Risk? Yes 

Corporate Risk No 

Mitigation Strategy Avoidance 

Trend Same 

Likelihood & Impact D3 

Risk Closure Date 31/03/2021 

Owners Tony Ward, Danielle Richards & Tara Dumas 

 

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX VII:  Depot Options 

Option 1 
(Preferred) 

Extended recycling facility in Conwy- Gofer (North) and new Waste Transfer 
Station/ recycling bulking station in Ruthin – Lon Parcwr 

Description Opportunities 
WRAP’s current modelling is based on the extension of 
Conwy’s Gofer sorting facility to service DCC’s north 
recycling fleet, alongside a new combined bulking and 
transfer facility at Lon Parcwr, Ruthin for both residual and 
recyclate. The existing WTS site in Ruthin is not big 
enough to receive separately collected dry materials. DCC 
would secure an interim arrangement with a third party 
licenced site in order to determine the feasibility and 
benefits of a shared WTS with Conwy vs. outsourcing this 
requirement on a longer term basis.  Initial indicative 
costings for the development of Gofer and Lon Parcwr 
higher than envisaged, and outside the current 
affordability envelope, partially due to contingencies due 
to unknowns around land conditions 
 
Relocation of salt and existing WTS will create operational 
pressures that need to be managed. 
 
No residual waste transfer facility would be developed in 
the north of the county – reliance on private sector with 
limited market competition.  
 

Opportunity to have a single site in 
the south to receive and recycle 
wider DCC waste (Parks and Open 
Spaces, Highways and Streetscene) 
 
Increased revenue savings from 
shared operating costs at Gofer 
 
Opportunity to relocate salt store 
undercover (to old waste bulking 
shed) at less cost than building a new 
salt store 
 
Increased revenue from the bailing 
and sorting of recyclate in the south 
(plus less haulage requirements) 
 
Collaboration with other LA’s 
increases chance of WG externally 
funding any shortfalls. 
 
Redevelopment of existing site 
improves current conditions of the 
site and de-risks a number of issues 
(permitting and drainage) 
 

 

Option 2 
Contingency  

All DCC recycling vehicles run into neighbouring authorities [Conwy, (N) 
Wrexham (S) Flintshire (N/S] 

Description Opportunities 
The option to deliver recycling from the south of the county 
to a combination of Wrexham’s facility, operated by FCC 
Gofer at Abergele is being modelled by WRAP.  Initial 
discussions with Wrexham indicate that they have 
capacity to take a proportion of dry recycling, subject to 
adapting their bailing equipment.  DCC have concerns 
about the capacity of Gofer to take additional vehicles 
from the south of Denbighshire, based on the latest 
version of the Gofer designs.  This option results in the 
highest operational risk to DCC and revenue implications 
have still to be confirmed through negotiations with Conwy 
and Wrexham over the income share arrangements.  As in 
Option 1 above, a residual WTS facility would still be 
required, either through a shared facility with Conwy or 
through outsourcing.  The development of a new northerly 
WTS in Denbighshire (Kinmel) in isolation from any other 
development does not make economic sense and would 

Option requiring least capital 
investment and therefore most likely 
to fall within affordability envelope. 
 
Potential to partially roll-out sooner 
to some parts of the County as 
facilities already exist. 
 
Collaboration with other LA’s 
increases chance of WG externally 
funding any shortfalls. 
 
 

Page 109



not be pursued should this Option be implemented.  This 
means that DCC would be reliant on the limited private 
sector markets to receive and bulk residual waste. 

 

 

Option 3 
Contingency  

One central location within DCC for the reception and sorting of all 
household waste  

Description Opportunities 
Further work is now being done to identify a suitable 
central DCC location to service the entire county. A major 
advantage of identifying a central site would be that it 
could also serve as a residual waste transfer station, as 
the joint development costs would be lower than 
developing recycling and residual waste transfer needs in 
isolation.  Therefore DCC would seek to partially fund this 
from the NWRWTP WTS development project (Up to 
£1.25M could be leveraged) 
 
Longer term operational savings from operating out of one 
site could offset increase in vehicle requirements – 
modelling would need to be carried out. 
 
Development costs could increase if land is not owned by 
the Council, but the cost of developing one single site are 
likely to be less than option 1. 

Provides a WTS for residual waste to 
serve the entire county. 
 
Flexibility in operational staffing from 
combining workforce. 
 
Reduced depot running costs 
 
Potential to provide a single site in 
DCC for all waste reception, freeing 
up other locations for alternative use 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Option 4 
(Dismissed) 

New recycling bulking station in Ruthin – Lon Parcwr (S) and new Waste 
Transfer Station/ recycling bulking and sorting facility at Kinmel Depot (N) 

Description Opportunities 

The original plan to develop a combined facility at Kinmel 
Depot for a residual waste transfer station and bulking 
and sorting shed have been discontinued due to the high 
costs of developing the site, arising from extensive 
ground works costs (£1M+) and the peripheral costs to 
redesign the functions on the existing site (salt storage, 
shed storage and highways/Streetscene waste bays / 
parking.  In addition, this option was dismissed as the 
existing WTS in Ruthin was deemed unsuitable for 
expansion to accommodate recycling requirements, 
therefore a new site would be required.  The cost of 
developing two new sites in DCC are too high and are 
difficult to justify capital investment given the provision 
of facilities in neighbouring counties.  This option was 
abandoned to pursue a more collaborative approach. 
 

Provides a WTS for residual waste to 
serve the north. 
 
Redevelopment of site to provide salt 
store (subject to independent 
business case and funding being 
secured). 
 

 

Page 110



Report to:   Communities Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  25th of October 2018 
 
Lead Member/Officer: Leader/Head of Customers, Communications and Marketing 
 
Report Author:  Team Leader:  Tourism, Marketing and Events 
 
Title: Tourism Progress Report 
 

 

 
1.  What is the report about? 
 
To detail the progress achieved to date with various tourism initiatives and their contribution 
towards delivering the Council’s overall ambition in relation to economic development. 
 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
 
It was agreed after making an initial report to Communities Scrutiny in September 2017 that 
an update report would be submitted in 12 months’ time. 
 
3.  What are the Recommendations? 
 
That Scrutiny considers the report and provides observations on the matters reported 
herein. 
 
4. Report details 
 
Partnership: Destination Management 
 
The Denbighshire Destination Management Plan was launched in October 2017 with the 
following aims: 
 
• Increase the number of staying visitors and high-yield visitors to the region 
• Provide a memorable and high-quality experience for all visitors 
• Contribute to the aim of growing Wales’ market share of domestic and international 
tourism 
• Strike a balance between promoting our most popular sites, protecting our environment, 
and spreading the benefit of tourism across the whole region 
 
The Plan was developed through the Denbighshire Destination Partnership in conjunction 
with DCC services and other key partners including the AONB. It paid particular attention to 
the five main themes (Housing, Environment, Young People, Connected Communities and 
Resilient Communities) of Denbighshire County Council’s Corporate Plan 2017-20. 
 
The Destination Management structure described in the previous report continues. The 
Tourism Forum remains a key fixture for the industry with over 80 businesses in attendance 
at each of the last two (appendix 1).  
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 6

http://www.discoverdenbighshire.wales/denbighshires-destination-managment-plan-2017-2020/


The Tourism Team is engaged with North Wales Tourism and DCC Heritage on a scheme 
to move Rhyl Tourist Information Centre (TIC) and Rhyl Museum to a new shared site at 
Rhyl Railway Station. This will create a new visitor attraction in the town and potentially 
boost attendance for both facilities. Visitor numbers to Rhyl and Llangollen TICs have seen 
an increase of 1.5% and 1.4% respectively in the period 2017-18. The tourism team has 
also worked closely with DCC officers responsible for the marketing of SC2 by keeping the 
tourism industry informed about the development and engaging with Visit Wales on the 
project’s behalf.  
 
Tourist Information Points have been opened at St Asaph Library (April 2018) and Denbigh 
Library (May 2018) (appendix 2). A new leaflet, Five Journeys, has been developed to push 
visitors to locations around the county and we continue to print and promote the eight town 
trails through our distribution service (appendix 3). 
 
Denbighshire’s Tourism Ambassador Programme is on track. Funded in-part via the Rural 
Development Programme, this innovative scheme seeks to broaden the appeal of 
ambassadorship by developing on-line modules which can be easily accessed by business. 
The project is currently completing its module content, digital delivery and branding 
(appendix 4). 
 
 
Partnership: North East Wales and North Wales 
 
Routes to the Sea, the £40,000 Welsh Government funded project gathered momentum in 
2018 with the creation of a number of high-quality films (appendix 5), photographs and the 
innovative use of bloggers to provide a more authentic view of our area and engagement 
with a broader audience (appendix 6). 
 
The project also ran a Sea Food Challenge event with businesses across North East Wales 
participating. The winner was Gales, Llangollen and the event created some very positive 
PR (appendix 7) 
 
The Tourism Team has built on North Wales’ growing reputation as one of the World’s key 
visitor destinations, successfully drawing down £140,000 of Welsh Government funding as 
part of a North Wales partnership bid (Conwy, Anglesey, Gwynedd, Wrexham, Flintshire 
and Denbighshire). The project aims to promote the winter tourism offer and develop routes 
inspired by the National “Wales Way” Project. 
 
Events 
 
A new, simplified Event Notification Process was launched in January 2018 (appendix 8). 
Event organisers now are asked to fill out a short form and advised that it is their 
responsibility to contact relevant officers within the authority. Officers are listed on the form 
to make this task easier for event organisers. All Event Notification Forms submitted to the 
tourism team are immediately circulated to the officers in the process. All or most liaison 
takes place between the relevant officer and event organiser. Feedback has, in general, 
been positive from both event organiser and DCC officers. So far over 100 events have 
engaged with the process. 
 
 

Page 112

https://www.discoverdenbighshire.wales/denbighshire-5-journeys/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SiE-t7zrS1s&feature=youtu.be
http://www.northeastwales.wales/things-events-holidays-break-ideas-within-corner-north-wales/galleries/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llangollen-to-llandegla/


 
Partnership: Marketing and the Visitor Experience 
 
The Tourism Team has worked hard to innovate over the last 12 months. Regular digital 
newsletters have been sent to our business and visitor databases (appendix 9). 
Furthermore, we’ve increased our activity around social media and ensured the digital 
products we have created work well across these platforms. This approach has seen a 
significant increase in traffic to our digital channels (appendix 10). We monitor our digital 
channels so we can understand where we are most effective. (Appendix11 and appendix 
12). 
 
Aside from digital marketing we have created a number of PR pieces that have gained 
press interest including the Tourism Forum, STEAM figures and the importance of the 
economic impact of tourism in the local economy (appendix 13) 
 
Though the current STEAM figures cover 2017 its worth mentioning that this was another 
good year for tourism with the economic impact increasing by 2.3% on the 2016 figure to 
£490m. The current figures are encouraging:  we are engaging more effectively with 
potential visitors and creating products that fuel that engagement.  It’s important also to 
recognise the significance of getting things right on the ground so that the experience lives 
up to the promise. For this reason we focus as strongly on Destination Management 
(Tourism Forum, Destination Partnership, Tourism Ambassador Scheme, Tourist 
Information Centres, Tourist Information Points, Town Trails, Literature Distribution to name 
a few of the elements). At the root of this approach is partnership working. 
 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
Environment:  Attractive and supported well-being and economic prosperity 
 
6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
Not applicable 
  
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
 
Not applicable 
 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
Not applicable 

  
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
Not applicable 
 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
Not applicable . 
 

Page 113



11. Power to make the Decision 
 
Section 7.4.2(b) of the Council’s Constitution states that Scrutiny Committee may “review 
and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, 
performance targets and/or particular service areas”. 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
Team Leader- Tourism, Marketing and Events 
Tel:  01824 706152 
  
 
  

Page 114



 
 
 
 

Date Location Attendees  
(including DCC staff) 

29th September 2011 Theatre Twm o’r Nant, 
Denbigh 

56 
(external 41 DCC 15) 

10th May 2012 Ruthin Castle 100 
(external 79 DCC 21) 

24th October 2012 Oriel House, St.Asaph 79 
(external 59 DCC 20) 

22nd May 2013 Oriel House, St.Asaph 53 
(external 43 DCC 10) 

6th November 2013 Ruthin Castle 70  
(external 61 DCC 9) 

12th June 2014 Ruthin Castle 81 
(external 63 DCC 18) 

10th September 2014 Ruthin castle 54 
(external 46 DCC 8) 

25th February 2015 Oriel House 63 
(external 52 DCC 11) 

20th October 2015 Oriel House 64 
(external 51 DCC 13) 

3rd March 2016 Oriel House 70 
(external 61 DCC 9) 

9th November 2016 Oriel House 62 
(external 56 DCC 6) 

9th May 2017 Oriel House 78 
(external 63 DCC 15) 

26th October 2017 Oriel House 112 
(external 85 DCC 27 

12th April 2018 Oriel House 93 
(external 81 DCC 12 

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



 May-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 2008 Annual Totals
24400 12450 14133 50983

Jan-09 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 2009 Annual Totals
32114 36095 52408 17054 137671

Feb-10 May-10 Jun-10 Oct-10 2010 Annual Totals
34340 28754 25753 12312 101159

Feb-11 Apr-11 Jul-11 Oct-11 2011 Annual Totals
35002 42998 42297 16545 136842

Feb-12 Apr-12 Jul-12 Oct-12 2012 Annual Totals
63553 39007 72391 14783 189734

Feb-13 Mar-13 Jul-13 Oct-13 2013 Annual Totals
30098 18508 48301 20784 117691

Feb-14 Apr-14 Jul-14 Oct-14 2014 Annual Totals
19056 40115 43177 58696 161044 36.84% increase on 2013

Feb-15 May-15 Jul-15 Oct-15 2015 Annual Totals
67883 111953 46800 23446 179836 Massive year for the new town trial launch

Feb-16 May-16 Jul-16 Oct-16 2016 Annual Totals
29592 35934 15086 14236 94848 Down on other years due to the fact we do not distribute any Countryside stock and the Heritage leaflet only made one distribution due to the fact it was late being done

Feb-17 May-17 Jul-17 Oct-17 2017 Annual totals
28591 29449 20637 31819 110496 Increase on 2016

Jan-18 Apr-18 Jun-18 Oct-18 2018 Annual Totals
20219 21036 23843 65098

Number of leaflets distributed

P
age 119



Down on other years due to the fact we do not distribute any Countryside stock and the Heritage leaflet only made one distribution due to the fact it was late being done

P
age 120



May-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 2008 Annual Totals
34 27 23 84

Jan-09 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09 2009 Annual Totals
58 61 65 34 218

Feb-10 May-10 Jun-10 Oct-10 2010 Annual Totals
63 71 59 45 238

Feb-11 Apr-11 Jul-11 Oct-11 2011 Annual Totals
82 68 57 36 243

Feb-12 Apr-12 Jul-12 Oct-12 2012 Annual Totals
65 75 72 40 252

Feb-13 Apr-13 Jul-13 Oct-13 2013 Annual Totals
65 75 59 41 240

Feb-14 Apr-14 Jul-14 Oct-14 2014 Annual Totals
54 61 71 75 261

Feb-15 May-15 Jul-15 Oct-15 2015 Annual Totals
89 101 84 42 316

Feb-16 May-16 Jul-16 Oct-16 2016 Annual Totals
72 62 49 34 217

Feb-17 May-17 Jul-17 Oct-17 2017 Annual Totals
61 59 49 54 223

Jan-18 Apr-18 Jun-18 Oct-18 2018 Annual Totals
38

Number of businesses 

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

1 
 

Adroddiad Cynnydd y Prosiect 

Project Progress Report  
 

Prosiect / Project: Denbighshire Tourism Ambassador Scheme 
Sir / County:  Denbighshire 
Cyfnod / Period: Q3-July-Sept 2018 
Rhif Hawliad / Claim no. 4 

 

 

Cyllid / Finance 
 

Cyfanswm Cost y Prosiect / Total Project Cost £32,000 

Gwariant hyd yma / Spend to Date:   £10,657.92 

Balans / Balance:   £21,342.08 

 
 

Diweddariad Cynnydd y Prosiect / Project Progress Update 
Diweddariad ysgrifenedig gyda lluniau o weithgaredd yn ystod y cyfnod hawlio hwn a chynnydd wrth gyflwyno'r prosiect a 
amlinellir yn y ffurflen gais. Eglurwch yn glir sut mae'r trafodion gwariant yn cysylltu â gweithgaredd prosiect / 
Written update with pictures of activity during this claim period and progress in delivering the project outlined in the 
application form.  Clearly explain how the expenditure transactions link to project activity.  

 

Following further discussions, the modules have slightly been revised –please see below 
 

1. Welcome to Rural Denbighshire 

2. Denbighshire Rural Towns & City 

3. Walking in Rural Denbighshire 

4. Cycling in Rural Denbighshire 

5. History & Heritage in Rural Denbighshire 

6. Arts in Rural Denbighshire 

7. Welsh Language & Culture  

8. Food & Drink in Rural Denbighshire 

9. Clwydian Range & Dee Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

10. Pontcysyllte Aqueduct & Canal World Heritage Site 

11. Things to do in Rural Denbighshire …for families, for free, on rainy days  

The first 2 modules are nearing completion and the walking module has been circulated to key 
stakeholders to gather final comments. Pragma Training continue to work with the Tourism Team 
to finalise the module content. 
 
A number of meetings have taken place with Artychoke (company doing the module and website 
build). The external facing website is currently being built – please see 

Page 123



APPENDIX 4 

2 
 

https://ambassadors.artychoke.com for latest version. Discussions about the module layout, quiz 
format, registration process and online resources are currently taking place. 
 
A number of meetings have taken place with Follow Films to finalise film requirements. The films 
for the first 2 modules are nearing completion – this includes a film to illustrate the STEAM 
figures, key people taking about their towns, visual films of each of the towns and a film 
highlighting Llangollen Tourist Information Centre. 
 
JPDS have been contracted to carry out the brand development part of the project. An inception 
meeting took place to discuss the project in more detail. Draft branding and style toolkit has been 
produced (please see attached). 
 

 
 
Gweithgaredd Hyrwyddo / Promotional Activity 
Datganiadau I’r wasg, digwyddiadau hyrwyddo, diweddariadau cyfryngau cymdeithasol /  
Press releases, promotional events, conferences, social media updates, TV or radio coverage 

 

The branding together with an update on the project took place at the Denbighshire Destination 
Management Partnership meeting on 20th September. The branding received positive feedback. 
 

 
Cyrhaeddiad Dangosydd Perfformiad (DI) /  
Performance Indicator (PI) Achievements 
Rhowch wybodaeth am y Dangosyddion Perfformiad a gyflawnwyd yn ystod y cyfnod hawlio hwn (sy’n manylu ar y 
dystiolaeth archwilio a gasglwyd fel y’u rhestrir yn y ddogfen Fframwaith DP), y cynlluniau ar gyfer cyflawni unrhyw 
Ddangosyddion Perfformiad sy’n weddill, a chynnydd tuag at gyrraedd y canlyniadau prosiect a restrir yn adran 10 o’r 
ffurflen gais/ 
Please provide information on the Performance Indicators (Pis) that have been achieved during this claim period (detailing 
the audit evidence gathered as listed in the PI Framework document), the plans for achieving any remaining Pis, and 
progress towards reaching the project outcomes listed in section 10 of the application form 
 

This quarter has mainly focussed on meeting and working with the 4 companies involved in 
delivering this project – Pragma, Artychoke, Follow Films & JPDS. All the various parts of the 
project are progressing in order to reach the final outcomes. 
 
The Performance Indicator for ‘number of information dissemination actions/promotional and/or 
marketing activities undertaken’ – the remainder of this will be achieved during the marketing and 
promotion phase of the modules e.g. press releases, promotion at events/meetings, drop in 
sessions. 
 
The Performance Indicator related to the ‘number of participants supported - 100’ will be 
achieved once the online training modules have been launched and participants begin to 
complete the modules. 

 
The outcomes mentioned in section 10 will be achieved once the online training modules and 
online toolkit of resources are completed and launched. 
 

 
Dangosydd Perfformiad /  

Performance Indicator 

Targed / 

Target 

Cyflawnwyd y 

cyfnod hwn / 

Cyfanswm a 

Gyflawnwyd / 

Cyfanswm yn 

Weddill / 

Page 124

https://ambassadors.artychoke.com/


APPENDIX 4 

3 
 

Achieved this 

period 

Total 

Achieved 

Total 

Remaining 

Nifer o astudiaethau dichonolrwydd rydych 

chi am eu cwblhau / 

Number of Feasibility Studies completed 

-    

Nifer o rwydweithiau rydych chi am eu 

sefydlu / 

Number of Networks established 

-    

Nifer o weithgareddau peilot rydych chi am 

ymgymryd â nhw (dulliau newydd/cynnyrch 

newydd/prosesau newydd/gwasanaethau 

newydd)/ 

Number of Pilot activities undertaken (new 

approaches/new products/new processes/new 

services) 

-    

Nifer y Canolfannau Cymunedol 

Number of Community Hubs 
-    

Nifer o ymarferion cyflwyno 

gwybodaeth/hyrwyddo a/neu farchnata rydych chi 

am ymgymryd â nhw / 

Number of Information dissemination 

actions/promotional and/or marketing activities 

undertaken 

25 1 10 15 

Nifer o randdeiliaid rydych chi am gydweithio â 

nhw / 

Number of Stakeholders engaged 

25 0 
78 

(individuals) 
0 

Nifer o bobl rydych chi am eu cefnogi / 
Number of Participants supported 

100 0 0 100 

 

Newidiadau i’r prosiect / Requesting Changes to project 
Rhowch fanylion yma am unrhyw newidiadau yr hoffech eu gofyn i'ch prosiect o'r hyn a amlinellir yn y ffurflen gais (ee 
newidiadau i weithgaredd, newidiadau i wariant neu symud rhwng penawdau cyllideb, unrhyw newidiadau i staffio, 
Dangosyddion Perfformiad, hyd y prosiect / prosiect dyddiad diwedd ac ati. Sylwch, mae'n rhaid i Cadwyn Clwyd gytuno ar 

unrhyw newidiadau i brosiect yn ysgrifenedig cyn y gellir eu gweithredu / 
Please provide details here of any changes you would like to request to your project from that outlined in the application 
form (e.g. changes to activity, changes to spend or movement between budget headings, any changes to staffing, 
Performance Indicators, length of project/project end date etc.  Please note, Cadwyn Clwyd must agree any changes to a 
project in writing before they can be implemented 
 
 

 

 A cost of £5,000 is stated for Q1 for the research, consultation and writing of the modules. 
Pragma Training is still writing/finalising the module content therefore this will be paid in 
Quarter 4 (£4,625 to be exact) 
 
 

 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

North East Wales - Year of the Sea Films 

 
Full Main Film - https://youtu.be/SiE-t7zrS1s  

 

Brilliant Waterways - https://youtu.be/Kjk7RwhHiVE  

 

Brilliant Wildlife - https://youtu.be/hHUHRMlC3cA  

 

Brilliant Walks - https://youtu.be/jBUfPdPyVmk  

 

Brilliant Cycling - https://youtu.be/QTGEmL0jp_g  

 

Brilliant Beaches - https://youtu.be/IK8LZM5Ay-g  

 

Brilliant Heritage - https://youtu.be/YXiY7RLE744  

 

2 more films left to be completed by the end of 2018:  

 Brilliant Adventure  
 Brilliant Food and Drink 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Finalised Blogs               Appendix 6 

 

 

 

Heather on her Travels  

12 breathtaking things to do in 

North East Wales 

 

https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/12-

things-to-do-in-north-east-wales/ 

 

 

Covers – 

Aqueduct, Llangollen, Plas Newydd, Valle Crucis, Horseshoe Pass, 

Gladstone Library/Hawarden, Hawarden Farm Shop/Good Life, St 

Winefride’s Well, Talacre, Prestatyn-Walks/Offa’s Dyke/Coastal 

Path/Walking Festival, Ruthin/Nantclwyd y Dre, Chirk Castle 

 

Heather on her Travels  

Exploring the food in North East 

Wales –  

Places to eat and delicious Welsh 

dishes to try 

 

https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/places-

to-eat-and-food-in-north-east-wales/ 

 

 

Covers – 

Dishes to try - Welsh Rarebit, Welsh Cawl, Welsh Cakes & Bara Brith 

Places to eat – Hawarden - The Glynne Arms, Gladstone Library, 

Hawarden Farm Shop 

Llangollen – Corn Mill, The Station Café & Bar, Gales of Llangollen, 

Plas Newydd Tearooms, Aqueduct Café Boat 

Ruthin – Myddleton Grill 

Where to buy – Hawarden Farm Shop, 

Rhug Estate 

Local produce – Wrexham Lager, Llangollen Brewery, Patchwork, 

Chirk Trout Farm 

Food Festivals – Great British Food Festival at Bodelwydden Castle, 

Mold Food & Drink Festival, Good Life Experience, Llangollen Food 

Festival 

Stay – Gladstone Library 

 

 

 

The Travel Hack  

How to have a perfect glamping 

weekend in Llangollen, North East 

Wales 

https://thetravelhack.com/uk/weekend-in-

llangollen-north-east-wales/  

Covers – 

Llangollen & train, The Forge Llangollen, Horseshoe Falls, Dinas Bran, 

Plas Newydd, Valle Crucis, Aqueduct, highlights adventure activities 

in Llangollen 

P
age 129

https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/12-things-to-do-in-north-east-wales/
https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/12-things-to-do-in-north-east-wales/
https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/places-to-eat-and-food-in-north-east-wales/
https://www.heatheronhertravels.com/places-to-eat-and-food-in-north-east-wales/
https://thetravelhack.com/uk/weekend-in-llangollen-north-east-wales/
https://thetravelhack.com/uk/weekend-in-llangollen-north-east-wales/


 

 

Zoe Dawes - The Quirky Traveller  

Discover a host of medieval castles 

in North East Wales 

 

https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/medieval-

castles-north-east-wales/  

Covers – 

Ewloe Castle, Flint Castle, Rhuddlan Castle, Denbigh Castle, 

Bodelwyddan Castle, Ruthin Castle Hotel 

 

Zoe Dawes - The Quirky Traveller  

5 Quirky Places to visit in North East 

Wales 

 

https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/5-quirky-

things-to-do-north-east-wales/  

 

Covers -  

Cae Dai 50s Museum, Ruthin Gaol, Ruthin Craft Centre, The Marble 

Church at Bodelwyddan, Gladstone’s Library, Rhyl Harbour, Afonwen 

Craft and Antiques Centre, Nantclwyd y Dre 

 

 

Zoe Dawes – The Quirky Traveller  

5 delightful tearooms and unique 

cafes in North East Wales 

 

https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/5-

tearooms-cafes-north-east-wales/ 

Covers –  

The Sugar Plum Tea Room in Rhewl, Lola & Suggs Beach Café in 

Talacre, Harbour Hub Café in Rhyl, Cae Dai Museum in Denbigh, 

Edenshine Restaurant-Afonwen Craft Centre, Ruthin Castle 

 

Potty Adventures - Offa’s Dyke 

Path Llangollen to Llandegla 1 

 

http://pottyadventures.com/mini-

adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-

the-offas-dyke-path-llangollen-to-llandegla/  

 

Covers – 

Llangollen, Llangollen Canal, Aqueduct, Dinas Bran, World’s End, 

Llandegla Forest, Llangollen Eisteddfod, Focus Wales, Red Dragon 

Music Festival 

 

 

Potty Adventures - Offa’s Dyke 

Path  

Llandegla to Bodfari  2 

 

http://pottyadventures.com/mini-

adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-

the-offas-dyke-path-llandegla-bodfari/  

 

Covers – 

Llandegla Village, Moel Fenlli, Moel Famau & The Hut, Moel Arthur, 

Penycloddiau. OnePlanet Adventure, Loggerheads 

 

 

Potty Adventures - Offa’s Dyke 

Path  

Bodfari to Rhuallt 3 

 

http://pottyadventures.com/mini-

adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-

bodfari-to-rhuallt-along-the-offas-dyke-

path/  

Covers – 

Clwydian Range, Bodelwyddan Castle, Denbigh Castle 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 130

https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/medieval-castles-north-east-wales/
https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/medieval-castles-north-east-wales/
https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/5-quirky-things-to-do-north-east-wales/
https://www.thequirkytraveller.com/5-quirky-things-to-do-north-east-wales/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llangollen-to-llandegla/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llangollen-to-llandegla/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llangollen-to-llandegla/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llandegla-bodfari/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llandegla-bodfari/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-the-offas-dyke-path-llandegla-bodfari/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-bodfari-to-rhuallt-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-bodfari-to-rhuallt-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-bodfari-to-rhuallt-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-bodfari-to-rhuallt-along-the-offas-dyke-path/


 

 

Potty Adventures - Offa’s Dyke 

Path  

Rhuallt to Prestatyn 4 

 

 

http://pottyadventures.com/mini-

adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-

rhuallt-to-prestatyn-along-the-offas-dyke-

path/  

 

Covers – 

Prestatyn Hillside, Prestatyn Beach, Talacre, Prestatyn Walking Festival 

 

Gary Bembridge 

8 things to do in North East Wales 

 

 

 

 

https://youtu.be/tLjy8bxam40 

Covers – 

Llangollen – Canal/Aqueduct/Horse-drawn boats/Railway, Horseshoe 

Falls, Erddig, Chirk Castle, Bodelwyddan Castle, Prestatyn Beach 

 

Gary Bembridge 

5 Reasons to visit North East Wales 

 

 

https://youtu.be/ft-E9j7Lxjw 

 

Covers – 

Beautiful scenery-outdoor activity e.g. walking/cycling, Castles & 

Stately Homes, diverse range of old-style transportation e.g. train, 

boats, beaches, World Heritage Site 

 

 

Abigail King 

9 unusual things to do in North 

Wales 

 

 

 

https://www.insidethetravellab.com/unusual-
things-to-do-in-north-wales/ 

Covers – 

Ruthin Craft Centre, Rhyl Beach, Rhyl Miniature Railway, Mold, Chirk 

Castle, St Asaph Cathedral, Ty Pawb, Pontcysyllte Aqueduct 

 

 

Abigail King 

My Welsh Roots & Routes to the 

Sea in Wales 

 

 

 

 

https://www.insidethetravellab.com/welsh/ 

Covers –  

Coast-Rhyl, WHS/Aqueduct, Wrexham Sheep Trail, Chirk Aqueduct, St 

Asaph Cathedral, Ty Pawb, Ruthin Craft Centre 

P
age 131

http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-rhuallt-to-prestatyn-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-rhuallt-to-prestatyn-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-rhuallt-to-prestatyn-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
http://pottyadventures.com/mini-adventures/hiking/north-east-wales-walks-rhuallt-to-prestatyn-along-the-offas-dyke-path/
https://youtu.be/tLjy8bxam40
https://youtu.be/ft-E9j7Lxjw
https://www.insidethetravellab.com/unusual-things-to-do-in-north-wales/
https://www.insidethetravellab.com/unusual-things-to-do-in-north-wales/


 

Cerys Lowe 

Gorge Walking 

 

 

 

https://mascaraandmud.com/2018/08/31/gorge-
walking-open-door-adventure/ 

Covers – 

Open Door Adventure, mentions – Safe & Sound Outdoors, Pro 

Adventure, TNR Coaching, Kingswood Adventures, The Forge, 

Woodland Skills Centre, Mountain Escapes 

 

 

 

  

 

P
age 132

https://mascaraandmud.com/2018/08/31/gorge-walking-open-door-adventure/
https://mascaraandmud.com/2018/08/31/gorge-walking-open-door-adventure/


Appendix 7 
 
2018 Year of the Sea Food Challenge Report 
  
The 2018 Year of the Sea food challenge was open to all restaurants across North 
East Wales, with the emphasis on creating a dish that utilised local produce and 
linked into the Year of the Sea. Each dish had to be either a classic fish & chips (but 
with a twist!) or a surf & turf dish. 
  
Over all, twelve restaurants submitted entries and were required to serve their dish 
between 15th January and 12th February 2018.  During this time, mystery diners and 
bloggers visited each place twice and encouraged members of the public to try these 
dishes via social media and interactive blog posts. 
  
Each venue was also awarded points for promoting their dish and talking about the 
Year of the Sea to customers and online as much as possible. 
  
Businesses who entered were; 

1. Gales Llangollen (surf and turf dish will be Pen y Lan pork belly, saffron 
mash, American sauce, langoustine, and quails egg) 

2. Old Wives Tales Corwen (Local Denbighshire pork & cockles)  

3. Fat Boar Mold (Prosciutto wrapped pork tenderloin, smoked paprika, prawn & 
chorizo risotto, buttered kale, prawn bisque) 

4. Druid Inn (‘OMC! Oh My Cod' – Cod Supreme, Parmentier Potatoes, Pea Puree, 
Batter Scraps & Malt Vinegar Caramel. 

5. Fat Boar Wrexham (18oz bone in Celtic pride ribeye, giant crab claws, Perl las 
sauce. Crispy Spiralized Covent Garden potato, Anglesey salted roast tomato and 
Wrexham lager battered onion rings) 

6. Lot 11 Wrexham (Reef and Beef Open Sandwich - Griddled Rump Steak, 
Sautéed Mushrooms, Lemon Dressed Prawns + Basil Mayonnaise on Toasted 
Sourdough) 

7. Croes Howell (posh “fish and chips” - cod fillet wrap in crispy potato. Pea and 
mint purée, aerated tartare sauce, prosecco batter scraps and lemon crisp)  

8. Royal Oak Bangor on Dee (surf & slurp - a winter hearty dish that will warm you 
up from the inside. Braised Pork & Mussels) 

9. Lemon Tree Wrexham (fish and chips with a twist - pan roasted cod loin, cider 
braised pigs cheek, pea puree & a saffron tartare sauce). 

10. Holt Lodge, Wrexham ("Chip n Fin" - served in newspaper made in the shape of 
a boat which reflects the sea theme. The newspaper will be headlined Holt Lodge 
and include some hot off the press stories all based around Wales and include some 

Page 133



quirky captions such as There’s No Plaice Like Holt Lodge. In the boat will be served 
plaice and mussels.  The dish will be served with Posh Peas and will be a take on 
French Peas, so they are being called Peas de Gallos which means peas of Wales. 
The peas will be cooked with leeks, bacon lardons, gem lettuce & garlic butter 

11. Hafod Restaurant, Coleg Cambria, Wrexham – (Surf & Turf); Duo of Llyfasi 
lamb, salt cod brandade, spring greens, cockle sauce vierge finished with a 
rosemary and red currant jus. 

12. The Alyn, Rossett - Salmons got Sole. The dish consists of battered Salmon 
and Sole Chunky Chips held in a Bale of Potato String Pea Puree and Lemon Gel, 
Garnished with Charred Lemon and Pea Shoots.  

At a cook-off on 16th February, the overall winner was judged to be Gales in 
Llangollen, with both the Fat Boar Wrexham and the Royal Oak Bangor on Dee 
coming in as Runners Up.  Judges included Michelin Chefs Kevin Lynn (Rossett) 
and Grant Mulholland (Llanarmon DC) along with Kerry Thatcher at Visit Wales. 
  

Media links 

  

Highlights film;  
  
https://vimeo.com/257723775/fe8aaa4649  
  
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E3lgclan4cU  
  

News report; 
  
https://www.thisiswrexham.co.uk/yearofthesea2018 
  
http://www.wrexham.com/news/three-north-east-wales-restaurants-to-compete-in-year-of-sea-
food-challenge-final-144700.html  
  
http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/leisure/features/16032772.It_s_down_to_three____trio_of_restaurant
s_battle_it_out_in_North_Wales_seafood_challenge/  
  
https://www.dailypost.co.uk/whats-on/food-drink-news/12-super-north-wales-seafood-14208818  
  

Blog;   
  
https://www.therarewelshbit.com/2018/01/2018-north-east-wales-year-sea-food-challenge-
2018.html  
  

 

Page 134

https://vimeo.com/257723775/fe8aaa4649
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E3lgclan4cU
https://www.thisiswrexham.co.uk/yearofthesea2018
http://www.wrexham.com/news/three-north-east-wales-restaurants-to-compete-in-year-of-sea-food-challenge-final-144700.html
http://www.wrexham.com/news/three-north-east-wales-restaurants-to-compete-in-year-of-sea-food-challenge-final-144700.html
http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/leisure/features/16032772.It_s_down_to_three____trio_of_restaurants_battle_it_out_in_North_Wales_seafood_challenge/
http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/leisure/features/16032772.It_s_down_to_three____trio_of_restaurants_battle_it_out_in_North_Wales_seafood_challenge/
https://www.dailypost.co.uk/whats-on/food-drink-news/12-super-north-wales-seafood-14208818
https://www.therarewelshbit.com/2018/01/2018-north-east-wales-year-sea-food-challenge-2018.html
https://www.therarewelshbit.com/2018/01/2018-north-east-wales-year-sea-food-challenge-2018.html


        Appendix 8 

 

 

 
 

EVENTS NOTIFICATION 2018 

 

 

S 

EVENT OVERVIEW 

Please refer to the Handy Events Toolkit for more information 

Name of the event 
 

 

Event Type  

e.g. sponsored walk, fun day, festival, cycling 

 

 

 

Proposed location of event 
 

 

Proposed event dates: Start & End 
 

 

Proposed start time: Start & End 
 

 

Requested date & time of arrival on site: 
 

 

Requested date & time of departure from site: 
 

 

 

PERMISSIONS 

Do you give permission for your contact details to be added to a database, for use: 

 

 Internally (Denbighshire Officers)  

 

 Externally (By members of the public enquiring about the event?)  

  

Do you give permission for the event to be displayed on the following: 

 

 Discover Denbighshire What’s On Booklet  

  

Yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

Yes No 

Page 135



 

 Denbighshire County Council Events Page  

 Discover Denbighshire Website 

 North East Wales Website 

 Shared on social media channels (Facebook, Twitter)  

Page 136



 

EVENT ORGANISERS DETAILS 

Name of Organisation and Address  

 

Name of Contact Person 
 

 

Telephone Number 
 

 

Mobile Number 
 

 

E-mail address 
 

 

Website 
 

 

On site contact on the day of the 

event: 

Please note, this person is 

responsible for Health & Safety, 

noise control, and overall running of 

the event, unless otherwise stated. 

 

 

 

On site contact mobile number on the 

day of the event: 

 

 

 

 

EVENT DESCRIPTION 

Notification process requires you to fill this section out.  If any of these details change, it is up to 

YOU to inform the DCC officers you have engaged with from the list on pages three and four of 

this document.  

 

Please provide a description of the event:   

E.g. full programme of activities, any entertainment and so on. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 137



 

 

 

 

CONTACT LIST 

If you are planning any of the following activities or require access to any of these services, YOU MUST contact the 

relevant department of Denbighshire County Council listed below: 

 

 Live / recorded music (i.e. if you are planning to play live or recorded music at the event) 

DCC Dept: 

 Public 

Protection  

 licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824 706342 

 Food and drink (hot and/or cold) e.g. if you are serving hot/cold food at your event or have food outlets at the event) 

Public 

Protection  

 food.safety@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824-706405 

 Health & Safety this will cover all areas of health and safety involved with the event, including the need to 

undertake a risk assessment 

Public 

Protection 

 mari.mcandrew@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824 708335 

envhealth@denbighshshire.gov.uk 

01824 706305 

 Performances by groups or individuals e.g. if there are children under 16, a licence will be required 

Education 

Support 

 

Public 

Protection 

 nell.perrin@denbighshire.gov.uk or  
admissions@Denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824 706124 

licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824 706342 

 Street Trading e.g. you are collecting money for a charity or you require an alcohol licence 

Public 

Protection 

 licensing@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824 706342 

 Use of Denbighshire County Council car park e.g. if your event is taking place on a car park  

Parking 

Services 

 parking-services@denbighshire.gov.uk 

James Parson 01824 70 6889 

John Williams 07836 265117 Page 138

mailto:mari.mcandrew@denbighshire.gov.uk


 

 Use of DCC land e.g. if your event is taking place on Bastion fields Prestatyn which is DCC owned 

Streetscene  North: Michael Bennion 01745 334126 

Michael.Bennion@denbighshire.gov.uk 

South: Jon Chapman 01824 708136 

jon.chapman@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 Site cleaning e.g. you require guidance on removal of refuse from your event 

Streetscene  North: Michael Bennion 01745 334126 
Michael.Bennion@denbighshire.gov.uk 

South: Jon Chapman 01824 708136 
jon.chapman@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 Public conveniences e.g. if you need to check whether the public conveniences are open on your event day 

Contracts and 

Facilities 

 mark.jackson@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712142 

 Use of countryside sites and historic sites managed by Denbighshire County Council e.g. if you are planning on 

organsing a running event on Moel Famau 

Countryside 

and Heritage 

Services 

Loggerheads and Moel Famau 

Country Parks 

Countryside Sites, North 

 

Countryside Sites Central and South 

[including the Clwydian Range and 

Dee Valley AONB 

 

Heritage Sites [Old Gaol, Nant Clwyd 

y Dre) 

rachel Jones 01824 712747 rachel.jones@denbighshire.gov.uk 

garry Davies 01824 708395 garry.davies@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 

david Shiel  01824 712733 david.shiel@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 

samantha Williams   01824 708259 
samantha.williams@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 To get advice about traffic management e.g. if it might be necessary to apply for a road closure 

Streetworks  streetworks@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824706965 or 01824706979 

 To get advice about whether you require a licence from DCC to use a particular site 

Valuations and 

Estates 

 

   

catherine.jonesblack@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824706814 

rebecca.Williams@denbighshire.gov.uk Page 139

mailto:mark.jackson@denbighshire.gov.uk


 

01824706816 

 To get advice about using harbour facilities in Rhyl e.g. holding an event at the harbour 

Maritime 

Services 

 mark.budd@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824708409 

 

sion.goldsmith@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712725 / 07767305606 

 If you are planning on hosting an event on the coast, please contact:  

Assets &  

Communities 

Commercial 

Leisure 

Coastal Events sion.goldsmith@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712725 / 07767305606 

sian.davies@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824706651 

 To get advice about using one of Denbighshire County Council’s leisure centres 

Assets &  

Communities 

Commercial 

Leisure 

Prestatyn Leisure Centre / Pavilion 

Theatre 

paul.harrison@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824706650 / 07909686495 

Nova / Rhyl Leisure Centre steven.baldwin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712378 / 07776475335 

Denbigh / Ruthin / St Asaph Leisure 

Centres 

ian.olson@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712375 

Corwen / Llangollen Leisure Centres rhian.roberts@denbighshire.gov.uk 

01824712728 / 07917213964 

  

 

 

Would like to receive future correspondence through the medium of Welsh? 

  

 

 

Signed:         Date:         

Please return (preferable by e-mail) to: tourism@denbighshire.gov.uk  Once received, we will forward your completed notification to 

the relevant departments   Tourism, Marketing & Events team, PO Box 62, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 9AZ       01824 

706223 

Yes No 

Page 140

mailto:tourism@denbighshire.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

North East Wales - Visitor Newsletter 

 

 
January 

 
North East Wales - Welcome Email 

 
February 

 
Year of the Sea Launch 

 
March 

 
FOCUS Wales - Event Newsletter 

 
April 

 
Waterways Newsletter (Waterways Theme) 

 
May 

 
Walking Newsletter (Walking Theme) 

 
June 

 
Father’s Day Newsletter 

 
July 

 
Cycling Newsletter (Cycling Theme) 

 
August 

 
Brilliant Beaches (Beach Theme) 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 10 

Total Tourism Social Engagements  

(North East Wales and Discover Denbighshire)  

April - August 

 2017 2018 % Increase / Decrease 

Total Engagements 18,700 42,700 128% 
Facebook 7,035 9,936 41% 

Twitter 10,900 8,969 -17% 
Instagram 745 23,800 3905% 

 

 

 

North East Wales Website 

April - August 

 

 2017 2018 % Increase / Decrease 

Sessions 3628 6398 76% 
Page Visits 11,025 13,855 26% 

Bounce Rate 56.09% 70.02% 25% 
 

Discover Denbighshire Website 

 April - August 

 

 2017 2018 % Increase / Decrease 

Sessions 1997 4288 115% 
Page Visits 8612 9182 7% 

Bounce Rate 54.78% 55.08% 2% 
 

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
525 633 717 660 544 725 838 791 502 635 741 838 776 628 962 1026 896 572

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
1421 1530 1818 1669 1285 2032 2459 1737 1034 59.96% 64.78% 53.46% 56.31% 57.32% 61.23% 50.39% 51.23% 61.36%

Yearly Discover Denbighshire Website Figures

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Number of Users

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Page Views

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Number of Sessions

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Bounce Rate

P
age 145



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

42214 49271 69422 62900 24400 61900 68200 23400 94,500 528 838 974 503 663 1239 701 221 713

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

29 39 32 52 32 29 44 43 15 56

Discover Denbighshire Facebook

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

90000

100000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Impressions

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Engagements

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Posts (Photos, Posts, Videos)

P
age 146



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

104404 44687 87704 66300 26200 22400 23600 4753 19,400 1847 888 1661 1105 612 649 609 167 495

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

50 55 74 66 39 49 26 8 41

Discover Denbighshire Twitter

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Organic Impressions

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Engagements

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tweets Sent (Photos, Posts, Videos)

P
age 147



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

683 782 835 918 993 1099 1152 1187 1221 4144 3942 3680 3739 3790 3312 4231 2925 3075

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

37 32 32 30 30 27 31 24 22

Discover Denbighshire Instagram

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Followers

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Likes Recieved

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Posts (Photos, Posts, Videos)

P
age 148



Number of Users 525 Impressions 42,214 Organic Impress 104,404 Total Followers 683

Number of Sessions 635 Engagements 528 Total Engageme 1,847 Likes Received 4,144

Page Views 1,421 Link Clicks 429 Link Clicks 127 Comments Rece 90

Bounce rate 59.69%

Net Likes 24 Net Followers Ga 60 Total Posts 37

Photos 35

Total Post 29 Tweets Sent 50 Videos 2

ENG Photos 15

Videos 1 Mentions Receiv 98

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 13

Number of Opens 91 Replies 13

Open Rate 25.90% Reactions 416 Retweets 181

Number of Clicks 19 Comments 14 Likes 546

Click Rate 5.40% Shares 98

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent 1

Number of Opens 81

Open Rate 23%

Number of Clicks 2

Click Rate 0.60%

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)- Jan 2018

Facebook Twitter InstagramWebsite

P
age 149



Number of Users 633 Impressions 49,271 Organic Impress 44,687 Total Followers 782

Number of Sessions 741 Engagments 838 Total Engageme 888 Likes Received 3,942

Page Views 1,530 Link Clicks 304 Link Clicks 68 Comments Rece 77

Bounce rate 64.78%

Net Likes 33 Net Followers Ga 46 Total Posts 32

Photos 30

Total Post 39 Tweets Sent 55 Videos 1

ENG Photos 15

Videos 1 Mentions Receiv 105

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 23

Number of Opens 102 Replies 6

Open Rate 29.00% Reactions 637 Retweets 140

Number of Clicks 3 Comments 68 Likes 299

Click Rate 0.90% Shares 133

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent 0

Number of Opens -

Open Rate -

Number of Clicks -

Click Rate -

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire) - Feb 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 150



Number of Users 717 Impressions 69,422 Organic Impress 87,704 Total Followers 835

Number of Sessions 838 Engagments 974 Total Engageme 1,661 Likes Received 3,680

Page Views 1,818 Link Clicks 286 Link Clicks 182 Comments Rece 77

Bounce rate 53.46%

Net Likes 40 Net Followers Ga 92 Total Posts 32

Photos 31

Total Post 69 Tweets Sent 74 Videos -

ENG Photos 20

Videos 3 Mentions Receiv 83

Number of Newsletters sent 2 Posts 46

Number of Opens 236 Replies 15

Open Rate Reactions 806 Retweets 205

Number of Clicks 29 Comments 28 Likes 511

Click Rate Shares 140

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent 2

Number of Opens 198

Open Rate

Number of Clicks 40

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire) - Mar 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 151



Number of Users 660 Impressions 62,900 Organic Impress 66,300 Total Followers 918

Number of Sessions 776 Engagments 503 Total Engageme 1,105 Likes Received 3,739

Page Views 1,669 Link Clicks 158 Link Clicks 78 Comments Rece 82

Bounce rate 56.31%

Net Likes 14 Net Followers Ga 44 Total Posts 30

Photos 30

Total Post 52 Tweets Sent 66 Videos -

ENG Photos 30

Videos 1 Mentions Receiv 84

Number of Newsletters sent - Posts 21

Number of Opens - Replies 3

Open Rate - Reactions 411 Retweets 128

Number of Clicks - Comments 11 Likes 370

Click Rate - Shares 81

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent -

Number of Opens -

Open Rate -

Number of Clicks -

Click Rate -

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 152



Number of Users 544 Impressions 24,400 Organic Impress 26,200 Total Followers 993

Number of Sessions 628 Engagments 663 Total Engageme 612 Likes Received 3,790

Page Views 1,286 Link Clicks 12 Link Clicks 23 Comments Rece 109

Bounce rate 57.32%

Net Likes 31 Net Followers Ga 47 Total Posts 30

Photos 30

Total Post 29 Tweets Sent 39 Videos -

ENG Photos 15

Videos 1 Mentions Receiv 98

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 13

Number of Opens 120 Replies 2

Open Rate 35.10% Reactions 559 Retweets 89

Number of Clicks 54 Comments 32 Likes 249

Click Rate 15.80% Shares 72

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent 1

Number of Opens 106

Open Rate 31%

Number of Clicks 4

Click Rate 1.20%

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 153



Number of Users 725 Impressions 61,900 Organic Impress 22,400 Total Followers 1099

Number of Sessions 962 Engagments 1239 Total Engageme 649 Likes Received 3,312

Page Views 2,032 Link Clicks 149 Link Clicks 23 Comments Rece 84

Bounce rate 61.23%

Net Likes 52 Net Followers Ga 32 Total Posts 27

Photos 27

Total Post 44 Tweets Sent 49 Videos -

ENG Photos 19

Videos 4 Mentions Receiv 143

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 20

Number of Opens Replies 7

Open Rate Reactions 856 Retweets 111

Number of Clicks Comments 164 Likes 7

Click Rate Shares 219

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 154



Number of Users 838 Impressions 68,200 Organic Impress 23,600 Total Followers 1152

Number of Sessions 1026 Engagments 701 Total Engageme 609 Likes Received 4,231

Page Views 2,459 Link Clicks 148 Link Clicks 24 Comments Rece 96

Bounce rate 50.39%

Net Likes 46 Net Followers Ga 31 Total Posts 31

Photos 31

Total Post 43 Tweets Sent 26 Videos -

ENG Photos 18

Videos 0 Mentions Receiv 112

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 25

Number of Opens Replies 4

Open Rate Reactions 564 Retweets 91

Number of Clicks Comments 43 Likes 243

Click Rate Shares 94

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 155



Number of Users 791 Impressions 23,400 Organic Impress 4,753 Total Followers 1187

Number of Sessions 896 Engagments 221 Total Engageme 167 Likes Received 2,925

Page Views 1,737 Link Clicks 85 Link Clicks 12 Comments Rece 67

Bounce rate 51.23%

Net Likes 13 Net Followers Ga 29 Total Posts 24

Photos 0

Total Post 15 Tweets Sent 8 Videos 0

ENG Photos 7

Videos 0 Mentions Receiv 75

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 8

Number of Opens Replies 2

Open Rate Reactions 178 Retweets 24

Number of Clicks Comments 7 Likes 41

Click Rate Shares 36

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 156



Number of Users 502 Impressions 94,500 Organic Impress 19,400 Total Followers 1221

Number of Sessions 572 Engagments 713 Total Engageme 495 Likes Received 3,075

Page Views 1,034 Link Clicks 176 Link Clicks 40 Comments Rece 73

Bounce rate 61.36%

Net Likes 17 Net Followers Ga 27 Total Posts 22

Photos 22

Total Post 56 Tweets Sent 41 Videos 0

ENG Photos 26

Videos 0 Mentions Receiv 101

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 30

Number of Opens Replies 5

Open Rate Reactions 588 Retweets 74

Number of Clicks Comments 11 Likes 169

Click Rate Shares 114

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 157



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 158



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 159



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

CYM

Number of Newsletters sent

Number of Opens

Open Rate

Number of Clicks

Click Rate

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (Discover Denbighshire)

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

P
age 160



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

467 548 1014 869 1013 1196 893 1443 1242 603 690 1278 1051 1186 1500 1049 1612 1419

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

1700 2022 2772 2871 2401 3165 2269 3149 2777 59.37% 56.23% 65.41% 65.08% 71.84% 74.47% 67.78% 69.23% 74.56%

Yearly North East Wales Website Figures

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Number of Users

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Page Views

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Number of Sessions

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Bounce Rate

Page 161



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

55038 22458 84873 149000 49600 97600 83700 82800 145100 624 289 1490 1752 1009 1228 1310 1214 2191

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

63 61 40 48 51 55 74 41 78

North East Wales Facebook

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Impressions

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Engagements

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Posts (Photos, Posts, Videos)

Page 162



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

34490 43583 94498 68000 40400 47700 39400 55200 87900 879 1355 1911 1230 787 1126 1310 1367 1849

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

44 51 40 33 58 61 52 47 76

North East Wales Twitter

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

90000

100000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Organic Impressions

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Engagements

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Tweets Sent (Photos, Posts, Videos)

Page 163



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

297 337 385 437 478 514 590 846 1038 668 776 888 822 720 711 1151 1799 4127

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

14 13 13 13 12 10 14 21 30

North East Wales Instagram

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Followers

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Likes Recieved

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Total Posts (Photos, Posts, Videos)

Page 164



Number of Users 467 Impressions 55,038 Organic Im 34,490 Total Follow 297

Number of Sessions 603 Engageme 624 Total Enga 879 Likes Recei  668

Page Views 1,700 Link Clicks 102 Link Clicks 103 Comments 17

Bounce rate 59.37%

Net Likes 40 Net Follow  58 Total Posts 14

Photos 14

Total Post 63 Tweets Sen 44 Videos -

ENG Photos 28

Videos - Mentions R 160

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 35

Number of Opens Replies 5

Open Rate Reactions 454 Retweets 87

Number of Clicks Comments 29 Likes 193

Click Rate Shares 141

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales)- Jan 2018

Facebook Twitter InstagramWebsite

Page 165



Number of Users 548 Impressions 22,458 Organic Im 43,583 Total Follow 337

Number of Sessions 690 Engagmen 289 Total Enga 1,355 Likes Recei  776

Page Views 2,022 Link Clicks 72 Link Clicks 77 Comments 23

Bounce rate 56.23%

Net Likes 12 Net Follow  40 Total Posts 13

Photos 12

Total Post 61 Tweets Sen 51 Videos 1

ENG Photos 24

Videos 1 Mentions R 184

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 36

Number of Opens Replies 11

Open Rate Reactions 204 Retweets 98

Number of Clicks Comments 24 Likes 237

Click Rate Shares 61

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - Feb 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 166



Number of Users 1014 Impressions 84,873 Organic Im 94,498 Total Follow 385

Number of Sessions 1278 Engagmen 1490 Total Enga 1,911 Likes Recei  888

Page Views 2,772 Link Clicks 138 Link Clicks 223 Comments 26

Bounce rate 65.41%

Net Likes 108 Net Follow  123 Total Posts 14

Photos 13

Total Post 52 Tweets Sen 40 Videos 1

ENG Photos 24

Videos 3 Mentions R 134

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 25

Number of Opens Replies 11

Open Rate Reactions 1106 Retweets 187

Number of Clicks Comments 143 Likes 429

Click Rate Shares 241

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - Mar 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 167



Number of Users 869 Impressions 149,000 Organic Im 68,000 Total Follow 437

Number of Sessions 1051 Engagmen 1752 Total Engag 1,230 Likes Recei  822

Page Views 2,871 Link Clicks 255 Link Clicks 216 Comments 13

Bounce rate 65.08%

Net Likes 120 Net Followe  91 Total Posts 13

Photos 13

Total Post 48 Tweets Sen 33 Videos -

ENG Photos 19

Videos 1 Mentions R 97

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 28

Number of Opens Replies 6

Open Rate Reactions 1352 Retweets 99

Number of Clicks Comments 129 Likes 260

Click Rate Shares 271

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - April 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 168



Number of Users 1013 Impressions 49,600 Organic Im 40,400 Total Follow 478

Number of Sessions 1186 Engagmen 1009 Total Enga 787 Likes Recei  720

Page Views 2,401 Link Clicks 263 Link Clicks 144 Comments 20

Bounce rate 71.84%

Net Likes 65 Net Follow  100 Total Posts 12

Photos 12

Total Post 51 Tweets Sen 58 Videos -

ENG Photos 19

Videos 3 Mentions R 160

Number of Newsletters sent 3 Posts 29

Replies 15

Number of Opens 4089 Reactions 764 Retweets 106

Number of Clicks 87 Comments 74 Likes 238

Shares 171

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - May 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 169



Number of Users 1196 Impressions 97,600 Organic Im 47,700 Total Follow 514

Number of Sessions 1500 Engagmen 1228 Total Engag 1,126 Likes Recei  711

Page Views 3,165 Link Clicks 255 Link Clicks 143 Comments 23

Bounce rate 74.47%

Net Likes 80 Net Followe  42 Total Posts 10

Photos 10

Total Post 53 Tweets Sen 63 Videos -

ENG Photos 23

Videos 8 Mentions R 206

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 22

Number of Opens 1261 Replies 17

Open Rate 8.70% Reactions 972 Retweets 149

Number of Clicks 21 Comments 123 Likes 346

Click Rate 0.10% Shares 133

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - June 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 170



Number of Users 893 Impressions 83,700 Organic Im 39,400 Total Follow 590

Number of Sessions 1049 Engagmen 1310 Total Enga 1,156 Likes Recei  1,151

Page Views 2,269 Link Clicks 261 Link Clicks 90 Comments 29

Bounce rate 67.78%

Net Likes 124 Net Follow  54 Total Posts 14

Photos 13

Total Post 74 Tweets Sen 52 Videos 1

ENG Photos 27

Videos 4 Mentions R 166

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 42

Number of Opens 1318 Replies 7

Open Rate 9.10% Reactions 993 Retweets 131

Number of Clicks 24 Comments 111 Likes 339

Click Rate 0.20% Shares 206

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - July 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 171



Number of Users 1443 Impressions 82,800 Organic Im 55,200 Total Follow 846

Number of Sessions 1612 Engagmen 1214 Total Enga 1,367 Likes Recei  1,799

Page Views 3,149 Link Clicks 221 Link Clicks 227 Comments 37

Bounce rate 69.23%

Net Likes 49 Net Follow  39 Total Posts 21

Photos 20

Total Post 71 Tweets Sen 47 Videos 1

ENG Photos 25

Videos 4 Mentions R 115

Number of Newsletters sent 1 Posts 41

Number of Opens 1294 Replies 8

Open Rate 8.90% Reactions 991 Retweets 144

Number of Clicks 56 Comments 70 Likes 357

Click Rate 0.40% Shares 153

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - August 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 172



Number of Users 1242 Impressions 145,100 Organic Im 87,900 Total Follow 1038

Number of Sessions 1419 Engagmen 2191 Total Engag 1,849 Likes Recei  4,127

Page Views 2,777 Link Clicks 325 Link Clicks 230 Comments 106

Bounce rate 74.56%

Net Likes 60 Net Followe  67 Total Posts 30

Photos 29

Total Post 78 Tweets Sen 76 Videos 1

ENG Photos 43

Videos 3 Mentions R 170

Number of Newsletters sent Posts 32

Number of Opens Replies 9

Open Rate Reactions 1802 Retweets 216

Number of Clicks Comments 127 Likes 585

Click Rate Shares 262

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - September 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 173



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - October 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 174



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - November 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 175



Number of Users Impressions Organic Impressions Total Followers

Number of Sessions Engagments Total Engagements Likes Received 

Page Views Link Clicks Link Clicks Comments Received

Bounce rate 

Net Likes Net Followers Gained Total Posts

Photos

Total Post Tweets Sent Videos

ENG Photos

Videos Mentions Received

Number of Newsletters sent Posts

Number of Opens Replies

Open Rate Reactions Retweets

Number of Clicks Comments Likes

Click Rate Shares

E-Newsletter

Digital Activity Report (North East Wales) - December 2018

Website Facebook Twitter Instagram

Page 176



PR-All

Date Media Headline Link

22 April Daily Post online – film Could this video draw more tourists to North East Wales?
20 April Daily Post online  - gallery of images North East Wales for the Year of Legends tourism campaign
25 April Daily Post Legends of North East Wales star in new video
11 April S4C-Newyddion 9 interview with Hawys Lebbon N/A
12 April Rhyl Journal Online & Newspaper (page 2) Digital showcase is launched as part of Wales' Year of Legends 
12 April Denbighshire Free Press Online Digital showcase is launched as part of Wales' Year of Legends 
11 April wrexham.com North East Wales Celebrates its Legends!
12 April News North Wales Digital showcase is launched as part of Wales' Year of Legends 
12 April Denbighshire CC Website North East Wales Celebrates its Legends
27 April Denbighshire CC Website Wales Tourism Week on agenda at next Denbighshire Forum
3 May Daily Post Wales Tourism Week on agenda at next Denbighshire Forum
3 May Rhyl Journal Wales Tourism Week on agenda at next Denbighshire Forum
9 May Made in North Wales TV Wales Tourism Week on agenda at next Denbighshire Forum
9 May Travel Trade - Visit Wales - Online North East Wales Celebrates its Legends
11 May Visit Wales Industry Newsletter North East Wales Celebrates its Legends
15 May Wales Tourism Alliance Denbighshire Celebrates Wales Tourism Week
16 May Denbighshire CC Website Denbighshire Celebrates Wales Tourism Week
27 June wrexham.com £40k Grant secured to promote tourism across North East Wales
22 June Denbighshire CC Website North East Wales Secures Grant for Tourism Activity
15 June Visit Wales Travel Trade Website Denbighshire opens a Tourist Information Point
28 June Daily Post (Business Post) A grant of £40,000 from Welsh Government has been secured to highlight North East Wales’ tourism offer
29 August Denbighshire CC Website Visitor numbers on the up in Denbighshire https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/august-2017/Visitor-numbers-on-the-up-in-Denbighshire.aspx
6 Sept Business News Wales (Online) Research Reveals Denbighshire’s Tourism Industry is Thriving http://businessnewswales.com/research-reveals-denbighshires-tourism-industry-thriving/ 
7 Sept Denbighshire Free Press Denbighshire’s tourism industry is thriving according to recent research (page 7)
9 Oct Denbighshire CC Website Packed agenda at next Denbighshire Tourism Forum https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/october-2017/Packed-agenda-at-next-Denbighshire-Tourism-Forum.aspx 
10 Oct Daily Post (p20) Tourism businesses invited to sector event
11 Oct Rhyl Journal (p35) Tourism businesses invited to sector event
12 Oct BBC Wales TV & Radio Tourism potential of Red Squirrels

12-Oct Denbighshire Free Press Tourism businesses invited to forum
17-Oct Business News Wales (Online) Denbighshire’s Tourism Businesses Invited to Industry Forum https://businessnewswales.com/denbighshires-tourism-businesses-invited-industry-forum/   
12-Oct BBC News Website Red squirrel home hope for Clocaenog Forest, Denbighshire http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-north-east-wales-41589175 
26-Oct Made in North Wales TV Tourism Forum coverage
26-Oct Welsh Government Website Economy Secretary announces Tourism Funding at Denbighshire Tourism Forum http://gov.wales/newsroom/culture-tourism-sport/2017/59340136/?lang=en 
31-Oct Business News Wales (Online) Economy Secretary Announces Tourism Funding at Denbighshire Tourism Forum https://businessnewswales.com/economy-secretary-announces-tourism-funding-denbighshire-tourism-forum/ 
27-Oct Daily Post Online Stop knocking Rhyl and start loving your town to bring tourists in, says planning boss http://www.dailypost.co.uk/whats-on/stop-knocking-rhyl-start-loving-13817412 
28-Oct Daily Post Stop knocking Rhyl….and start loving it (p.24 full page)
01-Nov Rhyl Journal Promoting Rhyl as a tourism destination (p16)
01-Nov Daily Post Tourism funding announced (p5 of Business Post)
22-Dec Denbighshire CC Website North East Wales Year of the Sea, Sea Food Challenge https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/december-2017/north-east-wales'-year-of-the-sea-sea-food-challenge-2018.aspx  
03-Jan Business News Wales (Online) North Wales Restaurants Set to Host the 2018 Sea Food Challenge  https://businessnewswales.com/north-east-wales-year-sea-sea-food-challenge-2018/ 
04-Jan theLeader Hunt is on to find the best unique seafood in North East Wales http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/lifestyle/2018/01/04/gallery/hunt-is-on-to-find-the-best-unique-seafood-in-north-east-wales-103292/ 
06-Jan deeside.com Search is on for the best fish and chips in North East Wales http://www.deeside.com/search-best-fish-chips-north-east-wales/ 
27-Dec Free Press Restaurants will have the chance to take part in a food challenge this January by serving up fish and chips with a twist or locally sourced surf and turf
27-Dec The Journal Who doesn’t enjoy Fish and Chips?!  
15-Jan theLeader (online & paper) Where is the best chippy http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/lifestyle/2018/01/15/gallery/where-is-the-best-chippy-here-s-the-12-north-wales-eateries-fighting-it-out-in-seafood-challenge-103869/
12-Jan wrexham.com Wrexham & North East Wales eateries celebrate the Year of the Sea in new food challenge! http://www.wrexham.com/news/wrexham-north-east-wales-eateries-celebrate-the-year-of-the-sea-in-new-food-challenge-143189.html
15-Jan Denbighshire CC Website Twelve North East Wales Eateries Celebrate the Year of the Sea! https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/january-2018/twelve-north-east-wales-eateries-celebrate-the-year-of-the-sea.aspx  
31-Jan Daily Post (online) 12 super North Wales seafood dishes you need to try https://www.dailypost.co.uk/whats-on/food-drink-news/12-super-north-wales-seafood-14208818 
31-Jan The Rare Welsh Bit 2018 North East Wales Year of the Sea Food Challenge https://www.therarewelshbit.com/2018/01/2018-north-east-wales-year-sea-food-challenge-2018.html 

04-Mar
deeside.com

Regions stunning new tourism film features wakeboarders on the River Dee (NOTE-Film embedded on page so won't count to our 
views-need to ask for figures) http://www.deeside.com/regions-stunning-new-tourism-film-features-wakeboarders-river-dee/ 

05-Mar wrexham.com Video: North East Wales features in stunning new tourism film (link to film on YouTube) http://www.wrexham.com/news/video-north-east-wales-features-in-stunning-new-tourism-film-145727.html 
01-Mar Made in North Wales TV North East Wales Celebrates its Routes to the Sea
06-Mar Visit Wales - Travel Trade Website North East Wales Celebrates its Routes to the Sea http://www.traveltrade.visitwales.com/en/content/cms/news/routes-to-the-sea/ 
08-Mar Go North Wales website North East Wales Explore/regions page http://www.gonorthwales.co.uk/explore/regions/north-east-wales 
09-Mar Denbighshire Free Press A new film showcasing the North-East Wales region was released on St David’s Day.  Denbighshire, Wrexham and Flintshire have joined forces to produce the film to inspire new visitors to experience North East Wales’ Routes to the Sea (p57).
12-Mar Business News Wales (Online) New Film Showcasing North East Wales Released https://businessnewswales.com/new-film-showcasing-north-east-wales-released/
21-Mar Denbighshire Free Press Packed agenda at next Denbighshire Tourism Forum
21-Mar Rhyl Journal Packed agenda at next Denbighshire Tourism Forum
19-Mar Denbighshire CC Website Packed agenda at next Denbighshire Tourism Forum https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/march-2018/Packed-agenda-at-next-Tourism-Forum.aspx 
30-Mar Daily Post Packed agenda at next Denbighshire Tourism Forum
21-Aug Denbighshire Free Press Llangollen photography exhibition celebrates routes to the sea http://www.denbighshirefreepress.co.uk/news/16589772.llangollen-photography-exhibition-celebrates-routes-to-the-sea/ 
25-Aug the Leader Llangollen: Leader photographer showcases North Wales coastline http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/news/16597622.llangollen-leader-photographer-showcases-north-wales-coastline/
20-Aug Denbighshire CC Website Benefits of tourism in Denbighshire increase https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/August-2018/benefits-of-tourism-in-denbighshire-increase.aspx
31-Aug Daily Post Economic benefits of tourism are growing
31-Aug Wales 247 Denbighshire Boosted by Growth in Tourism https://wales247.co.uk/denbighshire-boosted-by-growth-in-tourism/
03-Sep Made in North Wales TV Cllr Hugh Evans talks about the benefits of tourism in Denbighshire Cllr Hugh Evans talk about the benefits of tourism in Denbighshire
05-Sep Denbighshire Free Press Tourism in Denbighshire has continued to grow as new figures reveal a significant year-on-year increase over the last decade (p11).  
06-Sep Rhyl Journal Tourism in Denbighshire has continued to grow as new figures reveal a significant year-on-year increase over the last decade (p7).  
05-Sep Leader Live Denbighshire tourism up by 70 per cent over last decade http://www.leaderlive.co.uk/news/16689302.Denbighshire_tourism_up_by_70_per_cent_over_last_decade/ 
07-Sep Business News Wales (Online) Economic Benefit of Tourism in Denbighshire Highlighted https://businessnewswales.com/economic-benefit-of-tourism-in-denbighshire-highlighted/ 
03-Oct Business News Wales (Online) Google Comes to Denbighshire in October https://businessnewswales.com/google-comes-to-denbighshire-in-october/ 
03-Oct Rhyl Journal Google Comes to Denbighshire in October (p13)
24-Sep Denbighshire CC Website Google Comes to Denbighshire in October https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/news/september-2018/Google-comes-to-Denbighshire.aspx 
04-Oct Denbighshire Free Press Google Comes to Denbighshire in October (p7)

Page 1 of 1

P
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Communities Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  25 October 2018 
 
Lead Officer:   Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Report Author:  Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Title:    Scrutiny Work Programme 
 

 

 
1. What is the report about? 

  
The report presents Communities Scrutiny Committee with its draft forward work 
programme for members’ consideration. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 
update members on relevant issues. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee considers the information provided and approves, revises or 
amends its forward work programme as it deems appropriate. 

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 Section 7 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, as well as the rules of 
procedure and debate.   

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must set, and 
regularly review, a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 
issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-led 
agenda. 

 
4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 
maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of this 
approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 
4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) have 

highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and public 
services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with residents 
and service-users.  From now on scrutiny will be expected to engage better and more 
frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions which ultimately 
lead to better outcomes for citizens.  The WAO will measure scrutiny’s effectiveness 
in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 7



4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing on 
local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) recommended 
that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on their work 
programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 budget savings; 
 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on the 

their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  
 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 
Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2) and; 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues 
 
4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 
 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  To 
assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 
merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to formally 
request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is done via 
the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance and 
potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have been 
received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 
4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-
making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG decided that 
members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ outlining the 
reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from scrutiny’s input.  A 
copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 2.  The reverse side 
of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which members should consider 
when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which committees should ask when 
determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a scrutiny forward work programme.  
If, having followed this process, a topic is not deemed suitable for formal examination 
by a scrutiny committee, alternative channels for sharing the information or 
examining the matter can be considered e.g. the provision of an ‘information report’, 
or if the matter is of a very local nature examination by the relevant Member Area 
Group (MAG).  No items should be included on a forward work programme without a 
‘scrutiny proposal form’ being completed and accepted for inclusion by the 
Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance with their completion is available from the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator. 

 
 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
4.8 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny committees 

to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this purpose a copy 
of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 3.  

Progress on Committee Resolutions 

4.9 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 
progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

  

Page 180



5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 
(SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group met on 6 
September 2018, no items were referred to this Committee for consideration.  The 
Group’s next meeting is scheduled for the afternoon of 25 October 2018. 

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 
community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 
coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities, 
improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget cuts. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 
identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 
following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? The 
completed Well-being Impact Assessment report can be downloaded from the 
website and should be attached as an appendix to the report 

 
A Well-being Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in relation to the purpose 
or contents of this report.  However, Scrutiny through its work in examining service 
delivery, policies, procedures and proposals will consider their impact or potential 
impact on the sustainable development principle and the well-being goals stipulated in 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 
forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 
respect to its programme of future work. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 
forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 
programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and examined 
as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a view to 
addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Section 7.11 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that scrutiny committees and/or 
the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group will be responsible for setting their own 
work programmes, taking into account the wishes of Members of the Committee who 
are not members of the largest political group on the Council. 

  

Page 181

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/


Contact Officer:   
Scrutiny Coordinator Tel No: (01824) 712554   
e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 182

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 1 

Note: Items entered in italics have not been approved for submission by the Committee.  Such reports are listed here for information, pending 
formal approval. 
 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / 
title) 

Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

        

13 
December 

Cllr. Tony 
Thomas 

1. Planning 
Enforcement 

To detail the 
effectiveness of the 
planning 
enforcement regime 
and detail the 
criteria used to 
determine and 
prioritise 
enforcement action 

To evaluate the effectiveness of 
enforcement action undertaken 
against contravention of planning 
conditions to determine whether it is 
an effective use of resources which 
supports residents and will realise the 
Council’s efforts to deliver its 
corporate priorities and the Corporate 
Plan 

Emlyn 
Jones/Paul 
Mead 

By SCVCG 
March 2018 
(rescheduled 
September 
2018) 

        

24 Jan 
2019 

Cllr. Tony 
Thomas 

1. Caravan and 
Holiday Park 
Regulation 
Procedure 

To assess the 
effectiveness of the 
county’s regulation 
procedure in 
ensuring that 
caravan and holiday 
park planning and 
licensing conditions 
are complied with 

Ensuring that all regulatory 
stipulations are adhered to and that 
holiday caravan sites contribute 
towards the economic prosperity of 
the area and local residents are 
supported to live in homes that meet 
their needs 

Emlyn 
Jones/Paul 
Mead 

By SCVCG 
January 2018 

 Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch 
Roberts 

2. Ysgol Rhewl 
and Ysgol 
Llanbedr 
Dyffryn Clwyd  
 
[Education] 

An evaluation of the 
support provided to 
both schools and 
stakeholders during 
the period leading 
up to  
(i) the closure 

of Ysgol Rhewl 
and the transfer of 
pupils to the new 

To ensure that pupils and 
stakeholders are adequately 
supported by the education authority 
to ensure that the pupils are not 
disadvantaged, attain the desired 
outcomes and realise their potential 

Karen 
Evans/Geraint 
Davies/James 
Curran 

October 2017 
(rescheduled 
September 
2018 – Ysgol 
Rhewl until Jan 
2019 & Ysgol 
Llanbedr until 
outcome of 
Ministerial 

P
age 183



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / 
title) 

Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

area school in 
Ruthin; and 

(ii) the WG’s Cabinet 
Secretary’s 
announcement in 
relation to Ysgol 
Llanbedr D C’s 
appeal and 
subsequent future 
arrangements for 
the education of its 
pupils 

decision is 
known) 

        

14 March  Cllr. Tony 
Thomas 

1. Seagull 
Management 
Update 

To report on the 
progress made in 
developing and 
delivering the 
Seagull 
Management Action 
Plan and the 
associated Public 
Awareness 
Campaign 

An assessment of whether 
appropriate and proportionate actions 
are being taken to protect residents, 
businesses and visitors from the 
nuisance caused by gulls and 
whether the measures taken are 
effective and support the delivery of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan 

Emlyn 
Jones/Gareth 
Watson 

March 2018 

 Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

2. Car Park 
Asset 
Management 
Plan 

To detail the 
progress made to 
date with the 
delivery of the asset 
management plan 
and associated 
initiatives  

To realise the delivery of the plan, the 
investment programme in the 
county’s car parks and the associated 
initiatives with a view to delivering the 
connected communities and 
environment priorities within the 
Council’s corporate plan 

Emlyn 
Jones/Mike 
Jones 

March 2018 

 Cllr. Brian 
Jones 
 

3. Flood 
Management 
Responsibilitie

To present the 
conclusions of the 
joint study into 

An assessment of whether the 
Council effectively fulfils its 
responsibilities in relation to flood 

Tony 
Ward/Wayne 
Hope 

March 2018 

P
age 184



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / 
title) 

Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

Reps from Dŵr 
Cymru Welsh 
Water & NRW 
to be invited 

s in 
Denbighshire 

whether 
improvements could 
be made to the 
management of the 
Rhyl Cut and 
Prestatyn Gutter, 
adjacent drains and 
sewers, and to 
outline each 
organisation’s 
responsibilities in 
relation to flood 
management and 
flood mitigation   

management and mitigation and 
works effectively with partner 
organisations to reduce the risk of 
flooding and deliver the Environment 
and Resilient Communities priorities 
of the Corporate Plan 

        

9 May Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

1. Universal 
Credit  
 
(unless 
concerns merit 
it to be 
brought to 
Scrutiny 
earlier) 

To detail: 
(i) the impact of the 

introduction of 
Universal Credit 
(full service) on 
Council services 
and residents 12 
months following 
roll-out to the 
majority of the 
county area; 

(ii) the effectiveness 
of the measures 
taken by the 
Council and its 
partners with a 
view to mitigating 
the effects of its 

An understanding of the impact of UC 
on Council services and on residents 
during the early roll-out stages of the 
new benefits system in the county; an 
assessment of the effectiveness of 
measures taken to date in supporting 
services and residents to deal with 
the changes and proposed plans for 
dealing with the remainder of the 
rollout and the eventual migration of 
current benefit recipients onto the 
new UC in due course. 
 
Scrutiny’s consideration of the above 
matters will assist it to identify 
proposed ways to mitigate against the 
effects of UC adversely affecting the 

Paul 
Barnes/Rachel 
Thomas 

May 2018 

P
age 185



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / 
title) 

Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

introduction on 
residents and 
Council services, 
including the 
lessons learnt; 
and  

(iii) the work 
underway to 
mitigate the 
impact on 
services and 
residents in 
readiness for the 
migration current 
benefit recipients 
on to UC in due 
course  

Council’s aim of building resilient 
communities   

 Leader 2. Tourism 
Signage 
Strategy for 
Denbighshire 

To outline the 
progress made by 
the Working Group 
in developing a 
tourism signage 
strategy for the 
county, 
consideration of 
potential funding 
sources, and the 
anticipated 
timescale for the 
project’s delivery 

The development of a tourism 
signage strategy that complements 
trunk road signage and technological 
innovations in the field of tourism, 
takes into account the aims of ‘The 
Wales Way’ project, attracts visitors 
and increases the value of tourism 
spend in the county in line with the 
corporate priority relating to the 
Environment, and in-keeping with the 
outcomes of Denbighshire’s Tourism 
Strategy 

Mike 
Jones/Peter 
McDermott 

May 2018 

        

4 July        

        

P
age 186



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / 
title) 

Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

5 Sept        

        

24 Oct Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch 
Roberts 

1. Impact of the 
Ruthin Primary 
Education 
Area Review  
 
[Education] 
 

To consider the 
findings of the of the 
impact assessment 
(based on the 
WBFG Act principles 
and goals) 
undertaken following 
the conclusion, 
implementation of 
the decisions 
relating to the review 

Identification of any negative or 
unintended/unexpected outcomes 
from the school reorganisation 
decisions that will assist planning for 
similar projects in future to ensure the 
well-being of all stakeholders 

Karen 
Evans/Geraint 
Davies/James 
Curran  

October 2017 

        

12 Dec        

        

May/June 
2020 

Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Welsh 
Government’s 
Free Childcare 
Offer in 
Denbighshire  
 
 

To assess the take-
up and impact of the 
WG’s free childcare 
offer in the county 
since its introduction 
in April 2019 

To evaluate whether the introduction 
of the free childcare offer has 
supported the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities relating 
to young people and resilient 
communities, supported the local 
economy and will enhance better 
outcomes for children and families  

Karen 
Evans/James 
Wood 

September 
2018 

 
Future Issues 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

     

     

 
For future years 

     

P
age 187



Appendix 1 
Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

 6 

     

 
Information/Consultation Reports 

Information / 
Consultation 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date Entered 

     

 
 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

13 December 29 November 24 January 2019 10 January 2019 14 March  28 February  

 
Communities Scrutiny Work Programme.doc             
15/10/2018 RhE 

P
age 188



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 189



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 190



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

30 Oct 1 Collaborative Procurement Unit To consider an extension of 
the collaborative 
arrangements with Flintshire 
County Council 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Lisa Jones / Helen 
Makin 

 2 Schools’ ICT Network Contracts 
Framework 

To seek Cabinet approval on 
the implementation of a 
Framework for Schools to 
procure their ICT Network 
contracts.  
 

Yes Councillor Huw Hilditch-
Roberts / Jane A Hughes 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

20 Nov 1 Corporate Plan 2017-2022 (Q2) To review progress against 
the performance 
management framework 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Nicola Kneale 

 2 Grant award for property 
acquisitions on West Parade 
and Sussex Street in Rhyl 

To seek approval for 
acceptance of a grant award 
from Welsh Government for 
property acquisitions on 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Russell Vaughan 

P
age 191



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

West Parade and Sussex 
Street, Rhyl 

 3 Rhyl Regeneration Programme 
re-launch 

To support the future 
arrangements regarding the 
regeneration of Rhyl 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

18 Dec 1 Denbighshire County Council 
Waste & Recycling Model 

To seek approval to 
develop/implement a new 
model for waste and 
recycling service, subject to 
confirmation of funding from 
Welsh Government 

Yes Councillor Brian Jones / Tony 
Ward / Tara Dumas 

 2 North Wales Construction 
Framework 2 

To appoint contractors for the 
project 

Yes Tania Silva 

 3 Homelessness 
Prevention/Supporting People 
Commissioning Plan 2019-22 

To approve the 
Commissioning Plan prior to 
its submission to the 
Regional Collaborative 

Yes Councillor Bobby Feeley / 
Liana Duffy 

P
age 192



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Committee and Welsh 
Government in January 2019 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

22 Jan 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

26 Feb 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

P
age 193



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

26 Mar 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

30 Apr 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

28 May 2019 1 North Wales Growth Bid 
Governance Agreement 2 

To approve the governance 
arrangements in relation to 
the implementation of the 
growth deal. 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Gary 
Williams 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

P
age 194



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

October 16 October November 6 November December 4 December 
 
Updated 09/10/18 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 195



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of Meeting Item number and title Resolution  Progress 

6 September 
2018 

5.  Implementation of 
the Welsh 
Government’s Free 
Childcare Offer in 
Denbighshire 

RESOLVED: - subject to the above observations – 
 

(i) to endorse the plans in place for full roll-out 
of the Childcare Offer in Denbighshire on the 
basis of the current agreement with the 
Welsh Government; 

(ii) to endorse the proposed cross-county 
delivery plan with Flintshire County Council;  

(iii) to agree to further scrutinise a contingency 
plan for a priority wards roll-out if, for any 
reason, funding for a full authority roll-out 
was not confirmed by Welsh Government; 
and 

(iv) if full roll-out was confirmed by Welsh 
Government, that a report be presented to 
the Committee post April 2020 to assess the 
take-up and impact of the free childcare offer 
in the county since its introduction in April 
2019 and to evaluate whether the 
introduction of the offer had supported the 
delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities 
relating to young people and resilient 
communities, supported the local economy 
and was on course to deliver better 
outcomes for children and families 

 
 
Lead Member and 
officers informed of the 
Committee’s 
recommendation, and a 
report assessing the 
impact and take-up of 
the free childcare offer in 
Denbighshire has been 
scheduled into the 
Committee’s forward 
work programme for its 
meeting in late Spring 
2020 (see Appendix 1) 

 

P
age 197



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES
	5 PROPOSED NEW WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE DESIGN
	WASTE MODEL - APPENDIX 1A
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix I B draft_collection_policies_v2
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix II Well Being Impact Assesment New waste model
	OPTION 5 (Preferred) - Weekly Kerbside Sort (including food waste), 4-weekly residual, AHP service
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:




	WASTE MODEL - APPENDIX III FINAL Scrutiny 25th October Waste Model
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix IV Interdependencies
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix V - Recycle More Survey Results - Report
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix VI - Risk Register
	WASTE MODEL - APPENDIX VII Depot options Scrutiny 25th October Waste model

	6 TOURISM PROGRESS REPORT
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 1
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 2
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 3
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 4
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 5
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 6
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 7
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 8
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 9
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 10
	Tourism Report 251018 - App 11
	Graph - Website
	Graph - FB
	Graph - Twitter
	Graph - Instagram
	Jan 2018
	Feb 2018
	Mar 2018
	April 2018
	May 2018
	June 2018
	July 2018
	August 2018
	September 2018
	October 2018
	November 2018
	December 2018

	Tourism Report 251018 - App 12
	Graph - Website
	Graph - FB
	Graph - Twitter
	Graph - Instagram
	Jan 2018
	Feb 2018
	Mar 2018
	April 2018
	May 2018
	June 2018
	July 2018
	August 2018
	September 2018
	October 2018
	November 2018
	December 2018

	Tourism Report 251018 - App 13

	7 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	WORK PROGRAMME REPORT - APP 1
	WORK PROGRAMME REPORT - APP 2E
	WORK PROGRAMME REPORT - APP 3
	WORK PROGRAMME REPORT - APP 4


